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As a bank with over 76 years of history in Hong Kong,
Dah Sing Bank has been committed to our vision to be “the
local bank with a personal touch”. Customer centricity
lies at the heart of everything we do, as we continually
uplift the quality of our products and services. We strive
to grow with our customers in Hong Kong, the Greater Bay
Area and beyond, delivering on our promise - “Together
We Progress and Prosper”.
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AT

KB EBTIT HKS Million 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
KEEE Shareholders’ funds 27,271 28,441 29,913 29,914 32,578
EIMERME TR Additional equity instruments 899 899 899 311 311
BEBHS Subordinated notes 5,510 3,828 4,128 3,801 5,917
E=YEE N Deposits from customers 182,629 190,340 196,135 199,792 207,234
BEEITIFEREE Certificates of deposit issued 6,751 8,126 6,590 4,229 2,428
pe® ek Total deposits 189,380 198,466 202,725 204,021 209,662
BERE Total liabilities

(BIERERER) (including subordinated notes) 215,222 217,951 218,168 221,861 227,855
EREMX Advances to customers

(FEEESZR) (excluding trade bills) 136,947 137,577 144,313 136,530 143,049
BERE Total assets 243,406 247,306 248,979 252,086 260,744
AEERE IR A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,240 1,493 1,658 1,609 1,860
PHERERE Total dividend distribution 675 422 478 548 843
LOBITIIZR HKS
SRERERF Basic earnings per share 1.59 1.06 1.18 1.14 1.32
SFRIRE Dividends per share 0.48 0.30 0.34 0.39 0.60
KBS SR Percentage %
EREEREEE(551)  Loan to deposit ratio (Note 1) 72.3 69.3 71.2% 66.9% 68.2%
5 Note:
1 BERHEEREEAETFREREE (FEEESZE 1. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as the ratio of total advances to

) HIERHERE (AR B ETINTEAGEE) Z = - customers (excluding trade bills) to total deposits (including certificates of

deposit issued).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EREMFREE BERE
Advances to customers / Total deposits Total assets
EEE5T HKS Million BT HKS Million

143,049
23 23 260,744
209,662
136,530 5
2 oo 2 252,086
204,021
144,313 B
21 L 21 248,979
202,725
137,577 N
20 o 20 247,306
198,466
136,947
19 Sl 19 243,406
189,380
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SZh (R~ =) N
ERER(FIIEERER) e EEeE
Advances to customers Total deposits Total assets
(excluding trade bills)
— E (FUEE 5 TR BiEa (FIEBRITHENEE) b
Loan (excluding trade bills) to deposit
(including certificates of deposit issued) ratio
BREARREN SRR
RRES Basic earnings per share /
Shareholders’ funds Dividends per share
BEET HKS Million JBIT HKS
0.39
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Shareholders’ funds Dividends per share Basic earnings per share
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Blair Chilton Pickerell

Paul Franz Winkelmann

David Wai-Hung Tam

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan

Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Paul Franz Winkelmann
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Blair Chilton Pickerell

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

David Wai-Hung Tam

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Richard Tsung-Yung Li

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

SOLICITORS
Herbert Smith Freehills

REGISTERED OFFICE

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.I.F.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 2356

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

(Please see pages 340 to 344 of this annual report for
respective lists of branches.)
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 83, was appointed as the Chairman of
the Company in 2004. He is also the Chairman of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial
shareholder of the Company as defined under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited), Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”, a key
operating subsidiary of the Company), Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited (formerly
known as Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited)
and Macau Insurance Company Limited. He was a member
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, DSFH and DSB until December 2023. Mr. Wong is
the Honorary President of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign
Investors. He was the Vice President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Electrical Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology and has over 60 years of experience in banking
and finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong,
an Executive Director and the Group General Manager of
DSFH and the Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief
Executive of DSB.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 71, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in 2004 and promoted as the Vice Chairman
in April 2011. He was appointed as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive of the Company in June 2017. Mr.
Wong joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited in 1977 and has served
and managed various departments before appointed as a
Director in 1989, promoted to the Managing Director in 2000
and then appointed as the Vice Chairman in April 2011. He
is the Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)
and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group. He
was the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited for the
period from June 2008 to August 2023. He is a Non-Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd.
(listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai) in which the Group has
a 13.2% equity interest. Mr. Wong is an Associate of The
Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder Member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The International Retail
Banking Council of the U.K. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic College
(now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and has
over 45 years of experience in banking.

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 83, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in 2004. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder of the
Company as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited),
Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and Dah Sing Insurance
Company Limited (formerly known as Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited). He is currently the Chairman
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Company,
DSFH and DSB. He served as the Chairman of the AC of the
Company, DSFH and DSB until December 2023. Mr. Sze is an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Nanyang Holdings
Limited and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited.
He was an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited which was delisted in January 2022
and Mr. Sze resigned in February 2022. Mr. Sze is a Fellow of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
was a former partner of an international firm of accountants
with which he practised for over 20 years.
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Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company in December 2017
and a member of the Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Company
in June 2021. He was also appointed as an INED of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”) in December 2017, a member of the
Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) of
DSB in August 2018 and the Chairman of the RMCC of DSB in
June 2020 and a member of the AC of DSB in June 2021.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member of
the Finance Committee and Nominating and Governance
Committee of The Principal Financial Group, Inc. (which is
listed on NASDAQ in the U.S.). He is an INED and a member
of the Nomination Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate Investment
Trust (which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is an INED and a member
of the Finance Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of First Pacific Company Limited (which is listed
on the Stock Exchange). He is also a director of Vision 2047
Foundation and a member of the Supervisory Committee
of The Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (a Hong Kong unit trust
whose units are listed on the Stock Exchange). He is the
Chairman of Harvard Business School Association of Hong
Kong Limited and a member of the International Advisory
Council of the Faculty of Business and Economics of The
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of Hong
Kong from December 2008 to November 2014 and a member
of the Main Board and GEM Listing Committees of the Stock
Exchange from July 2015 to July 2016. He was an INED and
a member of the AC of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(the parent company of the Company) from June 2013 to
December 2017.

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as the
Head of Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in 2010 and
served as the Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset Management
Company until July 2015. He joined Jardine Matheson
Holdings Group in 1984 and held various positions in
Jardine Matheson Holdings Group. In 2003, he joined
HSBC Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) as
Chief Executive, Asia Pacific. From 2007 to 2010, he served
as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of
Morgan Stanley Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business
School, U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies) and
a BA degree (in Political Science) from Stanford University,
U.S.A.

Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Winkelmann, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and the Chairman of the
Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Company in January 2024.
Mr. Winkelmann is currently an INED and the Chairman of
the AC of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, a
substantial shareholder of the Company as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (“DSB”). He is also a member of Risk Management
and Compliance Committee of DSB. Mr. Winkelmann joined
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) in 1984 and was admitted
to partnership in 1990 to become a member of the first
group of partners to set up PwC’s financial services practice
in Hong Kong. He specialized in the audits of financial
institutions, both local and international. He was partner-
in-charge of PwC’s risk and compliance matters for Greater
China for 14 years up to June 2014. He was also the leader
of PwC’s Greater China Risk and Quality function overseeing
auditing and ethical standards within PwC. In 2001, he joined
the governance Board of Partners of PwC in Hong Kong and
subsequently was appointed to the Management Board
of PwC China and Hong Kong. Following his retirement
from PwC Hong Kong in June 2014, Mr. Winkelmann was
engaged as a senior advisor of PwC in Hong Kong on risk
and quality matters during the period from July 2014 to
December 2015. Mr. Winkelmann is currently an INED and
a Non-Industry Member of the General Committee of the
Insurance Complaints Bureau. He is also the Non-IA Eligible
DP Member of Disciplinary Panel Pool of the Insurance
Authority. He was the Chairman of the Financial Reporting
Standards Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) from 2004 to 2009 and the
President of HKICPA in 2009. In 2005, he was appointed
to the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform and
served for a period of 6 years. Mr. Winkelmann was the
Chief Executive Officer of Financial Reporting Council of
Hong Kong (now known as the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council) from April 2016 to March 2019. He is a
fellow member of the HKICPA. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Business) Degree from Trinity College, Dublin.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 74, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company in June
2021. He was appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (“DSB”) in March 2019 and a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
and DSB in January 2024. Mr. Tam was an INED of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent company of
the Company) during the period from December 2018
to June 2021 and a member of the Risk Management
and Compliance Committee of DSB from March 2019
to December 2023. Mr. Tam started his career with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in
1968 and held various senior positions until February 1999.
In March 1999, Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng Bank Limited and
was the Deputy General Manager and Head of Commercial
Banking during 2003 to 2008 and the Chief Risk Officer from
2008 until his retirement in 2012. He was a director of Yantai
Bank, a city commercial bank in Yantai, from December
2012 to June 2017. He resigned as a Non-Executive Director
of Nameson Holdings Limited in April 2022 and retired as an
INED of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in June 2022. Mr. Tam
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
and The Chartered Institute of Bankers in the U.K. and an
associate of The Institute of Bankers. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the University
of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Tam has more than 45 years of
experience in commercial banking industry in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Chan, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and a member of the Audit
Committee (“AC”) of the Company and Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”) in January 2024. From March 2022 to December 2023,
she was an INED and a member of the AC, the Connected
Transactions Control Committee, the Risk Management
Committee and the Strategy Committee, and the Chairman
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of DSB. Ms.
Chan joined Bank of Communications Co. Limited, Hong Kong
Branch (“BOCOM”) as a management trainee in July 1981.
She was the Assistant General Manager of BOCOM from April
1992 to June 1998, primarily responsible for the formulation
and implementation of the operation procedures for trade
finance, loan administration and bancassurance business,
and she also led the trade finance and loan operations
centralization project. Ms. Chan was the Deputy General
Manager of BOCOM from July 1998 to March 2021 responsible
for overseeing the daily operation of trade finance, loan
administration, remittance and retail banking business and
the launch of private banking business. She was appointed as
Alternate Chief Executive of BOCOM in August 2002. Ms. Chan
was a Director of Bank of Communications Trustee Limited
from September 1999 to October 2019 and was appointed
as the Chairman in June 2006. She was the Vice Chairman,
Director and Chief Executive of Bank of Communications
(Hong Kong) Limited before her retirement in June 2021.
She has over 38 years of experience in the financial industry.
Ms. Chan is an associate member of The Chartered Institute
of Bankers, United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“HKIB”). She is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and a Certified Banker of HKIB. Ms. Chan holds
a Master of Science degree in Information and Technology
Management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and
a Master of Corporate Finance degree from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.
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Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheung, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company and
an INED and a member of the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee of Dah Sing Bank, Limited in January
2024. Mr. Cheung worked with DBS Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited (“DBS”) from July 2009 to December 2022 where
he served as Managing Director and Head of Institutional
Banking Group in Hong Kong from June 2011 until his
retirement in December 2022, responsible for growing
DBS’s franchise in the corporate and commercial banking
businesses in Hong Kong. He was also the Alternate Chief
Executive of DBS from December 2012 to December 2022.
Prior to joining DBS, he was the Regional General Manager,
North East Asia and General Manager of Oversea-Chinese
Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Prior to
such appointments, Mr. Cheung held senior positions in
corporate commercial banking and risk management with
major international banks including Citibank, Hong Kong,
ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Hong Kong and Rabobank, Hong Kong
Branch. Mr. Cheung has over 40 years of corporate and
commercial banking experience. Mr. Cheung is currently as
an INED of K. Wah International Holdings Limited and Yuexiu
Property Company Limited (both are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He is the Chairman of the
Board of Governors of World Green Organisation, a member
of the Hong Kong Academy of Finance and a member of
the Advisory Committee on Accounting and Finance of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was a member of
the Advisory Board of Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance
Corporation from 2011 to 2016 and a member of the Banking
Industry Training Advisory Committee from 2021 to 2023.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

Mr. Wang, aged 63, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in 2004. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”) as the Group Financial Controller in 1995 and was
promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for the overall
financial management and control, operations and IT
functions of the Group for a number of years. Mr. Wang was
promoted as the Managing Director and Chief Executive of
DSB in May 2011 and was re-designated as the Deputy Chief
Executive and Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in August
2017. He is also an Executive Director and Deputy Chief
Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”,
a substantial shareholder of the Company as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), as well as a Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”). He was appointed as the Chairman
of DSB China in November 2023 and a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company,
DSFH and DSB in January 2024. Mr. Wang was the Group
Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the Company,
DSFH and DSB until June 2021. Mr. Wang is a qualified
accountant, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a
Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from The University of
Hong Kong and has over 35 years of experience in financial
management and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Deputy Chief Executive of the Company
in June 2017. He is currently an Executive Director of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and a Director of Dah Sing
Insurance Company Limited (formerly known as Dah Sing
Insurance Company (1976) Limited) and Macau Insurance
Company Limited. Mr. Mayhew also serves as the Deputy
Chief Executive of DSB and Group Head of Treasury, Global
Markets & Corporate Finance of DSB, responsible for its
treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew was
an Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(the parent company of the Company) during the period
from August 2004 to May 2017. Mr. Mayhew holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree (Hons) (in Chinese and Economics) from the
University of London. He has over 30 years of experience in
financial services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Mr. Wong, aged 54, is currently a Vice Chairman, Managing
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”). Mr. Wong joined DSB in 2000, and was appointed as
an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March
2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as Managing Director and
Chief Executive of DSB in August 2017. From April 2011 to
June 2017, he was an Executive Director, Managing Director
and Chief Executive of the Company. He was appointed as
the Group General Manager of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder of the Company
as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) in
April 2011 and appointed as an Executive Director of DSFH in
January 2024. He is also a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance
Company Limited (formerly known as Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited), Macau Insurance Company
Limited and Macau Pension Fund Management Company
Limited. Mr. Wong is currently an Executive Committee
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a Non-official
member of the Industry Advisory Committee on Long Term
Business established by the Insurance Authority and a Non-
official Member of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board of
the Trade and Industry Department. Mr. Wong holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from Harvard University,
U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from King’s
College, London, and is a qualified solicitor in England and
Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-
Yeh Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Company, DSB
and DSFH.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Ms. Wong, aged 57, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
as Head of Retail Banking in February 2012, responsible for
the development and management of overall retail banking,
bancassurance, retail brokerage, wealth management
businesses, private banking and vehicle financing. She was
appointed as an Executive Director of DSB in May 2012 and
an Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in May 2014. She was
further appointed as a Deputy Chief Executive of DSB and
Group Head of Personal Banking in April 2022. Ms. Wong
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
Brunel University (UK) via Henley Management College and
a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong.
She has over 30 years of experience in retail and personal
banking business with other banks operating in Hong
Kong, including Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank
International.

Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Ms. Ma, aged 57, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
as Group Head of Corporate Banking in February 2020,
responsible for overseeing and supervising corporate
banking business. She was appointed as an Executive
Director and an Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in February
2021. She has over 30 years of solid banking experience
in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and the United States,
mainly in commercial and corporate banking with a full
spectrum of clients in various sectors. Ms. Ma attained a
Bachelor of Science in Economics from The London School
of Economics and Political Science.
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Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Mr. Chan, aged 52, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
as General Manager and Head of Wealth Management in
2009, and was appointed as an Executive Director of DSB in
March 2019. He was further appointed as an Alternate Chief
Executive of DSB in June 2022. Mr. Chan is Group Head of
Wealth Management and is responsible for the formulation
and execution of overall business strategies of DSB’s wealth
management business, including securities brokerage,
retail wealth management, and private banking. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Cambridge
and a Master degree in Business Administration from
the Harvard Business School. He is a Chartered Financial
Analyst of the CFA Institute and a Certified Private Wealth
Professional of the Private Wealth Management Association.
Mr. Chan has over 25 years of extensive experience in various
areas including financial services, manufacturing and public

administration.

Mr. Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Ho, aged 51, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) in
July 2007. He was the Head of Corporate Development,
Strategy and Investor Relations of the Group before the
appointment as a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
(“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company,
in November 2018. He was then appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB China in June 2020 and the Chief Executive
Officer of DSB China in July 2021. Mr. Ho has over 25 years
of experience in finance and banking industry in China and
Hong Kong. He worked for investment bank, international
commercial bank and international accounting firm before
joining DSB.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 59, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and
was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and a Director
of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (incorporated in Macau),
a key subsidiary of the Company, in January 2020. Mr. Lau
has over 37 years of solid banking experience in Hong Kong
and Macau. He started his career in banking by joining HSBC
in 1986 and immediately before joining DSB, he was the CEO
of HSBC Macau Branch.
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In 2023 we continued our efforts to make progress in our
business while maintaining financial stability and sustaining
the quality development of our core businesses amidst
external challenges in our major markets. We have grown
our businesses in line with our strategy to leverage our
franchises in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China, and
continue to seek opportunities in the Greater Bay Area.

During the year, we saw a material improvement in net
interest income and net trading income and other income,
whilst net fee and commission income, excluding the gain
on the termination of our previous insurance distribution
agreement in the previous year, was higher than 2022.
Moreover, we achieved key milestones in developing and
growing our businesses in the year including an exclusive
15-Year Bancassurance Partnership with Sun Life in Hong
Kong; and the opening of the new Shenzhen Branch as we
became the first foreign bank granted a “Dual Operating
Licence” in Mainland China.

BANCASSURANCE ALLIANCE WITH SUN LIFE
HONG KONG

We were delighted to announce in January 2023 that we
had entered into an exclusive 15-year bancassurance
partnership in Hong Kong with Sun Life Group for the
distribution of Sun Life products starting from July 2023.
The new bancassurance agreement has offered our wealth
management customers the choice of a diverse range of life
and protection products through our strong franchise and
distribution network of over 40 branches in Hong Kong.

It was our pleasure to partner with the world-class
protection solution provider Sun Life Group, and we look
forward to strengthening our relationship further in the
years to come.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OPENING OF NEW SHENZHEN BRANCH IN
QIANHAI

Our subsidiary Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) celebrated
the official opening of its new Shenzhen Branch in Qianhai
on 1 August 2023. We became the first foreign bank in
Mainland China to be granted a dual operating licence and
set up a local branch in addition to our locally incorporated
wholly-owned bank, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited.

In line with our GBA strategy, the new Shenzhen Branch
focuses on Renminbi lending, deposits and remittance
services for corporate customers onshore, which also
better positions the Group against the backdrop of RMB
internationalisation.

Despite the market challenges such as rising inflation
and tightened monetary policy by central banks of major
economies, we reported an increase in profit for the year of
16% to HK$1,860 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Benefiting from the rebound of interest rates during the
year, DSB’s net interest margin has widened, resulting in
an increase in net interest income by 10% as compared to
2022. The net interest margin rose by 16 basis points due
both to higher market interest rates and to our efforts to
control our funding cost during the year. Despite relatively
subdued loan demand in our core markets, loan balances
rose slightly across most business lines, and our overall loan
balances grew by 5%.
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Our FX related business for customers was robust with
improved business from customers in both Personal
Banking and Corporate Banking. Overall, net fee and
commission income recorded a modest increase of 1%
as compared to last year excluding the HK$1,394 million
one-off gain recognised upon termination of the previous
bancassurance distribution agreement in 2022. As the
15-Year Bancassurance Partnership with Sun Life became
effective on 1 July 2023, the distribution of insurance
products to our retail customers has resumed in the second
half of 2023 and the results to date are encouraging.

Operating profit before impairment losses decreased by
28% mainly due to the one-off gain of HK$1,394 million in
2022, as mentioned above. Excluding this item, operating
profit before impairment losses was up by 14%, and
non-interest income was up by 5% for the year. Our credit
cost fell by 9% as compared to 2022 although it remained
somewhat high during the year, with credit impairment
losses at HK$731 million. A large part of the reduction
was attributable to our corporate banking business as we
continued to take proactive risk management measures in
the current business environment.

We recorded an increase in our share of the net profit of
our associate, Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”), for the year to
HK$689 million. After we updated the impairment model in
2022 to reflect the latest economic conditions and projection
of BOCQ’s future performance, recording an impairment
charge of HK$1,683 million, the total impairment charge
on the basis of the updated model for the 2023 year was
HK$552 million. It should be noted that the provision made
relating to BOCQ is non-cash and does not affect our capital
adequacy.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2023, economic growth in Hong Kong remained relatively
sluggish, with subdued loan demand and generally higher
market interest rates. The continued rate increases had an
impact on the capacity of certain borrowers to repay debts,
and on loan demand amongst customers, and resulted in
weak performance in loan growth in the banking industry
during the year. The rate hikes also led to challenges
in terms of more expensive funding and higher interest
expenses, as customers switched their placement of funds
to higher rate deposits. The rate hike cycle is expected to
end in 2024 and a reduction in rates may start to take place
later this year. However, there are market expectations that
a somewhat higher interest rate level will potentially remain
for some time, which should continue to be of benefit to
our net interest margin. Furthermore, in response to the
weak property sectors in both China and Hong Kong, policy
changes have been made to ease market conditions, which
hopefully will provide the market with some stabilisation.

With the increasing integration and rapid development of
the Greater Bay Area, consumer sentiment has improved
and is expected to support the increase in outbound
and inbound travel from and to Hong Kong. That said,
Hong Kong as our core market continues to maintain its
stable economic conditions and competitive advantages,
including well-developed infrastructure, low taxation,
strong institutions and robust banking system. We expect
the banking sector of Hong Kong to remain stable under a
stringent regulatory environment with generally very high
levels of bank capital and liquidity.

Our strategy aligns with the development of the Greater
Bay Area, with Dah Sing Bank operating both a branch
in Shenzhen and a wholly-owned subsidiary bank in the
Mainland to serve our target customers. The “dual operating
licence” allows us to gradually expand our cross-boundary
business to gain a wider footprint in the Greater Bay Area. At
the same time, the life insurance sales to our retail banking
customers was resumed in mid-2023. This is very important
in serving our customers with a range of financial services
and products throughout different stages in their lives. As
a result, we have increased our team of financial planning
managers to support the relaunch of bancassurance
business. We are glad to achieve these two important
milestones in 2023. We have enhanced our capabilities
in wealth management business and corporate banking
business in the Greater Bay Area as two key drivers of our
long-term growth.
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Dah Sing Bank celebrated on 1 August 2023 the opening of
our new Shenzhen Branch in the Qianhai Shenzhen Hong
Kong International Financial City, marking an important
milestone as the first foreign bank in China granted a dual
operating licence to set up a local branch in addition to our
locally incorporated bank. The new Shenzhen Branch will
enable the Group to deploy the combined resources of Dah
Sing Bank, Banco Comercial de Macau and Dah Sing Bank
(China) flexibly and to respond nimbly to the needs of our
customers. It will also better position the Group against
the backdrop of RMB internationalisation and the financial
markets in Hong Kong and the Mainland becoming more
integrated.



During 2023, we successfully completed the implementation
of our new core banking system. We continue to invest in
technology and the digitalization of our banking services,
both to improve our service to customers, and to improve
efficiency. This is an ongoing process as a greater proportion
of our transactions move from branch based to online/
remote.

Looking forward, we expect challenges to remain with the
banking industry in the near term. In particular, higher credit
risk is one of the considerations, with credit cost expected to
remain relatively high across banks and the financial system
as a whole. In order to maintain healthy asset quality, we
are managing credit risk in our loan and asset portfolios in a

prudent manner.

Both our capital adequacy and liquidity remain robust,
enabling us not only to meet the challenges of a difficult
business environment, but also to position us for growth
should market conditions allow. Liquidity conditions
domestically in Hong Kong, and our funding base, mainly
comprising domestic Hong Kong deposits, have stayed
strong in spite of the recent challenging times, and we
expect that to continue. We are ready to accelerate the

growth of our business over the medium and longer term.

On behalf of the Board, we have declared a final dividend
of HK$0.49 per share, representing a total dividend for the
whole year of HK$0.60, an increase of 53% compared to the
HK$0.39in 2022.

Last but not least, | take the pleasure in thanking my
fellow directors for their valuable contribution. In addition,
I would like to thank the management team and staff
members of Dah Sing Financial Group for their dedication
in tackling the challenges and commitment to keeping our
business running smoothly over the past year, and also our
appreciation of the long-term trust and support from our
customers and shareholders. | believe that the dedication
and flexibility from my colleagues will help us achieve the
goals of the Group’s development in driving the business

performance.

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The highlights of the Group’s consolidated financial performance for the year are summarised in the table below:

2023 2022 Variance

Net interest margin 2.01% 1.85%
HKS Million
Operating income 5,916.1 6,826.3 (13.3%)
Operating profit before credit impairment losses 2,747.2 3,810.3 (27.9%)
Operating profit after credit impairment losses 2,015.9 3,007.2 (33.0%)
Profit before taxation 2,141.6 1,970.0 8.7%
Profit for the year 1,860.3 1,608.8 15.6%
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the investment in 1,723.3 2,635.1 (34.6%)

an associate
Advances to customers 143,049 136,530 4.8%
Deposits from customers 207,234 199,792 3.7%
Certificates of deposit issued 2,428 4,229 (42.6%)
Total deposits 209,662 204,021 2.8%
Subordinated notes 5,917 3,801 55.6%
Loan (excluding trade bills) to deposit 68.2% 66.9%

(including certificates of deposit issued) ratio
Cost to income ratio 53.6% 44.2%

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Hong Kong economy expanded by 3.2% in 2023,
recovering from the 3.7% contraction recorded in 2022.
The reopening of the border amidst an easing of the COVID
pandemic helped bolster the domestic economy, while
external demand continued to be weighed down by a
sharp increase in interest rates globally and a weaker than
expected rebound in Mainland China’s economy.

Total exports of goods reduced by 10.3% year-on-year in real
terms in 2023, slightly improved from the 14% contraction
a year ago, as exports to both Mainland China and other
destinations showed signs of stabilisation toward the end of
the year.

Private consumption expenditure increased by 7.3% last
year from a low base on pent-up demand, although the
momentum softened in the second half of the year amidst
falls in property prices and the stock market. The local
unemployment rate fell below 3% as labour demand
recovered in service industries, with the rebound in the
labour force stalling despite an influx of immigrants through
various talent visa schemes.

Business sentiment showed signs of recovery in Q4 2023
with the purchasing manager index advancing to 51.3 in
December from 48.9 in October. Private non-construction
capital investments accelerated, but spending was still
lower than pre-pandemic levels.
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Domestic property prices declined by 7% last year
after falling by 15% in 2022. Total residential property
transactions shrank to around 45,000, the lowest in more
than a decade. The Government announced the easing of
property curb measures in October 2023 including down
payment requirements and stamp duties. It subsequently
removed all additional demand-side management measures
for residential properties in February 2024.

The prime rates of licensed banks in Hong Kong went up by
25 basis points in 2023 despite a 100-basis-point increase in
US policy rates. The Federal Reserve is expected to cut rates
in 2024 with inflation trending toward its 2% target level and
risks of an economic slowdown growing.

Mainland China reported GDP growth of 5.2% in 2023,
up from 3.0% in 2022. However, a continued cooling in
the property market and an uncertain economic outlook
hampered both consumption and investment growth.

Amidst the challenging business environment, the Group
reported an increase in profit attributable to shareholders
by 15.6%. Operating income was 13.3% lower than the
higher base in 2022, mainly attributable to the one-off
recognition of unamortised fees arising from the termination
of the Hong Kong Distribution Agreement with Tahoe Life
Insurance Company Limited.

Excluding this item, the normalised operating income
for 2023 would have been 8.9% higher than 2022, which
was driven by higher net interest income from a wider net
interest margin and higher asset yields during the year. Net
fee and commission income would also have increased by
1.4% if this item was excluded. Net trading income rose in
the year due to higher sales income and improved trading
results, partly offset by a higher funding swap cost, in
response to a widening HIBOR/LIBOR rate differential when
compared with the prior year.

Operating expenses grew by 5.1% due to increases in wages,
legal and professional fees incurred and other expenses
accruals, partly offset by lower depreciation and spending
on IT related projects. Credit impairment charges decreased
by 8.9% year-on-year, as a result of lower provisions for
credit losses on our exposures to the China property
developer sector.

Our businesses in Macau delivered stronger results due to
improved operating income and lower credit impairment
charges while Mainland China delivered weaker results
from higher credit impairment charges and lower operating
income primarily from reduced net interest income as
a result of the challenging business environment in the
Mainland.

The Group’s return on shareholders’ funds increased from
5.4% in 2022 to 6.0% in 2023. Cost to income ratio increased
from 44.2% in 2022 to 53.6% in 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the consolidated Common Equity
Tier 1 ratio of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) increased to
16.2%, 1.0 percentage point higher than the level of 15.2% at
the end of 2022. Taking into account DSB’s outstanding Tier
2 subordinated debts, DSB’s consolidated capital adequacy
level at the year end was 21.2%, higher than the prior year
of 19.3%. Our Bank continued to operate well above the
minimum Liquidity Maintenance Ratio of 25%, reporting an
average level of 64.0% during the year. We believe that our
capital and liquidity ratios are maintained at levels within
the market range for both peer banks in Hong Kong, and
indeed for banks internationally.
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VIP Banking launched its “Just Like Family” marketing campaign in 2023 to
build brand awareness of our value proposition to stand by our customers
at every stage of their lives, helping them plan for their future and creating
tailor-made solutions for customers’ evolving financial needs.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business maintained a stable
underlying performance in 2023 despite the continued
business and economic disruptions from interest rate hikes,
high inflation, global geopolitical tension and the slow
post-COVID recovery. However, net profit was impacted
primarily due to the higher base in 2022 with the HK$1.4 billion
one-time gain on the termination of the former bancassurance
distribution agreement.

18 RREETade

RaRumE

REXKRERETF

Targeting the acquisition of new-to-bank customers, we
grew overall deposits modestly in 2023 despite the intense
competition for deposits in the market. In addition to the
6% increase year-on-year in our VIP Banking customer base,
our Retail SME customer base recorded growth of 34%
year-on-year. We were able to strengthen our customer
franchise by expanding our SME Banking network from
11 SME Banking Centres to 16 during the year and by
improving our SME account opening efficiency for customer
experience enhancement.

During the year, we maintained our market share in
personal loans with active promotions and collaborations
with various social media platforms to increase market

awareness.

In 2023, total credit card spending increased 11%
year-on-year. Along with various new card acquisition and
usage programmes, credit card balances rose by 4.6%
compared to the end of 2022.

RIRTIELEREERS > EATEEEZRE

BRATLRE BB EETIR o
DSB launched its US Stock Trading Service to offer its

customers a broader range of investment options.

Dah Sing Bank’s Central Branch on Des Voeux
Road Central has given the Group its iconic
presence in the heart of core Central in Hong
Kong ever since 1981. As part of a broader
strategy to gradually upgrade our branch
network for better customer experience, the
branch was remodeled into our second digital
flagship branch in Dah Sing Bank’s network
last year. Designed to be largely paperless in its
operations, the branch leverages technology
as an enabler for front-line staff to focus their
time more on listening to what our customers
need. The branch also features an exclusive
VIP Banking Centre as well as a 328 Business
Banking Centre to service different customer

segments in the prime business district.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023 29



EEEMAZEARTHZOER » BERREBEMER
BURBETRANERBRIRERREERTE - £A > 4t
AT IERENKERS > VIPIRITE RN RISRERR > I
RHEFRHZSTENUEEERT TPV EEERERAT
FOMEWAIE - A5 - BBREBKPTHERABNGE
RETE > HFIN2023FTEMEIRITREES > AEPREMS
TTIEMASF RIREE SR o 7220235128 » HMIEMMARE
RITIERRMEIEFTBRILAIRIT AR > BEMOEF
PHRETHSHESEARERERE

A
. a® T
ﬂs(uagl Iél[;?2 w ey S

ABRIBRS
A7k BA 3% S A5 5
AT RR

30 KHIRITEEEBRAR 2023FFK

SN - FFIBIFRAIRITE B IESS BB IE R E RS
BRAATERTERRINHEE > WaTHIEARITHRIERU
MEZERFER °

BMEHTEIBCEE  LURRTREZE L BRI 7220234
MIERENIE F & FHHRIFUES - SFEE R LR Voice
Laisee Rt CIE AR NIRMEENRIE FEES > LURAEFR
ZHE o £y BB F 2L R48% °

AREEMAETELRESHUREEL » RARABRR—
IBETE > BE R R BB DTS T P IR R A5
RFHEEME o P2023F12AK > ZEBRESEHELRB2M
ZEDT > DHIREEE ~ NBEERMRA - B1E27TREVIPIRTT
R 16 A/ B FEIRTTHIL ©

RERARERSHIRMARE(E
BANCASSURANCE

PARTNERSHIP RIDING ON
SHARED VALUES

RATIRIT T EIRTTREN2023F TR AFBXBAEHMARAE
RARPALIENBRIBFREEBRHRG  ILRRARIRITH
EEEEB—EEENEREM - MRSIEBHEETBIER
BANBESHNEEESE  TMERE—ES  BRTRPSHAIRN
SAEINEREGE » A THREFETRAERBRHEX
PR AEETIMAREMERNM EMNRES 2 - BE2023F
& IRREIFESIA—RIIZTENAZSNERRRED
ERMIRTNEBODTER - RPNSEMESAMESR °



Wealth management remained a key focus in Personal
Banking to deliver customers personalised services with
investment and insurance solutions offered to suit different
life stages. During the year, VIP Banking maintained stable
growth of customer base and offered customers a diversified
range of wealth management services despite weak market
sentiment and volatility. The result was an increase in both
wealth management fees and customer foreign exchange
income. Meanwhile, the resumption of our bancassurance
business in July 2023 through our exclusive partnership with
Sun Life Hong Kong Limited gave our customers access to a
diverse range of life and protection products. In December
2023, we announced the addition of Bank of Dongguan
as our Northbound partner bank under the Wealth
Management Connect Scheme to expand the investment
choices for our customers seeking opportunities in China.

Dah Sing Bank’s Retail Banking Division launched its
15-year exclusive bancassurance collaboration with Sun
Life Hong Kong Limited in July 2023, an important step to
strengthen Dah Sing Bank’s wealth management franchise.
Both partners boasted strong business legacies in Hong
Kong, and shared the same commitment to understanding
and addressing customers’ needs across their different life
stages by delivering relevant and forward thinking wealth
and protection solutions, as illustrated by the joint customer
statement of “Life « Brighter Together”. As at the end of
2023, the collaboration has brought a meaningful range of
life and medical protection products throughout Dah Sing
Bank’s branch network in Hong Kong, with more varieties of
innovative products expected to be added in the near-term
future.

In addition, our Private Banking business continued to make
efforts to cross-sell to our Corporate Banking customers
through an enhanced personalised service model and
customised offerings to meet customers’ needs.

We have implemented our digital transformation to meet
different customers’ preferences. Innovative initiatives were
launched on our mobile banking platform in early 2023
including our first-to-market Voice Laisee and our in-app
gamification with instant e-coupons to enhance customer
engagement. During the year, digital transactions grew by
48%.

In line with our omni-channel strategy to serve our
customers, we invested resources in a programme to
gradually renovate and/or relocate our branches to improve
customer services and experience as well as to achieve
greater operational efficiency. As of the end of December
2023, our retail presence in Hong Kong totalled 42 branches
across Hong Kong, Kowloon and the New Territories,
including 27 VIP Banking centres and 16 SME banking
centres.

- Sun Life
X 9 4

@D 5 R 17 ‘
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Life - Brighter Together
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with Dah Sng Sanl, Sun Lifs Flong iKong and you
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DSB has been awarded the “Best
SME’s Partner Award”, organised by
The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Small and Medium Business, for
10 consecutive years and has won
the Gold Award for 2 consecutive
years since 2022. This achievement
recognised DSB’s effort in providing
quality services and support to SMEs.



Corporate Banking

Our Corporate Banking business continued to focus on
implementing customer account strategy across a range
of existing and targeted customer segments as part of the
execution of our medium term strategy, aiming to provide
diverse corporate banking products and services to our
customers.

In early 2023, global travel was gradually resumed when
borders reopened post-COVID. However, the market
recovery was hindered by ongoing headwinds arising from
a slow economy and widespread geopolitical tensions.
Against the backdrop of the continued weakening economic
environment and high interest rates, corporate customers
remained conservative in their funding plans while we have
remained disciplined in our credit underwriting standards.
Besides, many corporate customers proactively deleveraged
under the rising interest rate environment and/or diverted to
lower-cost onshore RMB borrowings. Our business reported
a mild net growth in 2023 given the sluggish environment
with shortfalls mainly in trade finance loans which was
partially offset by an increase in corporate lending.

Net interest income was stable versus the prior year,
primarily due to the increase in loan interest income,
which offset the higher interest expenses. Despite intense
market competition, loans slightly increased. Deposits from
corporate customers remained stable, enabling us to fund
our assets while effectively managing our liquidity.

In terms of non-interest income, there was a significant
improvement compared to the previous year. This
improvement was driven by higher foreign exchange
income, wealth management income, and income from
loans and cash management fees.

Loan impairment charges remained elevated, but was
lower than the previous year. The provisions made were
predominantly on exposures to the China real estate sector.
We will remain vigilant in monitoring the credit quality of
our loan portfolio, ensuring its resilience and in mitigating
any potential risks that may arise.

We continued to collaborate with DSB China. Through
providing onshore account opening witness services,
corporate customers in China are able to open Hong Kong
bank accounts in China without travelling across the border.
This provided opportunities to establish effective banking
relationships, while offering convenience to corporate
customers in China. Furthermore, DSB became the first
foreign bank to receive dual operating licenses to operate a
new Shenzhen branch in addition to its DSB China subsidiary
operations, which is intended to foster the further growth
of our corporate banking business in both Hong Kong and
China. One of our key focuses is to encourage cross platform
referrals and to develop cross-border solutions.

Investing in digital solutions and upgrading our digital
banking platform, DS-Direct, remained a priority. Our focus
on improving product capabilities in cash management
and the digital channel allowed us to enhance customer
experience. In addition, further streamlining of our internal
processes improved efficiency and service quality, which
aligned with our pursuit in delivering best-in-class services
to our customers.

Notwithstanding the challenging operating environment,
we continue to lay the ground work for building a stronger
corporate banking business by onboarding quality clients
and focusing on customer centricity.
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Treasury and Global Markets

Our Treasury and Global Markets division reported higher
profit in 2023, with an increase in attributable profit of 24.8%
to HK$746 million. Rising, and generally higher interest rates
during the year were beneficial to net interest margin, which
increased from 1.03% to 1.25%. Average interest earning
assets grew by 1.7% to HK$90.2 billion during the course
of the year, taking advantage of the higher interest rates
available. With both higher margin, and higher volumes,
net interest income grew by 22.5% from HK$918 million to
HK$1,125 million for the year.

Average USD interest rates during the year continued to be
significantly higher than average HKD interest rates, which
led to a substantial increase in the cost of our funding swap
activities. Whilst non-hedging FX revenues were improved
over the prior year, the high cost of our funding swap
hedging activities led to lower overall trading income than
in 2022.

Our customer related sales and marketing performance
improved significantly during the year, mainly driven by FX
related business, and revenues were up by HK$27 million
to HK$127 million. Operating expenses increased by 16.7%
during the year. However, this was mainly driven by a
higher allocation of central expenses to Treasury and Global
Markets, whilst underlying costs were higher by 6.9%. There
was a modest write-back of impairment charges during
the year, due mainly to the HK$36 million recovery of an
investment that had been written off in a prior year.

Liquidity was prudently managed with the average Liquidity
Maintenance Ratio for the year being maintained at 64.0%,
compared to the 50.4% in the prior year. We maintained
our high quality liquid assets portfolio and managed the
cash flow of DSB in a conservative manner given the overall
challenging operating environment and uncertainties faced
during the course of the year.
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BCM introduced a new smart casual

summer uniform for its branch staff
as part of its “Joyful Green Journey”
campaign, which helped to support
environmental protection and to
refresh its brand image.



Banco Comercial de Macau

In 2023, Macau lifted all COVID-related travel restrictions.
The Gross Gaming Revenue and hotel occupancy rate were
the first to benefit, and both recovered to 60%-70% of
pre-COVID levels. However, the recovery of other industries
such as retail and real estate was at a much slower pace
and still clouded by the continuing uncertainty of the global
economic outlook.

Inevitably, Macau’s banking industry was also impacted
by strong headwinds, including weaker loan demand
and pessimistic investor sentiment, largely driven by
the increasingly high interest rate environment, surging
geopolitical tensions around the globe, and the slowing
down in China’s economic growth. The combined
effect of negative loan growth together with increasing
non-performing loans year-on-year has overall impaired the
profitability of the banks in 2023.

Amid such a difficult operating environment and challenges,
our subsidiary bank in Macau, Banco Comercial de Macau
(“BCM”) managed to increase its loan balance and customer
deposit balance by 4.1% and 12.9% year-on-year respectively,
outperforming the market in both measures. Notably,
the increase in customer deposit balance helped to
improve BCM’s net interest margin by replacing relatively
more expensive public funds and certificates of deposit.
Furthermore, additional surplus funds were deployed into
the treasury investment portfolio yielding a higher interest

income overall.

Attributable to the improved net interest margin and the
growth in loans, deposits and treasury investments, net
interest income increased by 17.0% compared to 2022.
Meanwhile, non-interest income was also higher than
prior year by 9.7%. On the other hand, operating expenses
were maintained at a mild growth of 3.4% year-on-year for
continued investments in IT and infrastructure projects. As a
result, operating profit before impairment losses was 39.5%
above 2022, and with improved impairment charges, net
profit soared by 382.2% year-on-year.

During the year, BCM continued to enhance its VIP
Banking franchise and onboarded a significant number of
new-to-bank VIP Banking customers via various business
campaigns, which provides BCM with great potential for
growing its wealth management business going forward.

In non-financial areas, BCM through its newly-established
Streamlining Task Force has driven a number of initiatives
to enhance operational excellence and efficiency, which also
enabled it to redeploy resources into business development
activities. Having been through the Customer Centricity
journey in recent years, where a variety of initiatives have
been rolled out, BCM has built and boosted the desired
culture to its staff, and in turn enhanced customer
experience with BCM.

In terms of ESG and external profile, in 2023 BCM launched
the “BCM Joyful Green Journey” programme, which
incorporated various green initiatives with positive feedback
from the market and senior government officials. The new
staff summer uniform was particularly well received by the
public which helped to improve BCM’s identity in Macau.
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15th anniversary milestone
and reaffirmed its strategy
and commitment for long-
term growth in Mainland
China.



Dah Sing Bank (China)

With the reopening of the border, Mainland China’s
economy began to recover, but the pace was dampened by
the onshore real estate crisis which impacted the market,
affecting investor confidence and credit appetite. As part
of the economic stimulus package, the China 1-year Loan
Prime Rate was revised down by 20 basis points from
3.65% to 3.45% in 2023. While boosting the local economy,
lowering of the Loan Prime Rate adversely impacted the
interest margin and overall asset yield. Because of this, DSB
China’s net interest margin reduced from 1.84% to 1.44%
which led to a decline in net interest income year-on-year.
Disposal and write off of certain non-performing loans
brought forward from prior years resulted in a lower NPL
ratio but higher impairment loss charged to the profit and
loss account. With all the hard work, non-interest income
increased due to a higher customer demand for foreign
exchange and currency risk management services in a
volatile foreign exchange market. Loans and deposits fell
slightly due to customers’ early repayments and intensified
market competition. Notwithstanding the challenging
operating environment, DSB China maintained its capital
ratios at a robust level.

The increase in credit risk became more noticeable in
2023. Both the demand and valuation of properties saw a
significant decline in many major cities. DSB China remained
thorough and vigilant in all new credit underwriting and
customer onboarding.

For the Group’s business growth in the Greater Bay Area
(“GBA”), DSB China proactively supported its parent bank
to re-establish the Shenzhen Branch, which opened for
business in August 2023. Dah Sing Bank is privileged to be
the first Hong Kong incorporated bank to obtain a successful
dual banking licence. This provides an important foundation
for future growth in both Hong Kong and the Mainland. To
pursue its cross-border business ambition in GBA, DSB China
stepped up its franchise building efforts during the year,
with particular focus in mobile platforms.

DSB China continues to operate in 6 major cities in China,
with a network comprising Shenzhen Headquarters,
branches in Shanghai, Nanchang, Zhenjiang, Guangzhou
with sub-branches in Foshan and Shenzhen Nanshan,
offering a wide range of commercial and retail bank lending,
deposits and other related banking services to customers
in China, specifically to customers in GBA with cross-border
banking needs.

Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

BOCQ delivered improvements in both business
performance and financial results in 2023, with its profit
attributable to shareholders up by 1.3%. Loan and deposits
grew by 11.4% and 8.4% respectively. It recorded slightly
lower operating income, which was mainly a result of lower
net interest income and lower net fee and commission
income. Its non-performing loan ratio and non-performing
loan coverage ratio at the end of 2023 were 1.3% and 234.2%
respectively, compared to 1.4% and 211.2% at the end of
2022.

BOCQ successfully issued undated capital bonds in October
2023 with gross proceeds of RMB2.5 billion, which helped
strengthen its capital base.

Our share of BOCQ net profit continued to be recognised
on the equity accounting basis, which amounted to
HKS$689 million in 2023. Due to a further lowering in the
Value in Use of our investment in BOCQ assessed in June
and also at the end of 2023, a total impairment charge of
HK$552 million was recognised in our 2023 consolidated
results, compared with HK$1,683 million in 2022.

While the impairment charge was lower than our share
of BOCQ net profit recorded in the year, the carrying
value of our investment in BOCQ, net of the total
impairment allowance, increased to HK$2,215 million as
at 31 December 2023 as compared with HK$2,159 million
as at 31 December 2022. This is mainly due to our share of
the other comprehensive income of BOCQ which was partly
offset by the depreciation of RMB against HKD during the
year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk limits or tolerances are set for the major risks inherent in
the Group’s operations, including both quantifiable risks
such as credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk, as well as less-quantifiable risks, which include
operational risk and reputation risk. These limits and
tolerances are monitored regularly by management
and reported to the Board level Risk Management and
Compliance Committee to achieve proper risk governance
and oversight.

Global markets and economies continued to face strong
headwinds in 2023. The magnitude of economic recovery
was below expectations as dollar interest rates continued
to rise. Meanwhile, geopolitical risks heightened with the
war between Russia and Ukraine prolonged and escalation
in the Israel-Palestine conflict. Trade conflicts between US
and China continued to intensify. These factors have led to
reduced economic activities, including international trade.
Domestically, the credit quality of the Mainland property
developer segment continued to deteriorate with more
companies reported to have difficulties in meeting their
debt servicing obligations, putting more pressure to the
local banking environment. To manage the risk exposures,
particularly those in the credit and market risk areas, the
Group conducted various reviews and took necessary
actions to manage the potential financial impact on the
Group arising from such risks. Cautious credit management
and investment management were adopted throughout the
year, in response to the challenging market and weak credit
demand.

Since the implementation of the accounting standard
HKFRS 9 starting 1 January 2018, the Group has
implemented a set of Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) models
and other tools to assess the amount of the impairment
provisions required for the credit portfolios, taking into
account macroeconomic factors, risk characteristics of
portfolios, as well as forward-looking elements during the
ECL calculation process. Regular reviews were conducted
to assess the possible developments in the macroeconomic
environment, with updated situations of borrowers that
have experienced deterioration in credit performance or
may expect weaker credit quality. This ensured that major
issues which could affect credit losses in the future are
properly and fairly evaluated, with appropriate regard to the
forward-looking assessment and reasonable provisions for
ECL being maintained.

The Group continued to strengthen its internal controls
with the established dedicated control officer function in
the major divisions. These dedicated control officers work
closely with the control functions of the Group, to ensure
that adequate and effective internal controls are in place
for daily operations of respective divisions to comply
with internal control requirements of the Group as well as
regulatory guidance. End-to-end process reviews had been
conducted to identify areas for control enhancements,
and work on areas for further improvements. During the
year, the Group also established a fraud risk management
framework with a dedicated fraud risk management team
to help improve fraud awareness, detection and prevention
amidst the rapidly changing market environment and more
diverse business channels.

Moreover, the Group, based on the framework developed
in prior years, continued to develop its climate risk
management capabilities by supporting green and
sustainable banking initiatives. During 2023, the Group
participated in the Cross-Agency Steering Group Climate and
Environmental Risk Questionnaire for Non-listed companies
and invited a selected group of SME customers to respond to
the questionnaire with the aim to enhance their awareness
and understanding of potential impacts driven by climate
changes. On the other hand, the Group also enhanced
the granularity of its data as well as the assessment
methodologies with the plan to conduct another round of
climate risk stress testing in 2024. The result will help to
evaluate potential impacts arising from climate change, and
to plan for further actions in the coming years.
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CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY

Group 2023 2022
Capital base of banking subsidiaries (HKS Million)

At 31 December

- Common Equity Tier 1 28,726 26,268
-Tierl 29,893 27,436
-Tier2 7,725 5,791
Total capital base after deductions 37,618 33,227
Capital adequacy ratio*

- Common Equity Tier 1 16.2% 15.2%
-Tierl 16.9% 15.9%
- Total 21.2% 19.3%
Liquidity maintenance ratio (average for the year) 64.0% 50.4%

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and

DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules. This consolidated capital adequacy ratio takes into

account market risk and operational risk.

The liquidity maintenance ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s average consolidated liquidity maintenance
ratio of DSB (covering BCM and DSB China) for the 12 months of the financial year, computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity)

Rules.

The Group continued to maintain healthy capital adequacy
ratios over the year.

Our Group continued to maintain throughout the year a
high liquidity maintenance ratio, backed by a strong pool
of liquid assets including high quality liquid assets (such
as Hong Kong Exchange Fund bills and notes), cash and
placements with banks, and other diversified marketable
securities held for investment and liquidity purposes.

Stress testing on our capital and liquidity positions is
a regular and ongoing exercise conducted by our risk
management function, with the results reviewed by
Management on a periodic basis. Regular update and
high-level reporting on our capital and liquidity positions,
including the results of stress testing, are submitted to the
Board-level Risk Management and Compliance Committee
and highlighted to the Board.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

In 2023, the Group’s commitment to promote its “Culture
& Values” continued. Once again, we launched the second
“Culture Week” in July 2023, with a virtual “Dah Sing
Cultureland” set as the theme. Staff were encouraged to
embrace the Group’s values through exploring 7 uniquely
designed adventures in the Dah Sing Cultureland, both
physically and virtually. On the other hand, the Group
continued its effort to promote a “speak-up” culture by
conducting a group-wide culture survey in October 2023.
Encouraging improvement has been observed on the
overall positive perception score. “Dah Sing Star Awards”
were rolled out for the eighth consecutive year to continue
recognising staff who consistently live our “Culture &
Values” in their daily work.

To prepare our staff for future prospects and opportunities,
in addition to the existing learning series on leadership
capabilities development, digitalisation, environmental,
social and governance, green and sustainable finance,
Greater Bay Area and cross-border businesses, a new
“Dialogue with Leaders” series, which featured sharing from
senior leaders of the Group on their leadership experience,
insight and advice, was kick-started in November 2023.

The Group considers employee wellness as one of the most
vital elements in building an engaged workforce. Various
flexible work arrangements and leave options have been
introduced throughout the past few years, and all these
measures have been formalised in 2023. The annual event
“Wellness Week” was launched again with different activities
promoting staff wellbeing. Staff medical coverage has also
been enhanced in 2023.

Despite the intense talent war in the banking industry
in 2023, especially for revenue generating positions, the
Group was able to maintain a similar headcount level
as that of 2022 and secure a team of financial planning
managers to support our newly established bancassurance
partnership with Sun Life to kick-start the distribution of
various insurance products in July 2023. Staff turnover also
improved significantly when compared with 2022.

More detailed information on our human resources

development is included under the section “Workplace” in

the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the Management
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“Company” or “Group”)
are committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices within the Group and devote
considerable effort to identify and formalize best practices.
We believe that sound and effective corporate governance
practices are essential for delivering sustainable value,
enhancing a culture of business integrity and maintaining
investors’ confidence. Good corporate governance
promotes and safeguards the interests of shareholders and
other stakeholders, thereby enhancing the credibility and
reputation of the Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) under Part 2 of Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) with the exception of code
provision F.2.2 as explained in the following relevant section.
This Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements set out in Appendix C1 of
the Listing Rules, and explains how the Company applies the
principles of the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group promotes its corporate culture in alignment
with its core values and vision, which enables the Group to
deliver its long-term strategies and create sustainable value
for its shareholders and other stakeholders. The Group is
committed to ensuring that its businesses are conducted
lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and in accordance with
high standards of business ethics and corporate governance.

The Directors take the lead in promoting the desired
corporate culture and ensuring that it is reflected
consistently in the policies and operating practices of
the Group. Corporate culture and expected behaviors are
clearly communicated to employees of the Group through
orientation and training and they are also freely accessible
on the intranet of the Group.

More information about the Group’s Vision, Mission, Culture
and Values is available on the website of Dah Sing Bank
(About Group profile section).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company has established a Board Governance
Policy and Procedures (“BGPP”) which covers corporate
governance structure and practices and is subject to review
on an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company so as to promote its success and continued
growth. The Board plays a leading role in setting the
corporate values, culture and standards for the Group, and
promotes a sound corporate culture which reinforces the
values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly. The
Board is also responsible for ensuring that the Company
has sound systems of risk management, internal control
and regulatory compliance. The Directors, collectively and
individually, have a duty to act in good faith, and to take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Group. The Board
sets the business objectives for the Company, and monitors
the execution of those objectives by the Management of the
Company.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of
running the Group to the Management, and has delegated
responsibility for certain matters to a number of
committees, which are described more fully in the following
sections. As defined in the Board’s terms of reference, there
are a number of matters which require the deliberation of
the full Board, and may not be delegated to the committees
of the Board or the Management. These reserved matters
include:

setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of
the Group

- approving annual budget and business plan, and
monitoring performance and execution of plan

- establishing and overseeing risk governance

- appointment and oversight of senior management,
and ensuring competent management s in place

- setting corporate values, culture and standards, and

promoting a sound corporate culture which reinforces
the values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

47



48

EREERAEHENTERE

FEIRA W 2 BB AE R PO BB B

HERINE « BEREAREEZBERXN

BREBRRAPAEFAN TGRS

EAWERHEFRCFARABEFHEFZER) -
KREREHEN

HEEFMEEFHEEFEZEGTHRUM

pill

FIEMEN EEEARRRERZ B R EERAE

EEEEEHRMREIE (BERE - I RERZAR)
FREEAERRAVRET ~ B RS

SHEMEEARBDBRIRE - HEREBHRBEKRE
b WHERRIIABERAMERE - HERELZ AR
EERAEEIERGR

ERERRAE

EFCRERTEEELHEERE

FIE MBS A EEREEEABERKRER

B REREFRBEEEASIEIIRFES XS R

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

— BRTEEEETEARAEERENENBEEKER

— BEVEENEFENBRTERSHRTM

—  BEARRRTEEEATINERIRMEEEEES
HE MR

EFEN0BFRNER KN R LREEEGERBE 2 EE
BEIT

— 2022 1PEEARRS

—  2022%FIRIR - HEKREARE

- EEENEFTRMEFEERREERNIEERGR
ZEIERIRESS

- EFE EFLEIMECET

—  HERE - 4 EREARBMBSZIRE  HEKESR
BRNEE

— EIRRRFWNEE SRR

— EFEEABRKERZEER

— REEARERZFERN

—  EFENEZTLBRZFER

—  EFERRBRZFERS



ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate

structure

ensuring effective audit function and internal control

ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect
of the structure, operation and risk management

matters involving conflict of interest of substantial
shareholders or any Director

material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the
ordinary business or operation of the Company),

- to review the Group’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

- to review the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and directors

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and approve disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report

The following is a summary of the matters relating to the
above corporate governance duties reviewed and discussed
by the Board in 2023:

investments and business reorganization

- appointment of Directors and also appointment of
individual Directors as the chairman or members of
Board Committees

- corporate governance functions in respect of the
development and review of policies and practices on
corporate governance

- overseeing management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management (including ESG risks) and internal
control systems

- evaluating and determining the Company’s ESG-
related strategy and risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and
internal control systems are in place

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

- to develop and review the Group’s policies and

practices on corporate governance

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management

Corporate Governance Report of 2022

Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
of 2022

Management’s confirmation on effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems of the

Group

Change of the composition of the Board/Board
Committees

ESG development and progress made against ESG
strategy

Revised Terms of Reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Annual Review of the Board Governance Policy and
Procedures

Annual Review of the Shareholders Communication
Policy

Annual Review of the Board Diversity Policy

Annual Review of the Director Nomination Policy

Revised Group Remuneration Policy

Connected Transactions
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Board Composition

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised 8 Directors,
namely Messrs. David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman), Hon-Hing
Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive), Gary Pak-Ling Wang and Nicholas
John Mayhew (Deputy Chief Executive) as Executive
Directors (“EDs”), and Messrs. Robert Tsai-To Sze, Seng-Lee
Chan, Blair Chilton Pickerell and David Wai-Hung Tam as
Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”).

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan has stepped down as an INED of the
Company and Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann, Ms. Nancy
Ha-Fong Chan and Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung) have
been appointed as INEDs of the Company with effect from
2 January 2024. Each of Mr. Winkelmann, Ms. Chan and
Mr. Cheung has obtained the legal advice from a firm of
solicitors as per Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 18
December 2023 and has confirmed that she/he understood
her/his obligations as a Director of the Company.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies
and qualities to discharge its responsibilities adequately and
effectively. In addition, the Board collectively has adequate
knowledge and expertise relevant to the business activities
of the Company in order to ensure effective governance and
oversight. Brief biographical particulars of the Directors are
set out in the “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile”
of this Annual Report. The Company has maintained on
the respective websites of Dah Sing Bank and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) an updated list of
its Directors including their roles and functions and whether
they are INEDs. INEDs are also identified as such in all
corporate communications that disclose the names of the
Company’s Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects
of its management - the management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of its business, and that there
should be a clear division of these responsibilities at the
Board level to ensure a balance of power and authority, so
that no single individual should have unfettered powers of
decision.

The posts of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are held
separately by Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong and Mr. Hon-Hing
Wong (Derek Wong) respectively. This segregation ensures
a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility to
manage the Board and the Chief Executive’s responsibility
to manage the Company’s business and a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman mainly provides leadership
for the Board to ensure that the Board discharges its
responsibilities effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The
Chairman possesses the requisite experience, competencies
and personal qualities to fulfill these responsibilities.
The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Company to provide business direction
and operational leadership for the benefit of the Group’s
businesses, enhance shareholder value and ensure sound
internal control.

NEDs (including INEDs)

NEDs, as equal Board members, give the Board and any
committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active participation.
They attend regular and special Board meetings, and are
encouraged to attend the general or extraordinary general
meeting of the shareholders of the Company. The NEDs
make valuable contribution to the development of the
Company'’s strategy and policies through independent,

constructive and informed comments and suggestions.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 4 INEDs. Each
of the INEDs has provided to the Company confirmation
of his independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2023, the Company has
complied with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A with sufficient
number of INEDs who possess the appropriate professional
qualifications and experience.

The independence of the INEDs has been assessed in
accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Following such assessment, the Board
considers all the INEDs to be independent. Further, the
Company has also received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of his independence.
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The NEDs of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term, but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company issues appointment letters to each of the
NEDs (including INEDs), setting out the terms and conditions
of their appointment.

Board Independence

The Company recognizes that Board Independence is key
to good corporate governance. As part of the established
governance framework, the BGPP contains effective
mechanisms that reinforce a strong independent Board
and that independent views and input from Directors are
conveyed to the Board. In March 2024, the Board conducted
a review on the BGPP and considered that such mechanisms
were properly implemented and is effective.

To maintain a strong independent element in the Board and
to ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board’s
decision-making, meetings of the Board/Board committees
are held in an inclusive environment where open debates
and constructive challenges are encouraged. Directors/
committees’ members are free to contribute their views
at meetings. Dissenting views of Directors on any matters
discussed at Board/committees’ meetings will be properly

recorded in the minutes.

The Chairman of the Board meets with the INEDs annually,
without the presence of other Directors and other
management staff, to facilitate open and frank discussion.

There is a strong independent element in the Board to
ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board’s
decision-making process as well as the thoroughness and
impartiality of the Board’s oversight of the Management.

Board Process

Board meetings are held at least 4 times each year at
approximately quarterly intervals, and additional board
meetings are held as necessary. Details of Directors’
attendance at the Board meetings and the annual general
meeting in 2023 are set out in the section on Attendance
Records of this Corporate Governance Report.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other
Board meetings, reasonable notice is given in advance.
Directors may submit to the Company Secretary, in writing,
and at least 7 days in advance, matters that they would
like to include in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept
by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant
committees, and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. In circumstances where Directors
believe that independent advice is needed, they should
approach the Company Secretary or the Chief Executive in
the first instance with their request. No such request will
be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive will endeavor to identify and engage
an appropriate professional adviser at the expense of the
Company. The Company maintains appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

A director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after his/her appointment. All new Directors are subject to
election by shareholders of the Company at the next annual
general meeting after their appointments have become
effective. All other Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In the recruitment of INEDs, the Company will consider
the selection criteria as set out in the Director Nomination
Policy, which include time commitment, cultural and
educational background, professional experience and
qualification of the candidates.

Delegation by the Board

To ensure the efficient and smooth operation of the
Company, the Board acknowledges the need to delegate
certain power to Board committees and management. The
roles, responsibilities and reporting lines of Management
are set out in the BGPP.

In particular, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

and the Audit Committee were set up under the authority of the
Board, to assist the Board in carrying out its responsibilities.
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As at 31 December 2023, the composition of the Board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee is

as follows:

EDs

David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman)

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive)
Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew (Deputy Chief Executive)

INEDs

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan
Blair Chilton Pickerell

David Wai-Hung Tam

A A

Nomination and Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee (all are INED)
(majority are INED)

Members: Members:
Seng-Lee Chan (Chairman) « Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman)
Robert Tsai-To Sze + Seng-Lee Chan
David Shou-Yeh Wong »  Blair Chilton Pickerell
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BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Company in August 2005 with specific written terms of
reference setting out its roles and responsibilities. The
Committee was reconstituted as the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company in August

2006 with a set of updated terms of reference.

Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board set out the requirement
for a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The terms
of reference also explicitly prohibit the delegation of
decisions regarding the appointment of new directors to
sub-committees of the Board or to the management of the
Company, and require that such appointments are made
after deliberation by the full Board.

The NRC performs the following duties:

- To make nomination or review and endorse the
nomination for appointment as directors, and to
review and endorse the nomination for appointment
as senior management

- To review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and also its committees at
least annually and make recommendations on any

proposed changes to the Board

- To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of
the functioning of the Board and also its committees,
particularly in respect of the composition of Board

and committee members

- To review if the individuals nominated as Directors are
suitably qualified

- To assess the independence of INEDs

- To review the Director Nomination Policy

- To review the Board Diversity Policy, the related
measurable objectives and the progress on achieving

these objectives

- To advise and assist the Board in discharging its
culture reform and related responsibilities

Director Nomination Policy

The Director Nomination Policy was adopted by the Board
in May 2019 which is subject to regular review to ensure its
effectiveness. The Director Nomination Policy describes the
process for identifying and evaluating potential candidates
for appointment to the Company’s Board of Directors.

In assessing the suitability of the candidates for nomination
as Director, the NRC shall consider the candidates on
the basis of the selection criteria set out in the Director
Nomination Policy which includes his/her reputation for
integrity, accomplishment and experience in the financial
services industry or other industries, commitment in respect
of available time and relevant interest, diversity perspectives
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service, and
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in respect of proposed appointment of independent
non-executive director.

For appointment or election of a new Director, the NRC
shall take the lead in identifying candidates suitably
qualified to become a Director. The NRC may solicit
ideas for identification of candidates from a number of
sources including present members of the Board, senior
management and individuals personally known to the
members of the Board. The NRC and senior management
will also consider information and comment on individual
candidates coming from other sources, including but not
limited to well regarded senior business executives or
professionals, professional firms, and business associates.
Any shareholder of the Company may nominate a person
other than a retiring director for election as a director of the
Company at a general meeting by lodging a written notice
with the Company. The nomination procedures and process
are set out in the Procedure for Nomination of Directors by
Shareholders which is available on the website of Dah Sing
Bank.

The NRC shall consider candidates recommended as
nominees for directors submitted to the NRC by any
directors, senior management or shareholders of the
Company, provided that in the case of shareholder
recommendations, such nomination shall comply with the
notice requirements set forth in the Company’s Articles of

Association.
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The NRC shall endeavor to consider and select individuals
who possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to
effectively make contribution to the Board. In conducting
the assessment, the NRC shall take into account the
selection criteria set out in the Director Nomination Policy as
well as the prevailing structure, size and composition of the
Board to maintain a balance of perspectives, qualifications,
qualities and skills amongst members of the Board. The
NRC shall then make recommendations or endorsement
to the Board on the appointment of the candidates for
directorship.

For retiring directors who are eligible for re-election at
general meetings, the NRC shall determine if the incumbent
directors consenting to re-nomination continue to be

qualified and proposes the retiring directors for re-election.

The NRC shall include in its recommendation to the Board
for consideration the justifications for re-appointing an
independent non-executive director who has served more
than nine years. The recommendation for re-appointment
should state why the NRC believes that the director is still
independent and should be re-elected, including the factors
considered, the process and the discussion of the NRC in
arriving at such determination.

Remuneration of Directors

The NRC has the following roles and responsibilities:

- To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility
for the design and operation of the Company’s

remuneration system

- To review and make recommendation to the Board
in respect of the Company’s remuneration policy and

practices

- To ensure that regular review of the Company’s

remuneration system and its operation is conducted

- To review and endorse matters relating to share
schemes

- To review and endorse the specific remuneration

packages of directors and senior management

The Group’s Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair
and competitive packages for its employees, which are
commensurate with market terms, and are based on
business needs, expertise and quality of the individuals, and
with proper reference to industry practice and regulatory
guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the
Board of Directors, market rates and factors such as each
director’s workload and required commitment will be taken
into account. The following factors are considered when
determining the remuneration packages of EDs:

Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Risk related performance

- Involvement in ESG and climate-related risk
management

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the
individual’s responsibility

- Consideration of regulatory guidelines

- Retention considerations and each individual’s

potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director
will be involved in decisions relating to his/her own

remuneration.

The NRC is chaired by an INED and the majority of the
members are INEDs. The terms of reference for the NRC are
available on the websites of Dah Sing Bank and HKEX.

The NRC held 3 meetings in 2023. The attendance record of

the NRC members at NRC meetings held in 2023 is set out in
the section on Attendance Records of this CG Report.
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The following is a summary of the work of the NRC during
2023:

- Reviewing and endorsing the remuneration levels for
executive directors and senior management

- Reviewing and endorsing the nomination of directors
to the Board/members to the Board Committees

- Reviewing and endorsing the new/amended Share
Schemes and the adoption of the Schemes

- Reviewing and endorsing the re-election of directors

- Reviewing and endorsing the adjustment of fees
payable to the INEDs and NEDs

- Reviewing and endorsing the Group’s remuneration

policy and related systems and practices

- Reviewing the disclosure on the Company’s

remuneration systems and practices

- Reviewing the Board governance of the Company and
Dah Sing Bank

- Reviewing the 2022 Board evaluation of Dah Sing Bank

- Reviewing and endorsing the succession plan for the
Chief Executive and Division Head positions of Dah
Sing Bank

- Reviewing and endorsing the Board Diversity Policy

- Reviewing and endorsing the Director Nomination
Policy

- Reviewing the culture enhancement initiatives
pursued by the Group

- Reviewing and endorsing the changes to the Terms of
Reference of the NRC

- Reviewing and approving the revised Code of Conduct
for Staff

BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (“AC”), established by the Board of
the Company, is responsible for ensuring the objectivity
and credibility of financial reporting, reviewing the
internal control system and compliance with regulatory
requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors,
and that in presenting results to the shareholders, the
Directors have exercised the care, diligence and skills
prescribed by laws, and that appropriate accounting and
financial reporting standards are followed.

The AC has the following roles and responsibilities:

The AC makes recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment of the head of internal audit and reviews the
effectiveness of the internal audit function.

The AC makes recommendation to the Board on the
selection, oversight and remuneration of external auditors.
The AC reviews and monitors the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards.

The AC reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, including
significant financial reporting judgements used in producing
the financial statements.

The AC reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports
its major findings and comments to the Board. Descriptions
of the Company’s internal control system are set out below.
Information relating to the Group’s risk management
including appropriate financial quantification is set out in
the Financial Risk Management sections as notes to the
annual financial statements.

The terms of reference for the AC are available on the
websites of Dah Sing Bank and the HKEX.

All members of the AC are INEDs with extensive experience
in banking, finance and business management. Mr. Robert
Tsai-To Sze is a qualified accountant and was a partner of
a predecessor firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June
1996. Save for the above, none of the other committee
members are employed by or otherwise affiliated with the
former or existing external auditors of the Company.
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The AC members meet at least 4 times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal audit
and the external auditors. In 2023, a total of 4 meetings were
convened. The attendance record of AC members at the AC
meetings held in 2023 is set out in the section on Attendance
Records of this Corporate Governance Report.

To enable Directors to be informed of the discussions and
decisions of the AC, members of the AC who also attend
meetings of the Board will advise on matters of significance
relating to the financial statements and the internal control
system of the Group discussed in the AC. In addition, a
report highlighting the matters reviewed and dealt with by
the AC is submitted to the Board on a half-yearly basis.

The following is a summary of the work of the AC during
2023 in discharging its responsibilities:

- Review, and providing advice and recommendations
to the Board for the approval, of the 2022 results
announcements and audited financial statements of
the Group, and the 2023 interim results and interim
report

- Review of external auditors’ findings and comments,
and management’s reports on major accounting and
financial disclosure matters in respect of 2022 audit
and financial statements

- Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2022
forinclusion in the Company’s 2022 annual report

- Approval of the reports to the Board providing a
summary of the issues, focuses and discussion
reviewed and dealt with by the AC in the second half
of 2022 and the first half of 2023

- Review of connected party transactions and disclosure

- Review and approval of the appointment and
remuneration of external auditors

- Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit

plan

- Review and approval of internal audit plan

- Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and

recommendations

- Review of updates from the Compliance Division
of the Group on the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”) examinations and regulatory concerns,
management’s actions in implementing the HKMA’s

recommendations

- Review of the highlights of major new accounting
and financial reporting standards and guidance
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and impact to the Group on their
adoption

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s

performance, position and prospects.

Management is responsible for providing sufficient
explanation and information to the Board to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December
2023, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The Directors have prepared the
financial statements of the Group on a going-concern basis.
The responsibility of the Group’s external auditor on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report attached to the Group’s financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment in annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, as
well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory or regulatory requirements.
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Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility
to develop and maintain a sound internal control system.
The internal control system, operating through a framework
of management and operational controls, and risk
management systems, is intended to allow the Board to
monitor the Group’s business performance and financial
positions, to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt
sound business practices, to obtain reasonable assurance
on controls against fraud and errors, to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and to exercise
oversight on and provide guidance to management in
achieving the Company’s objectives. However, it should be
recognized that the Group’s internal control procedures can
only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against
material errors, losses or fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to
maintain an effective internal control system are as follows:

- A clear management organizational structure is set
up with well-defined lines of authority, accountability
and responsibilities.

- Specialized committees are formed to oversee and
control significant risk factors, such as credit risk,
liquidity and interest rate risks, operational risk and

compliance risk.

- Regular reporting of the performance of the
Company’s businesses to senior management and
management committees. Actual performance
results against budgets are closely monitored. The
Board reviews the Group’s business and financial

performance on a quarterly basis.

- Written policies and procedures are established to
facilitate proper assessment of customers, services
to customers, segregation of duties, accuracy and
completeness of transaction processing, safeguarding
of assets, credit control and risk monitoring,
control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering
(“AML™)), staff training, IT development, IT
governance and information security, business
continuity planning, financial control (including
accounting, regulatory reporting, financial reporting
to comply with regulatory and financial reporting

standards, management accounting and budget
control, reconciliation of accounts), and system of
management oversight including the operations of
various functional committees.

The independent internal audit function monitors
compliance with management policies and
procedures, as well as regulatory requirements. It
conducts a wide variety of internal control reviews
and audit activities such as compliance audits
and operations and systems reviews to ensure the
integrity, efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of
control. The Head of Internal Audit reports functionally
to the Audit Committee and administratively to the
Chief Executive, with direct access to the Executive
Committee.

The independent group risk function monitors
and reports the Group’s risk positions and analysis
to senior management, Risk Management and
Compliance Committee and the Board, and operates
to sustain a sound asset quality and risk control in
the portfolio of the Group’s businesses with due
consideration of a proper risk and return balance.

The Group continues its ongoing upgrade of risk
management framework and capabilities to
strengthen its risk control and effectiveness, which
are key to the maintenance of sound internal control
process of the Group.

The Group Compliance Committee at the management
level serves to uphold a high level of awareness
and accountability of compliance requirements.
It is responsible for overseeing and guiding the
development, maintenance and enhancement of
compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and
regulatory guidelines. The Group Compliance Division
performs an independent on-going monitoring and
advisory role on the Group’s compliance with relevant
rules and regulations, while the AML and Financial
Crime Risk Department manages and oversees AML
and financial crime risk of the Group.

A Guideline on Group Functional Reporting is in place
to promote collaboration between Group functions
and subsidiaries, align Group’s policies, practices
and standards, and allow Group functional heads to
exercise proper control, supervision and monitoring of
subsidiaries’ operations.
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Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system,
the Board has considered reviews performed by the AC and
Management, and the findings of both internal and external
auditors.

Under the direction of the AC, the Group’s Internal Audit
conducted an assessment covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management practices. The 2023 reviews included an
annual assessment of internal control system with reference
to the comments made by both internal and external
auditors, policies and procedures of the Group, regulatory
guidelines and the CG Code regarding internal controls. The
Group is committed to continuously enhancing its internal
control system and processes.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to evaluate and
determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives,
and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Such risks include, amongst others,
material risk relating to ESG. The Board is also responsible
for overseeing Management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. Management has to provide a confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Such systems comprise a well-
established organisational structure and comprehensive
policies and standards. Areas of responsibilities for each
business and functional unit are clearly defined to ensure
effective checks and balances.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for
publication. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on the major types of risks the Group
encounters. Business and functional units are responsible
for the assessment of individual types of risk arising under
their areas of responsibilities, the management of the risks
in accordance with risk management procedures and the
reporting on risk management. The Group maintains an
effective risk management framework through the setting
up of specialised management committees for the oversight
and monitoring of major risk areas and the establishment of
risk management departments for relevant functions of the
Group.

Risk management reports are submitted to the relevant
committees and ultimately to the Board or its delegated
Board committee for oversight and monitoring of various
types of risk associated with the Group’s businesses
and operations. The Group’s risk management policies
and major control limits are approved by the Board
or its delegated Board committee. Operating and risk
performance are monitored and reviewed against relevant
risk limits regularly according to established policies and
procedures.

Annual Assessment

The Group has implemented a robust risk management
and internal control framework with ongoing monitoring
and regular reporting of risk profiles, risk positions and
internal control issues to the Management and to the Board.
Based on the ongoing reviews and regular assessments,
the Management including the heads of business units,
financial control, risk management, compliance units and
operations management, and the senior management of the
key subsidiaries of the Group have evaluated the existing
status of the risk management and internal control system
and confirmed that they remain effective with reference
to the requirements of the CG Code of the Listing Rules.
These statements of Management have been reviewed and
endorsed by Internal Audit function, and reviewed and
confirmed by senior management of the Group.

The results of the 2023 review, which have been reported
to the AC and the Board, concluded that the Group’s risk

management and internal control systems were effective

and adequate.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has established an Internal Audit function. The
primary role of the Internal Audit function is to help the
Board and Management to protect the assets, reputation
and sustainability of the Group. The Internal Audit function
provides independent and objective assurance as to
whether the design and operational effectiveness of the
Group’s framework of risk management, control and
governance processes, as designed and represented by the
Management, is adequate.

Results of audit work together with an assessment of
the overall risk management and control framework are
reported to the AC or the Board as appropriate and at
least annually. The Internal Audit function also reviews the
Management’s action plans in response to audit findings
and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls
before formally closing audit issues.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the
independence of the Company’s external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), for performing the audit
of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only
when the Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner
and the independence and objectivity of PwC as the
Company’s external auditors can be maintained. Otherwise,

professional services from other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on
agreed-upon procedures, provided the Group non-audit
services during 2023 including review of tax returns and
computation, tax advisory services, review of the Group’s
interim financial disclosure, and review of the update
on the offering circular of Dah Sing Bank’s US$2 Billion
Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and independent
assessments of certain operational processes, risk
management and internal control of the Group.

The remuneration paid/payable to PwC in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2023 is

set out as follows:

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered for the Company (HK$’000)

Audit services 16,355

Non-audit services:

. Review of the updated Euro Medium Term Note Programme (the “Programme”) and 1,288
professional work on new subordinated note issue of Dah Sing Bank under the Programme

. Compliance reviews and independent assessments on operational risk management, 4,812
technology risk management, new IT system projects etc.

. Tax compliance review on taxation computation and advisory service on compliance with new 2,700
tax regulations relevant to the Group

. Others -

Total 25,155
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GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group places utmost importance on the ethical,
personal and professional standards of Directors and
employees of the Group. All employees are required to
adhere to various Group policies that reflect the core values
and corporate culture of the Group.

Code of Conduct

The Group has adopted a set of Code of Conduct for Staff
which sets out at its outset the culture and values that are
to be upheld at work. The Code of Conduct for Staff also lays
down the guidelines on ethical values and business conduct
that staff shall follow, which include anti-corruption policies
and measures to curb corruption such as extortion and
bribery. These are intended to help to ensure and sustain
legal and regulatory compliance and an effective control

environment.

Whistle-Blowing Policy

In maintaining and supporting the Group’s corporate values
and ethical standards, the Group has in place a Whistle-
Blowing Policy, which sets out procedures for its staff to
communicate and report, in confidence, material and bona
fide concerns or any violations. These communications can
be elevated to the Group AC and/or the Board (via the Group
AC).

Policy of Handling of Confidential and Price-
sensitive Inside Information

A Guideline on the Control and Disclosure of Inside
Information is in place, which sets out the guiding
principles, procedures and internal controls for the handling
of confidential inside information, and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner so as to allow all
stakeholders to be aware of the latest positions or price
sensitive information of the Group and its subsidiaries.

In addition, the Group has implemented the Policy on
Handling of Unpublished Price-sensitive Inside Information.
The policy adopts additional precautions which should be
taken by employees who are in possession of unpublished
and price-sensitive information or confidential information,
including identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information for stated purpose and on a
need-to-know basis only.

DIVERSITY
Board Diversity
Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in
December 2013 which is subject to annual review to ensure
its effectiveness. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board
in order to enhance the quality of its performance which
in turn should benefit the Company and its business as a
whole.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board in supporting the attainment
of its sustainable development. Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, independence and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the factors on personal attributes outlined above,
expectation on contribution to the Board, and the benefits
of diversity of the Board.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board had no female Board
member. Taking into consideration of gender diversity,
Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan has been appointed as an INED
of the Company with effect from 2 January 2024. The
Board currently has one female Board member. The Board
targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation and will consider opportunities to increase
the number of female members over time with the assistance
of the NRC in selecting and making recommendations on
suitable candidates for Board appointments, subject to the
availability of suitable candidates. The Board will endeavour
to achieve the appropriate gender diversity with reference to
local regulatory requirements/recommended best practices.
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Our Board Composition and Diversity:

Key Highlight: INED representation of 50%

Gender
INED Ratio ED (4)
Ethnicity Chinese (5)

Male (8)

Non-Chinese (3)

Age Group 41-60 (1) 61-65 (1) Over 65 (6)

Board T

0 Years) | Below3(1) 3-9(2) Over 9 (5)
Other listed

directorship

(no. of co.)

The Board, through the NRC, has reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board and the Board
Diversity Policy to ensure the composition of the Board
complies with the CG Code with an appropriate mix of skills,
experience and diversity that are relevant to the Company’s
strategy, governance and business and contributes to the
Board’s effectiveness and efficiency. The implementation of

Board Diversity Policy was considered effective.

Workforce Diversity

The Group is committed to creating an inclusive
environment for all employees. We have established
policies in our Code of Conduct for Staff and Policy on Equal
Opportunities on Employment in strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations that unequivocally prohibit
any form of discrimination, harassment, victimisation, or
vilification based on gender, pregnancy, breastfeeding,
marital status, disability, family status, or race. We ensure
decisions made with respect to recruitment, promotion and
any development opportunities are based on individual’s
qualifications and merits. We monitor our workforce
diversity on an on-going basis to maintain a balance mix.
To maintain diversity in our workplace, we have ongoing
monitoring on our diversity mix. For 2023, we have set a
target of 45%-55% for gender ratio in the workforce and
plan to maintain this target ratio. As at the end of 2023, we
achieved gender balance among our full-time employees
across the Group, with 53% women and 47% men.
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INDUCTION AND TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

A newly appointed Director is provided with a Director’s
induction handbook and materials relevant to the Company
and briefed by the Management to ensure that the Director
has a proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Group and that he or she is aware of his or her
responsibilities under the relevant laws and regulations.
The Company also organized continuous professional
development and training to its Directors to ensure that they
are fully aware of their responsibilities under the applicable
laws and regulations.

Directors participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. During the year, the Company has organized
board briefings for Directors. All Directors provided to the
Company Secretary a record of the training they received in
2023.

The Directors received trainings on the following areas during the year:

Training Areas

Regulatory/ Group’s Macroeconomics/
Corporate Business and Business/

Directors Governance Management Financial
INEDs
Robert Tsai-To Sze v 4 v
Seng-Lee Chan (retired on 2 January 2024) v v 4
Blair Chilton Pickerell 4 4 4
David Wai-Hung Tam v 4 v
EDs
David Shou-Yeh Wong v v -
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 4 4 4
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 4 4 4
Nicholas John Mayhew v 4 v

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own code for directors’
securities dealing (“Directors’ Dealing Code”) on terms no
less exacting than the prevailing required standard set out
in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) under Appendix C3 of the
Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry, the Directors
of the Company confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Directors’ Dealing Code during the year ended 31 December
2023.

All employees of the Group, including the senior
management and selected members of the employees, are
obliged to follow the Company’s restrictions on dealing
in securities, which are on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code, as set out in the Staff Securities Dealing Policy.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings, Audit Committee meetings, Nomination and Remuneration

Committee meetings and the Annual General Meeting held in 2023 are as follows:

Attended/eligible to attend

Attended
Nomination and Annual
Audit Remuneration General
Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
EDs
David Shou-Yeh Wong ete) 5/5 - 2/3 -
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 5/5 - - v
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 5/5 - - v
Nicholas John Mayhew 5/5 - - -
INEDs
Robert Tsai-To Sze 5/5 4/4 3/3 v
Seng-Lee Chan (retired on 2 January 2024) 5/5 4/4 3/3 v
Blair Chilton Pickerell 5/5 3/4 - v
David Wai-Hung Tam 5/5 - - v

Note: Pursuant to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the 2023 Annual General Meeting (the “2023 AGM”) of the Company held in Hong
Kong on 2 June 2023 as he was away from Hong Kong at that time. Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong), Vice Chairman, Managing Director

and Chief Executive of the Company, took the chair of the 2023 AGM.

SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Effective Communication

The Board attaches great importance to communication
with shareholders. The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The Chairman of the Board and all Directors
make a strong effort to attend. The Chairmen of the Board
Committees and a representative of the external auditors
also attend the AGM to take shareholders’ questions.

The Management holds group meetings with analysts in
connection with the Company’s annual and interim results.
Apart from the above, designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them abreast of the Company’s development, subject

to compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Moreover, the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com)
offers shareholders convenient access to the Company’s
financial information, announcements/circulars and
information on the Company’s corporate governance
structure and practices, in addition to business and
corporate social responsibility activities of the Group.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of the Company may put forth requisition to convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) of the Company.

The requisition must (i) state the objectives of the meeting,
(i) be signed by the requisitionist(s) and (iii) be deposited
at the Company’s registered office at 26th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong or in electronic form. It may also consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionist(s).
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The requisition must also state (i) the name(s) of the
requisitionist(s), (ii) the contact details of the requisitionist(s)
and (iii) the number of ordinary shares of the Company held
by the requisitionist(s).

The Directors must proceed to convene an EGM within
21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition. Such
meeting should be held on a date not more than 28 days
after the date on which the notice convening the meeting is
given.

If the Directors fail to convene the EGM as aforesaid, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of 3 months from the date of the
deposit of the requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
by reason of the failure of the Directors to duly convene
a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders representing not less than 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all shareholders, or not less than
50 shareholders, who are entitled to vote on a resolution at

a general meeting, may:
- put forward a proposal at a general meeting

- circulate to other shareholders a written statement
with respect to matters to be dealt with at a general

meeting

Shareholders may refer to section 580 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for
further details on the shareholder qualifications and the
procedures and timeline in connection with the above.

Submission of enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office at 26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. Questions
about the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining on
ongoing dialogue with the Company’s shareholders and has
adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy which sets
out the framework to promote effective communication
with shareholders and to enable them to engage actively
with the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders
in an informed manner and is subject to review on an annual
basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company communicates with its shareholders and the
investment community through a wide range of channels
and means including publications (e.g. annual reports,
interim reports, notices, circulars, and announcements),
website (e.g. publication posted on the Company’s website
including the ESG reports), and in person (attending
shareholders meetings and analyst briefings or press

conference).

Having taken note of the multiple channels in place for
shareholders to communicate their views, the Board
considered that the Shareholders Communication Policy
was appropriate and effective.

The Policy is available on the website of Dah Sing Bank
(www.dahsing.com).

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend policy aims to pay sustainable
dividends over time. In determining dividend distribution,
the Company takes into account factors such as general
business conditions, financial results, business growth
prospects, capital requirements, regulatory requirements
applicable to the Company’s businesses, shareholders’
interests and any other factors the Directors consider to be
relevant.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not changed its constitutional documents
in 2023.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. These
objectives are achieved through adherence to proper Board
processes and the timely preparation and dissemination
to Directors comprehensive Board meeting agendas and
papers. Minutes of all meetings of the Board and Board
Committees are prepared and maintained to record in
sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached by the Board or Board Committees, including
any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any
Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board Committees are sent to Directors or
Board Committee members as appropriate for comments,
approval and records. Board records are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary who possesses the relevant
qualifications and experience pursuant to the requirements
of Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary had
taken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to update his skills and knowledge during the financial year
ended 31 December 2023.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the continuing connected transactions as set
out in Note 43 to the financial statements, all the INEDs
of the Company have reviewed the said transactions and
confirmed that the said transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(2)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(3)  inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company.

Further, the Company has engaged its external auditors,
PwC, to report on the Company’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PwC has issued an
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions set out
in Note 43 to the financial statements in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter needs to be submitted by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

In addition to focusing on the strategic development of its businesses, the Group embraces its responsibilities for the
advancement of Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) initiatives in the way it conducts its businesses and how it
engages its stakeholders. The Group actively strives to promote environmental protection, corporate sustainability and engage
with communities.

Sustainability considerations are embedded in our business strategy and operations. The Group strives to stay abreast of
evolving market trends and enhances the sustainability practices proactively. The Group’s ESG strategy guides its sustainability
focus and efforts in the key areas outlined below to drive continuous improvements and to create a more sustainable and
resilient future for itself as well as our society at large.

ESG Governance — Establish ESG positioning under Board’s oversight

Governance Establish clear accountability on ESG oversight and strategy implementation
Communication Regularly communicate our ESG initiatives to our internal and external stakeholders
Reporting Continuously improve disclosure quality and performance tracking

Marketplace — Prioritise Green and Sustainable Banking (“GSB”) and differentiate with small and medium enterprises

(“SMEs”) focus

Green and Sustainable Banking Build capacity, raise GSB awareness and establish our green product shelves

SME Support Increase outreach to and assist SMEs in ESG transition

Customer Focus Improve customer experience and reinforce customer centricity

Digitalisation Optimise customer experience and operational impact through digital transformation

Workplace — Build an engaged workforce to enhance employee loyalty

Culture and Ethical Behaviours Promote ethical behaviours to uphold the Group’s Culture and Values

Training and Development Enhance organisation and leadership capabilities for future-ready workforce

Health and Well-being Promote health awareness and provide flexible and healthy work environment

Community — Enrich our community strategy to enhance impact

Youth Education Support youth education with a focus on STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art
and Mathematics) and targeting under-privileged children

Youth Sports Promote sports as a means of nurturing all-round youth development

ESG Awareness Raise the awareness of ESG matters in the community for promoting sustainable

development

Volunteering Engage our employees to contribute to the society through volunteering activities

Environment — Sharpen our focus on environmental Key Performance Indicators for strategic impact and operational
efficiency

Environmental Footprint Reduce our environmental footprint and influence our supply chain

Paperless Reduce paper consumption through digitalising operational processes and engaging

customers on digital adoption

Staff Awareness and Engagement Promote environmental conservation to our staff for a greener planet
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We continuously seek to integrate our ESG Strategy into the Group’s overarching business objectives. We aim to efficiently
allocate resources to maximise value creation for our stakeholders and fostering sustainable growth which benefits all parties
involved. In 2023, the Group systematically implemented its ESG strategy in its business decisions and actions with notable

achievements made across the Group as outlined below:

Marketplace:

Commenced the implementation of greenness
assessment framework as an onboarding criteria for
borrowers in 7 carbon-intensive industries

Rolled out 9 and 5 additional ESG investment funds
in Dah Sing Bank and Banco Comercial de Macau
(“BCM”) respectively to offer more fund choices

Workplace:

Launched the first Dah Sing Cultureland platform
to foster staff awareness and understanding of our
culture and values

Provided 703 hours of training to equip employees
with knowledge regarding climate-related risk and
green and sustainable finance

Community:

A total of 1,206 volunteers contributed 3,633
volunteering hours

1,359 individuals benefited from our community
programmes and activities

Expanded the scale of Dah Sing Charity Score
Challenge by 69% in number of participants, to raise
funds for Operation Santa Claus

Environment:

Engaged 5,216 customers to reduce paper
consumption through Mastercard Priceless Planet
Coalition Programme and contributed to planting of
5,216 trees as a result

17% reduction in paper usage, compared to 2020

Launched and developed a proprietary product
recommendation engine, “Next Best Action”, which
analyses our customers’ financial habits to predict
their financial needs and was awarded the Certificate
of Merit in “Hong Kong Information ICT Awards
2023 - Fintech (Applied Solutions) Award”

Completed a programme of digital banking platform
upgrade in 2023, which focused on enhancing
customer experience through innovative solutions and
expanding transaction capabilities on the platform

Award recognition in the “SportsHour Company
Scheme” by the Inspiring Hong Kong Sports
Foundation for promoting physical activities of
employees outside the workplace, as well as engaging
with local charities and communities to support
athletes

92,814 training hours conducted in 2023

Co-organised a five-month “Metaverse ArtTech
Creation Course 2023” with Chinese YMCA of Hong
Kong to provide ArtTech training, immersive digital art
experiences, and a public digital art display to around
80 primary and secondary students

BCM collaborated with Macau China Bowling
Association and co-sponsored the Youth Bowling
Training Programme with Macau Insurance Company
for 32 local students aged 10-18 years old, of which 16
outstanding performers joined as contestants to the
BCM Bowling Open Competition which attracted 144
contestants

Replaced fluorescent tubes with energy-efficient LED
lighting in two branches in Hong Kong

The ESG Report 2023 provides an annual update on the initiatives, plans and performance of the Group in ESG aspects during the
year. During the year, the Group has complied with all applicable disclosure requirements and provisions of the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2023. In addition, the ESG
Report 2023 is prepared with reference to the IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures. For more details of the Group’s sustainability
initiatives during the year, please refer to the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2023, which is published
on the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com) (About Us - Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) - ESG Report &
Achievement).
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(the “Company”) is banking investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26
to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of
the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the reporting period by business and
geographical segments are set out in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 113.

The Board declared an interim dividend of HKS$0.11 per
share and a total of HK$154,632,734.52 in cash was paid on
21 September 2023.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.49 per share in cash, totalling HK$688,818,544.68.

For determining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting:

Latest time to lodge transfers

Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)

Record date

Annual General Meeting

4:30 p.m. on 27 May 2024 (Monday)

28 May 2024 (Tuesday) to 31 May 2024 (Friday)

31 May 2024 (Friday)

31 May 2024 (Friday)

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed final dividend*:

Latest time to lodge transfers

Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)

Record date

Expected final dividend payment date

4:30 p.m. on 6 June 2024 (Thursday)

7 June 2024 (Friday) to 12 June 2024 (Wednesday)

12 June 2024 (Wednesday)

20 June 2024 (Thursday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Shareholders, no share transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,

Hong Kong before the relevant latest time to lodge transfers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Review
of Operations” of this Annual Report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing can also be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and the “Review of Operations” of this Annual Report. The
objectives and policies of financial risk management and
the risk management structure and framework of the Group
can be found in the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” of this Annual Report. Particulars of important
events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the financial year (if any) can be found in the “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements”. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the “Review of
Operations” of this Annual Report. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance and
also relationships with the key stakeholders and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group can be found in the “Corporate
Governance Report” of this Annual Report and the 2023
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “2023
ESG Report”). The “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” also contain description of the management
structures and framework to ensure compliance with
various laws and regulations which are applicable to the
Group. The above sections form part of this Report of the
Directors.

The 2023 ESG Report is issued as a separate report
concurrently with this Annual Report and both reports are
also published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and Dah Sing Bank
(www.dahsing.com).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares of the Company issued during the
year are shown in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$1,929,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Seng-Lee Chan*
(retired on 2 January 2024)

Blair Chilton Pickerell*

David Wai-Hung Tam*

Paul Franz Winkelmann*
(appointed with effect from 2 January 2024)

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan*
(appointed with effect from 2 January 2024)

Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)*
(appointed with effect from 2 January 2024)

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

*

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Directors retiring by rotation in accordance with
Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of Association are
Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) and Mr. Blair Chilton
Pickerell who, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann, Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan and
Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung) who were appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Directors on 2 January 2024 will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles
of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting.
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The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors as regards
their continued independence while serving as members of
the Board of Directors during the year. The Company still
considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are set out in the circular to the
shareholders sent together with this Annual Report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION WITH REGARD TO
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in
information required to be disclosed by the Directors since
the publication of the 2023 Interim Report of the Company
(or, where applicable as regards Director appointed
subsequent thereto, since the date of announcement for
appointment) and up to the date of this Annual Report are
set out below:

(a) Mr.David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

- Stepped down as a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited and Dah Sing Bank,
Limited with effect from 1 January 2024 and the
Company with effect from 2 January 2024

(b) Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

- Decrease of fixed remuneration by HK$145,300
per month with effect from 1 January 2024

(c) Mr.Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

- Appointed as the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited with effect from 6 November
2023

- Appointed as a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited and Dah Sing Bank,
Limited with effect from 1 January 2024 and the
Company with effect from 2 January 2024

(d) Mr.Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Stepped down as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and remains as a member of the
Audit Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited and Dah Sing Bank, Limited with effect
from 1 January 2024 and the Company with
effect from 2 January 2024

- Appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited with effect from 1 January 2024 and the
Company with effect from 2 January 2024

- Director’s fee revised to HK$790,000 per annum
(including remuneration from a subsidiary) with
effect from 1 January 2024

(e) Mr.David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Appointed as a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited and the Company with effect from
1 January 2024 and 2 January 2024 respectively

- Resigned as a member of the Risk Management
and Compliance Committee of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited with effect from 1 January 2024

- Director’s fee revised to HK$520,000 per annum

with effect from 1 January 2024

(f)  Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Ceased as a member of the Banking Industry
Training Advisory Committee on 31 December
2023

- Took up the Chairman role of the Board of
Governors of World Green Organisation with
effect from 1 February 2024

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information

required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable within 1 year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on
the boards of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this Report of the Directors is
provided in the “Directors of Subsidiaries” section which

follows this Report of the Directors.

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which were required to be notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”)
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they have taken on or are deemed to have
acquired under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required pursuant to the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or as otherwise required to be notified
to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers and
the code of conduct for directors’ securities dealing adopted
by the Company (collectively the “Securities Model Code”)

were as follows:

Percentage of

interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total total number of

Directors interests interests interests interests issued shares
David Shou-Yeh Wong - 1,045,626,9551) - 1,045,626,955 74.38%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 2,884,691 - - 2,884,691 0.21%
Nicholas John Mayhew 4,491,076 - - 4,491,076 0.32%
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Percentage of

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total total number of

Directors interests interests interests interests issued shares
David Shou-Yeh Wong 173,4600) 137,285,682 - 137,459,142 43.01%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 39,7710 - - 39,771 0.01%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 107,063®) - - 107,063 0.03%
Nicholas John Mayhew 197,986%) - - 197,986 0.06%
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Percentage of

Bank of Chongqing Co., Ltd. - A shares interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total total number of

Director interests interests interests interests issued shares
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 7,100 - - 7,100 0.00%
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Notes:

Such shares included the indirect corporate interests of David Shou-Yeh Wong in the Company under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his
beneficial interests of 43.01% in Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”) which currently holds a controlling interest of 74.37% in the
Company and interests in the shares of the Company held through a company controlled by David Shou-Yeh Wong.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 934,691 ordinary shares of the Company; (b) interests in share options in respect of
450,000 underlying shares of the Company as disclosed under the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its Associated
Corporation”; and (c) deemed interests in 1,500,000 notional underlying shares of the Company relating to cash-settled share-based
incentive options granted by the Company as explained in note (4) below.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 2,541,076 ordinary shares of the Company; (b) interests in share options in respect
of 450,000 underlying shares of the Company as disclosed under the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its Associated
Corporation”; and (c) deemed interests in 1,500,000 notional underlying shares of the Company relating to cash-settled share-based
incentive options granted by the Company as explained in note (4) below.

The Company had established a cash-settled share-based incentive option scheme as a long-term incentive plan to incentivize employees
on 20 March 2018. The rights granted under the scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing from the first
anniversary of the date of grant. Subject to the satisfaction of performance appraisal factors, the grantees may exercise their vested
options. No shares of the Company will be issued to the grantees of the options under the scheme which is essentially a deferred cash
incentive scheme linked to the performance of the grantees and the share price of the Company.

The personal interests were in respect of share awards granted under the Share Award Scheme of DSFH. Details are set out in the section
headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its Associated Corporation”.

The corporate interests were in respect of shares held by a corporation in which the director controls one third or more of the voting

powers at general meetings and shares held by companies under a family discretionary trust. HSBC International Trustee Limited is the
trustee of a family discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

Save as disclosed above and the details as disclosed under

All the interests stated above represented long positions.
As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company held any short positions as
defined under the SFO which are required to be recorded in
the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and

short positions.

the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its
Associated Corporation”, as at 31 December 2023, none of
the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
SEHK pursuant to the Securities Model Code.
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SHARE SCHEMES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

(a) The Company

I

Share option scheme

On 27 May 2014, the shareholders of the
Company approved the adoption of a share
option scheme (the “DSBG Share Option
Scheme”).

In accordance with the requirements of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), a summary of the DSBG Share

Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the scheme:

The purpose of the scheme is to attract,
motivate and retain high quality executives
to contribute to the Group’s business and

growth.

(2)  Participants of the scheme:

Eligible participants of the scheme
included directors and employees holding
supervisory positions in the Company and
its subsidiaries.

(3)  Total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors:

The number of shares available for issue
under the scheme is 70,076,781 shares,
representing 4.99% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this Report of the Directors.

(4)  Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme:

No share options may be granted to any
eligible person which, if exercised, would
result in such eligible person becoming

entitled to subscribe for such number of

shares as, when aggregated with the total
number of shares already issued or to
be issued to him under all share options
granted to him in the 12-month period up
to and including the offer date of relevant
share options, exceed 1% of the shares
in issue at such date. Any grant of further
share options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the scheme
and the Listing Rules as amended from

time to time.

(5)  Period within which the option may be
exercised by the grantee:

The exercise period is determined by
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of the
Company, and is specified when related
share options are granted. Shares under
the share options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant. All the
existing share options granted under the
scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting
in 5 equal tranches between the first and
fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(6)  Vesting period of options granted:

The vesting period is determined by
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of the
Company, and is specified when related
share options are granted. None of the
existing share options granted under the
scheme shall be exercisable within one
year from the date of grant.
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(7) Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of
an option is HKS1 and must be made
within 21 days upon offer of granting
of share options or the date on which
the conditions (if any) for the offer are
satisfied.

(8)  Basis of determining the exercise price of
options granted:

The exercise price per option share
is concluded by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set
out in Rule 17.03E of the Listing Rules and
is determined as no less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s

shares traded on the SEHK on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares traded on the
SEHK for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of the scheme:

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from
27 May 2014 and expiring at the close of
26 May 2024.

The number of share options available for grant
under the DSBG Share Option Scheme as at
both 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 was
68,876,781.

The particulars of interests in options to

subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company
granted under the DSBG Share Option Scheme
and information that is required to be disclosed

in accordance with the Listing Rules are set out

below:

Number of the Company’s shares underlying the options

Cancelled/
Outstanding lapsed/ Outstanding Exercise Exercise
Date of grant asat Granted Exercised forfeited asat price period®

Grantee (D/M/Y) 1/1/2023  during2023 during2023 during2023  31/12/2023 (HKS) (D/M/Y)
Directors

Gary Pak-Ling Wang 26/04/2018 450,000 - - - 450,000 1824 26/04/2019 -

26/04/2024

Nicholas John Mayhew 26/04/2018 450,000 - - - 450,000 1824 26/04/2019-

26/04/2024

Aggregate of 26/04/2018 300,000 - - - 300,000 1824  26/04/2019-

other employees®? 26/04/2024

Notes:

(1) Allthe existing share options granted under the DSBG Share Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches between

the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(2)  Share options were granted to certain eligible employees, who are directors, senior executives or officers of the major operating

subsidiaries of the Company and are working under employment contracts that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purpose of

the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

(3) Details of the computation of the fair value of options at the date of grant and the accounting standard and policy adopted are shown in

Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

99



100

1.

R1758 51 )

RATEEGH202159898 (MR4 8 ) # /&
B amBAn SEEh 51 81 (T AFTIRT TE B RS BBt
g o

IRIECERRANZ R » AHTIRITE BAR(A 12D
ST

(1) FEBE:

SEMBENEERBETSHAZERS
BE  LHBRERREREAERR
EBER-

(2) FEIHBEA:

SERERSEASRERN—(IFAERE
FNEE » NAERBE T REEREMAK

%\o

(3) EEIFEFERENBOEHURERARE
EERESERRLEETROBENE D
=
RAEEGREEHH > IERENRML LR
AT #8134,200,0008% (T K EEITEE
B 1) > (AR BB B ITRIDAEEN
3% ° (EETEIIE PR ARRMHBEEDE
TR K,/ AR R BREMES » BE
SHAABREZ2ABAAMETEARFEKR
FIRTTEEERRAS ©

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

(4) FEIPESR2EAPERED LR :

REREFEA2EANAMIBITEELZE
AP AR P i#B4E7,000,0008% ©

(5) RLEBHFREE

BED RERAMEGEARDEETE
FHARRRE » LR T HEERROE
TESZRAR P RRR o

(6) ERFIEZRBANTEUKRMARIER
MRBYHAIREEZ B RAERRAIEAR

(1) BHERRMNEEENEEEE:

.
it o
AN

(8) FTEIHARANU :

stEIH2021E9 9B EESHI0ERBY » &
2031F9H8HE M ©

BRI EEE2023F12831H1E » RS
RIBEAFIRITE B RPN ST EIIZ W © 1220234
1A18k2023%F 12 A31 HIBE XM IRTTEE KD
LRSI EI A% 2 #3% B 15 B E $9742,000,000

Bg e



1.

Share award scheme

The Board of the Company approved and
adopted a share award scheme (the “DSBG
Share Award Scheme”) on 9 September 2021
(the “Adoption Date”).

In accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, a summary of the DSBG Share
Award Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the scheme:

The purpose of the scheme is to
recognize the contribution or value of
certain participants and to motivate
and incentivize them in furtherance of
the long-term business objectives of the
Group.

(2)  Participants of the scheme:

Eligible participants of the scheme
included any director or employee of the
Company or any other member of the
Group.

(3)  Total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors:

The total number of shares that may be
awarded shall not exceed 42,000,000
shares of the Company (the “DSBG Award
Shares”), representing approximately 3%
of the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this Report
of the Directors. Under the scheme, the
trustee may acquire issued shares on-
market and/or subscribe new shares from
the Company and hold the DSBG Award
Shares respectively on trust for selected
participants during the trust period.

(4)  Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme:

The total number of the DSBG Award
Shares granted to each participant
shall not exceed 7,000,000 shares of the
Company from time to time.

(5)  Vesting period of awards granted under
the scheme:

The vesting period, criteria and other
conditions is determined by the Board
of the Company or its delegate, and are
specified in the award letter when related
share awards are granted.

(6) Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the award and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid:

Nil.

(7)  Basis of determining the purchase price of
shares awarded:

Nil.

(8)  Remaining life of the scheme:

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of 10 years commencing from
9 September 2021 and expiring at the
close of 8 September 2031.

During the period from the Adoption Date
to 31 December 2023, no share awards were
granted under the DSBG Share Award Scheme.
The number of share awards available for grant
under the DSBG Share Award Scheme as at
both 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 was
42,000,000.
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(b) Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, the
holding company of the Company

I

Share option scheme

On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”) approved

the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“DSFH Share Option Scheme”).

In accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, a summary of the DSFH Share
Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)

Purpose of the scheme:

The purpose of the scheme is to provide
an incentive and/or reward to grantees
for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the
DSFH group.

Participants of the scheme:

Any director, manager, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial or
supervisory position in DSFH group of
companies as the Board may in its sole
discretion determine to be eligible to
participate in the scheme.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors:

The number of shares available for issue
under the scheme is 15,978,755 shares,
representing 5% of the total number of
issued shares of DSFH as at the date of
this Report of the Directors.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme:

No share options may be granted to any
eligible person which, if exercised, would
result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of
shares as, when aggregated with the total
number of shares already issued or to
be issued to him under all share options
granted to him in the 12-month period up
to and including the offer date of relevant
share options, exceed 1% of the shares

in issue at such date. Any grant of further
share options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the scheme
and the Listing Rules as amended from
time to time.

Period within which the option may be
exercised by the grantee:

The exercise period is determined by
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of
DSFH, and is specified when related share
options are granted. Shares under the
share options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant.

Vesting period of options granted:

The vesting period for the options is
determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSFH, and is specified when
related share options are granted.

Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of
an option is HK$1 and must be made
within 21 days upon offer of granting
of share options or the date on which
the conditions (if any) for the offer are
satisfied.

Basis of determining the exercise price of
options granted:

The exercise price per option share
is concluded by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSFH on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out
in Rule 17.03E of the Listing Rules and
is determined as no less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of DSFH’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant;
and (ii) the average closing price of
DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the
5 business days immediately preceding
the date of grant.
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1.

(9)  Remaining life of the scheme:

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from
27 May 2015 and expiring at the close of
26 May 2025.

No share options had been granted under the
DSFH Share Option Scheme from the date of
its adoption to 31 December 2023. The number
of share options available for grant under the
DSFH Share Option Scheme as at both 1 January
2023 and 31 December 2023 was 15,978,755.

Share award scheme

The Board of DSFH approved and adopted a
share award scheme (the “DSFH Share Award
Scheme”) on 9 September 2021, which was
further updated and amended on 30 March
2022.

In accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, a summary of the DSFH Share
Award Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the scheme:

The purpose of the scheme is to
recognize the contribution or value of
certain participants and to motivate and
incentivize them in furtherance of the
long-term business objectives of the DSFH

group.

(2)  Participants of the scheme:

Any director or employee of DSFH or
any other member of the DSFH group of
companies is eligible to participate in the
scheme.

(3)  Total number of shares available for grant
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors:

The total number of shares that may be
granted shall not exceed 9,600,000 shares
of DSFH (the “DSFH Award Shares”),

representing approximately 3% of the

total number of issued shares of DSFH as
at the date of this Report of the Directors.
Under the scheme, the trustee may
acquire issued shares on-market and/
or subscribe new shares from DSFH and
hold the DSFH Award Shares on trust for
selected participants during the trust
period.

(4)  Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme:

The total number of the DSFH Award
Shares granted to each participant shall
not exceed 1,600,000 shares of DSFH from
time to time.

(5)  Vesting period of awards granted:

The vesting period, criteria and other
conditions is determined by the Board of
DSFH or its delegate, and are specified
in the award letter when related share
awards are granted.

(6) Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the award and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid:

Nil.

(7)  Basis of determining the purchase price of
shares awarded:

Nil.

(8)  Remaining life of the scheme:

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of 10 years commencing from
9 September 2021 and expiring at the
close of 8 September 2031.

The number of share awards available for
grant under the DSFH Share Award Scheme as
at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 was
9,222,800 and 8,376,938 respectively.
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Particulars of share awards granted under the DSFH Share Award Scheme and information that is required to be
disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules are set out below:

Number of DSFH Award Shares

Dateof  Outstanding Granted Vested Forfeited/  Outstanding Vesting

grant asat during during  lapsed during asat period

Grantee (D/MJY) 1/1/2023 2023 2023 2023 31/12/2023 (D/M]Y)

Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong 03/04/2023 - 173,460 - - 173460  03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 03/04/2023 - 39,771 - - 39,771 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026

Gary Pak-Ling Wang 03/04/2023 - 107,063 - - 107,063 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026@

Nicholas John Mayhew 06/12/2022 72,700 - 14,540 - 58,160  06/12/2022 -
06/12/20271

03/04/2023 - 125,286 - - 125,286 03/04/2023 -
06/12/2026"

Aggregate of other employees® 06/12/2022 304,500 - 60,220 2,920 241360  06/12/2022 -
06/12/2027W

03/04/2023 - 403,02 - - 403202 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026

Notes:

(1)  Share awards granted on 6 December 2022 are vested in 5 equal tranches between the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(2)  Share awards granted on 3 April 2023 are vested in 3 tranches between the first and third anniversaries from the date of grant.

(3)  Share awards were granted to certain eligible employees of DSFH Group, who are directors or employees of DSFH or any other member of

the DSFH group of companies.

(4)  On 3 April 2023, DSFH granted a total of 848,782 DSFH Award Shares. The closing price of the DSFH shares on 31 March 2023 (being the
business day immediately before 3 April 2023 on which the DSFH Award Shares were granted) was HK$20.15 per share. The award shares

granted are existing issued shares to be acquired by the trustee of the DSFH Share Award Scheme from the market.

(5)  The weighted average closing price of the shares of DSFH immediately before the date on which the DSFH Award Shares were vested
during the year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$15.98.

(6) No DSFH Award Shares were cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2023.

(7) Details of the computation of the fair value of awards at the date of grant and the accounting standard and policy adopted are shown in

Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

107



108

AR N TR FERRIED

FRa Bt st B R AR (D BB 51 8PS L XX PRI EESh » AR ~ H 1220235128318 » U FAL (RRABESRITBAER 2 #
MEAE  HRRNBRABDREIER AR N ER S FARIL mER ESRERRIN RARBRM ARG T - FAEER
R LRI AN o BRI S R EA GG EXVEBE336(F R EF BRI RIS

BT U R IE RN A BRI RE

HBBT
FRrFRRISEE, Rin4EE
&8 g1 B&in Z HE s = e
THREZ AERBHEE BT REREAMEREEE R 1,045,626,955 74.38%
AMEMERERAT EmiEm 1,045,461,643 74.37%
(TRFrER)
THE B MR AT A S A E RS R 1,049,200,188@ 74.64%
EZERETERAR S AR EE#E R 1,045,461,643%) 74.37%
(CEZ{=ET)
G
(1) ZEROBIRESHEERE2EY  EREREETENANSH Y TERFFENATIEMBRANZER B SR EFEABEHIER
SEERENATEG o TREZAILERERRIEFE 2 HEMIELIRE - KSR TPER Dt &S RTHESES IREPIEEE
AABEAER o
() FTHEZEFEIENANATL038545REBRBMHES ; BEAATBHURESZNRNHAER L HBRREMRREFTELAAT
2,700,000 R 1ERARR 1A 2 1% ; RIBB(BESRIBERAD) E3R R R AR ERAN AR HEHT XA ELEHFTEZAAT
1,045,461,6430RBR A1 » FFEBZELZITTA o
B) WEERMBAFESRERAD Z ZERETHELESEUTFEFAETAZRES ST RETIASHEIETE « ELEHTAERSR
HigZ AR A AASERROTELIKRE  HRRAEN DM E SR ITHER R B E TR CEERS —EPIRE -
@)  EEEDLIREAATN20235E12831 82 BEITIMNEETE o

PR EMUREEE SN > 122023128310 » BIEAMA TR ARB RN RABERN T - FEERABRE(GES ARG RG] BXVER
F336FREFENRRER T M T ULHTIBER QBB EAEZIRE ©

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R



EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes and share award
schemes as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company, its subsidiaries, its
fellow subsidiaries or its holding company during the year or

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2023, the following are the persons, other
than the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company
whose interests are disclosed above, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of

subsisted at the end of the year.

Name

the Company as recorded in the register of shareholders’
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the
Company.

Percentage of

Number of interestsin
shares held/ the total
Interests number of
Capacity in shares issued shares®

Christine Yen Wong Deemed interests by virtue of her spouse having 1,045,626,955 74.38%
a notifiable interest
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited  Beneficial interests 1,045,461,643 74.37%
(“DSFH”)
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong Beneficial interests and deemed interests in 1,049,200,188? 74.64%
shares indirectly held by trustee
HSBC International Trustee Limited  Trustee and corporate interests 1,045,461,643% 74.37%
(“HSBCIT”)
Notes:

(1)

(4)

Such shares represented the deemed share interests of Christine Yen Wong by virtue of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a
substantial shareholder of DSFH which held a controlling corporate interest in the relevant share capital of the Company and interests in
the Company held through a company in which David Shou-Yeh Wong has a controlling interest. Christine Yen Wong was taken to have
a duty of disclosure in respect of the deemed interests in the Company. These interests comprised the same interests of David Shou-Yeh
Wong under the heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

The interests of Harold Tsu-Hing Wong comprised of interests in 1,038,545 ordinary shares of the Company; deemed interests in 2,700,000
notional underlying shares of the Company relating to the cash-settled share-based incentive options granted by the Company; and
deemed interests pursuant to section 322 of the SFO in 1,045,461,643 shares of the Company held by DSFH and HSBCIT through a family
discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

Such shares represented DSFH’s corporate interests in the Company indirectly held by HSBCIT in trust for a family discretionary trust of
which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor. HSBCIT was taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to the relevant shares of the Company
held through companies of which it has control. The relevant shares have been included in the “Corporate interests” of David Shou-Yeh
Wong as disclosed under the heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

The percentage of interests was calculated with reference to the total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no other persons had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of shareholders’ interests required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the Company.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

109



110

EFMNMBARNEBNEBEERS « RHHER
ZE KD

PR AR U A EIBSRS » ALERA AT EHAMMAR
5 HWBASNERRATEN LR EEXS « ZH
&4 AATEENEAMENSELEES IR E
K o

EHEFRTRERN

RIEARATEBERMAIRTE » T(REMEA)) (55622F) &
AREEEHZERT  SREZMRSHRAEMETERBER
HEFERNEMSEMNEIIBRZFEELIET 19
BREESAATUEEERE AADEATEREEKRS
MAELZHBEENEERSHAESERE -

fEE - WERERES
HE2023F12831HIEFE » ARBHETMAKNBE AT I HE
fBE - HERBELIEAAARZ EhiESs °

BESN

HE2023F 128310 IEEE » ARBWEMRESIHTAEKR
R EE R NFE RS ERTHEL °

AR G

HRBCATER) (55622F5) 585291 ~ 297 K299t » & A
B 22023 F 12 B31 H 2 n] 1k 5% {3 8 % 616,724,000 78 7T
(20224 : 561,759,00037T) ©

RER 5

HZE2023F 12831 HILFEHRE > AEBBEHERAEA T
S5 ) BEN R A MFSERERMEE43 o

RIRITEEBRAT) 2023FF4R

FEER

EE2023F 12831 IEFEHA - L130% 2 BIAKRE
thEBRARBAEEREEZ EH5RER
REARFTIRE

MAERABFEZ ARBENRAATEEEMN » ZABEH
FIRIB(EBRRDFIREZ ARFFRE ©

hEMFHEN

FEMBESFAMZER - EEREREHIINEFRZ
MRAESE I ©

(BERMESXBFIARARES LHRANZET
B2 ARV BREAEBR(EBHARZMARQBRS
EHRANBRZREFRE ©

2

FEEMBBREACKBERBKEGHMEBIERL » 2K
FEmeER > BRTEREBEL EREZRIBFERE
o R 2SREEEIAKEE S NEF AR ATLE
EMRYEERZE o AABTEBREIFA LB IR N TILIED -

AERgW
ETFE
E=

&7 > 2024F3H28H



DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company,
its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director and officer shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
(to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)) which he/she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2023,
calculated under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), amounted to HK$616,724,000
(2022: HK$561,759,000).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been set out in
Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group derived
less than 30% of interest income and other operating

income from its 5 largest customers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last 5 years are included in the section headed
“Financial Summary” of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES GOVERNING
THE LISTING OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors
in the preceding 3 years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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MEBARES
DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

REE2023F 128318 EFEREE20245F34 The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the

28H (B A ABI 2 AFEESTEREEZHH) LLH subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023

B HAEXRABZNB AR ESENEE 2 HS and up to 28 March 2024, being the date of the Report of the Directors of

mr Company for the year, are set out below:

(=T R FHES) (in alphabetical order)

FREES CHAN Ha-Fong Nancy

RS CHAN Ho-Tong (Tom CHAN)

FRef CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick

ek fs 7 > CHAN Seng-Lee*

PR AEEX CHAN Cliff Wai-Kin

1w & CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

fRAg) 1 CHEN Yi-Chuan (Rawson CHEN)*

BRI CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)

RESE CHEUNG Kin-Sang (Alex CHEUNG)

BER CHOW Chi-Leung Cristo

F5IKRA FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

(= HO Ka-Yeung Eric

S et Paul Michael KENNEDY

EIER = LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

2k LAU Pak-Hung

RER LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)

FRE LI Richard Tsung-Yung

BE MA Yuen-Lai Barbara

B2EZ MAO Chi-Dor (Johnny MAO)

e Nicholas John MAYHEW

*HhE Blair Chilton PICKERELL

T POON Clement

& SZE Tsai-To Robert

Ey i TAM Wai-Hung David

FE%E WANG Pak-Ling Gary

R Paul Franz WINKELMANN

=EE WONG Chit-Kwan (Vincent WONG)

WONG Edmond WONG Edmond

=EE WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)

S WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

FrE WONG Shou-Yeh David

FrHH WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

EEO YAN Yun-Shum Grace

RRE YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

* BT/ FTEETARATEHANBASES * Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
BF5 o subsidiary(ies) of the Company.
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IRl
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

EZ 2023512 H31H L For the year ended 31 December 2023

PisE
LB TF (05T HKS’000 Note 2023 2022
FBWA Interest income 7 11,485,605 6,964,602
FMEZH Interest expense 7 (6,670,170)  (2,581,542)
BFHBURA Net interest income 4,815,435 4,383,060
IRFEE R AREUA Fee and commission income 8 1,078,967 2,432,747
IR E R AEZH Fee and commission expense 8 (212,165) (183,652)
FERFERASTUIA Net fee and commission income 866,802 2,249,095
R ZUA Net trading income 9 164,843 142,852
HAhEEWA Other operating income 10 69,004 51,263
EEWA Operating income 5,916,084 6,826,270
EESH Operating expenses 11 (3,168,897)  (3,016,010)
bR RERER 2 EE iR Operating profit before impairment losses 2,747,187 3,810,260
EERERE Credit impairment losses 14 (731,311) (803,100)
N ETFRERETEEE Operating profit before gains and losses
d 600 g Ayl on certain investments and fixed assets 2,015,876 3,007,160
HETEREMEEEEZ Net gain/(loss) on disposal of premises and
Bl (B518) other fixed assets 2,828 (2,451)
WEMEANTERE 2 FEE Net loss on fair value adjustment of investment
properties (41,087) (38,311)
HELUBERA AT RN EMEBEE Net gain on disposal of financial assets at
G amortised cost - 24
YN+ | Share of results of an associate 688,957 656,691
BE NGB 2 RBEREE Impairment loss on the investment in
an associate 24 (552,000) (1,683,000)
REIHEHEARIRE ZEIE Loss on deemed disposal of investment in
an associate (10) (10)
FEIE R HIERE - 2E4E Share of results of jointly controlled entities 27,014 29,879
BRFR AR Profit before taxation 2,141,578 1,969,982
I8 Taxation 15 (281,272) (361,182)
AT RE(LEEGEF Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company 1,860,306 1,608,800
SRER Earnings per share
E=FIN Basic 17 HK$1.32 HK$1.14
#a Diluted 17 HK$1.23 HK$1.07
F19EEFENOE MG EMBRER L — The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
gl o financial statements.
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nﬂ'l:léﬁl‘l&ﬁnie
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EZ 202351231 HIEEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

LB T 008 HKS’000 2023 2022
FEGF Profit for the year 1,860,306 1,608,800
FEEHMPEWKE (B5i8) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

ARESEMDBEELEWEIRIER ¢ Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:

BHRE Investments in securities
AT ESTEEEHESTAEMEE  Netchange in fair value of debt instruments
WamEH TR AT EEEFEE at fair value through other comprehensive income 298,270 (834,317)
R R S s ARIENEE /AT Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of an
Hﬂﬂiﬁuﬂl 5/ (B518) associate accounted for using the equity method 248,924 (226,037)
NESTEEEHESTAEMEE  Netchange in allowance for expected credit losses
LlﬁZ s ES LAY ARG EEE of debt instruments at fair value through other
EEEETE comprehensive income 33,612 7,109
BRI 7 IRIERR IS Deferred income tax related to the above (43,181) 132,583
B | (920,662)
BB BIMEB R IRRNERER Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities (156,209) (719,179)
TEEMDBRERAWRRNIER - Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
AT ESZ2EBEEF AEMEE  Net change in fair value of equity instruments

WEMESEE TR ATFEES)FEE  at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,086,307 586,378

BRI IRERIE Deferred income tax related to the above (65,481) (35,153)
B 551,225
MNpREREz EFEEM2ERG Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,

(&518) net of tax 1,402,242 (1,088,616)
N RIER ZFE2EINELERE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,262,548 520,184
F1I9EEFNOEZMFHRGEMEIRERZ— The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
g5y o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2023512931 H As at 31 December 2023

Bt
LGB T lid)m HK$°000 Note 2023 2022
BE ASSETS
B RERITIAERR Cash and balances with banks 18 16,395,770 17,800,880
EIRIT1IE12{8 8 M EHARERR Placements with banks maturing between one
and twelve months 3,151,814 8,616,565
FHER 5 BRES Trading securities 19 1,739,841 562,161
AT Est2 B HEF: AIBHEEMEBE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 8,216 9,303
TEERTA Derivative financial instruments 20 3,566,149 3,901,236
RIEERHMERE Advances and other accounts 21 149,113,954 142,712,617
AT EsHE B HEE T AHM Financial assets at fair value through other
2EWmNEHERE comprehensive income 22 40,525,842 38,617,851
MR AT IR SR E E Financial assets at amortised cost 23 39,372,378 32,926,090
C=UNCIE = Investment in an associate 24 2,215,131 2,159,290
HEZEHBERKRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 25 129,946 123,072
e Goodwill 27 713,451 713,451
B EE Intangible assets 27 69,715 69,715
TEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets 28 2,813,187 2,808,838
REM= Investment properties 29 761,604 802,691
BNEARIEE E Current income tax assets 1,273 -
RIERIEE & Deferred income tax assets 35 165,823 262,273
st Total assets 260,744,094 252,086,033
=1 LIABILITIES
RITE™N Deposits from banks 2,485,044 4,112,493
TTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments 20 1,279,419 997,637
FHERZRENEE Trading liabilities 31 99,853 730,491
BEREWR Deposits from customers 32 207,233,698 199,792,201
BEITHNERE Certificates of deposit issued 33 2,428,028 4,228,983
BEES Subordinated notes 34 5,916,645 3,801,495
Hithik B KT8 Other accounts and accruals 8,020,654 7,873,950
BIEpRIEaE Current income tax liabilities 287,611 284,504
FILRIBEE Deferred income tax liabilities 35 103,699 39,131
aEast Total liabilities 227,854,651 221,860,885
K EQUITY
AT IRERFE LS Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
B Share capital 38 6,894,438 6,894,438
Hitnf# 6 (BIEREEA) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 39 25,683,589 23,019,294
KREE Shareholders’ funds 32,578,027 29,913,732
BEIMERMTA Additional equity instruments 40 311,416 311,416
HEAsH Total equity 32,889,443 30,225,148
EEREaEAE Total equity and liabilities 260,744,094 252,086,033

EEEN2024F3 828 B RISREEEf o

FI9EEFE0EZ WD ARG BREZ —

BB e

HEHE
EFE EEESE

March 2024.

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Director

financial statements.

Hon-Hing Wong
Managing Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
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REEmEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#F 2023512431 H IE£EFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

LGB T Tli5)n HKS*000

20231510455 Balance at 1 January 2023

FERR Profit for the year

FEHMZERE Other comprehensive income
for the year

DARRHESZ (T LURMEAEEERE  Provision for equity-settled share-based
2B compensation

BIMERME TR ZIKETE Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments

2002FREKE 2022 final dividend
2023F RS 2023 interim dividend
2023F12831 Q&R Balance at 31 December 2023
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mEEmEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZ 2023512 H31H L For the year ended 31 December 2023

EUNCTl S
Attributable to the shareholders TEOL
of the Company ERMTE
BEE Hititt REEA Additional Emast
Share Other Retained equity Total
LUBBF TG HK$'000 capital reserves earnings  instruments equity
2022131 H 48R Balance at 1 January 2022 6,894,438 1,446,488 21,571,990 898,587 30,811,503
FERF Profit for the year - - 1,608,800 - 1,608,800
FEHMZEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year - (1,088,616) - - (1,088,616)
BhEEMERIET A Redemption of additional equity
instruments - - - (898,587) (898,587)
BTEIMERIETA Issue of additional equity instruments - - - 311,416 311,416
DRSS (S ARG EAEHEREN  Provision for equity-settled share-based
2k compensation - 239 - - 239
BIMER U TR ZIKERIE Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments - - (41,652) - (41,652)
2021F KRS 2021 final dividend - - (337,380) - (337,380)
2022F RS 2022 interim dividend - - (140,575) - (140,575)
20212831045 Balance at 31 December 2022 6,894,438 358,111 22,661,183 311416 30,225,148
FIIEEFENOE MDA M ERET L — The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
Bk o financial statements.
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mEREREEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EZ 202351231 HIEEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

PisE

LGB T Tl Z)m HK$°000 Note 2023 2022
RESESZIRERE Cash flows from operating activities
1R E) (FRA) /TRAIRE 348 Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 41(a) (1,144,937) 4,960,686
KEEESZRETRE Cash flows from investing activities
EEREMERAMETEE Purchase of investment properties and other

fixed assets (275,081) (267,346)
HETEREMEEEERMSNRIE Proceeds from disposal of premises and other

fixed assets 17,813 208
BUHEEIERI B ARIHEABRE Dividend received from jointly controlled

entities and associate 218,377 230,664
KRB EHPTAIRE P Net cash used in investing activities (38,891) (36,474)
REEHZRSRE Cash flows from financing activities
BITERIMERM TR Issue of additional equity instruments - 311,416
BEBEIMERETAR Repayment of additional equity instruments - (895,321)
BFITRERGER Issue of subordinated notes 41(c) 1,939,796 -
GEN=S=L= AN Payment of lease liabilities (148,553) (148,876)
EIMER M TR 2 REERIE Distribution payment on additional equity

instrument (36,007) (41,652)
FEETRERBMER Interest paid on subordinated notes and debt

BHZFE securities issued 41(c) (309,761) (164,342)

IREA RNz BRI E Dividend paid on ordinary shares of the

Company (562,301) (477,955)
BMEEERA (FTA) IR& 358 Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 883,174 (1,416,730)
REKRERIRLIAR GAL) 1EIN$%E Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents (300,654) 3,507,482
FYRERERREEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year 19,260,423 16,042,821
EXEE 8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 5,035 (289,880)
FEXRRERERIREIER Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 41(b) 18,964,804 19,260,423
FL9EEFENE MG EMBRET T — The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
gl o financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.1 RERIEE
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) provide banking, financial and other related
services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 26th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”),

a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28 March 2024.

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”, which is a collective term and includes individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in applying
the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the period the assumptions change. Management believes that the
underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the consolidated
financial statements therefore present the financial position and results
fairly. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended standards
to its annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2023:

- HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendments) -
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

- HKAS 8 (Amendments) - Definition of Accounting Estimates

- International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules -
amendments to HKAS 12

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction - amendments to HKAS 12

None of these has a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

. Adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax

Reform

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules apply to income taxes arising from tax law enacted
or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model
rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (“OECD”). The Group is within the scope of
the OECD Pillar Two model rules. Pillar Two legislation has
been enacted in some tax jurisdictions in the world and will be
implemented in Hong Kong in 2025. Under the legislation, the
Group is liable to pay a top-up tax for the difference between
the Global Anti-Base Erosion Proposal (“GloBE”) effective tax
rate for each tax jurisdiction and the 15% minimum tax rate. The
Group has applied the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred income tax assets and liabilities
related to Pillar Two income taxes and there is no current tax
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023 under Pillar Two

legislation.

Due to the complexities in applying the legislation and calculating
GloBE income, the quantitative impact of the legislation on
the Group is not yet reasonably estimable. The Group plans to
conduct further analyses and may engage tax specialists to assist
itin applying the legislation.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and interpretation
have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2023 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

- HKAS 1 (Amendments) - Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

- HKAS 1 (Amendments) - Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

- HKFRS 16 (Amendments) - Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

- HK Interpretation 5 (Revised) - Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

- HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments) - Supplier Finance
Arrangements

- HKAS 21 (Amendments) - Lack of Exchangeability

- HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

These amendments are not expected to have material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective from

1 January 2023 or not yet effective that would be expected to have a

material impact on the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the Company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the consolidated

income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of
the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s

share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interestincome and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated income
statement for all debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair
value through other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over

aservice to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended period
of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period the service is
provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs,
premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (assets that
are credit-impaired at initial recognition) the Group calculates the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on
the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Measurement methods (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying
amount of the respective financial asset or financial liability is adjusted
to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original effective
interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI
which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss
when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises the
difference as follows:

(@)  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using

market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets

(i) PERHEZEFE
FEEDEHEREEE MIFEER

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

. MAFESEBEEEFHHAER (8 . Fair value through profit or loss (including held for trading);
ERERZ AR ;

. MAFEstEEEEH T AHMEE . Fair value through other comprehensive income; or
Yead 5

. BEERALAS © . Amortised cost.

B TREZ DERESNT ¢

EF LA

EBTARZEUETABRMETEEE
AHEMERZITE  MER - BUREER
FRNREEBTRBEERZBZRIGR -

BFLRZDEREBZSEEIUAN

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition
of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables
purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments

depend on:
. TEBREEZBEEBEN ) K . the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and
. ZEEZIREREME o . the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments
into one of the following three measurement categories:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii) below.
Interest income from these financial assets is calculated
using the effective interest rate method.

. FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not
designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss and presented in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which it arises.
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither
of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of “other”
business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the
Group in determining the business model for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets
were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and
reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed
and managed and how managers are compensated. Securities
held for trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term or are part of a portfolio of financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. These securities
are classified in the “other” business model and measured at
FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in

their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence
a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity

instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s

right to receive payment is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in
the “Net trading income” in the consolidated income statement.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(ii) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated
with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI and with the exposures arising from loans to customers,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Group
recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting
date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

. An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is

RIER Bt AR £58 ; determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
. SERNREEE; & . The time value of money; and
. BATCERNNE M ASE MM EE . Reasonable and supportable information that is available

RERAZABMBESMN  BEEBER
RIBAIRBAEER R BB RABEN
REVE RS o

DS SRRAS B SMEEZ HEERFBZY
RHEBEERMBEZIR - EREERYHE
REAZREEFHRED BB RTHMRE
KeFate 1z —8bm o IRTEStEEEED)
STARMEERG 2 EHTAZREERSE
AFE - HREEFHER S IREE AR

Z—EBD ©

MiEE3.2.28R B X5 F AU A 2R
EEREER -

without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts is recognised as a provision as
part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The carrying amount of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI is their fair value. Their
impairment allowance is recognised as part of “Investment
revaluation reserve”.

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does this
by considering, among others, the following factors:

. If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the

modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to

TMEENEEE © amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.
. BAEMAEAEARFGER > FlNE . Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as

At BERRBARNFEIE
Dt R B 2 [OFR o

ERTRAREI 5 15 Ry A IE
REMHAR ©

a profit share/equity-based return that substantially affects
the risk profile of the loan.

. Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is

not in financial difficulty.

. R BEBAREE o . Significant change in the interest rate.
. ERNEEEE 2 EE o . Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.
. MMAZIER G~ EMiERYSAIEE . Insertion of collateral, other security or credit
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enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at
fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the
asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered
to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation
purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the
Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is
deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor
being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences
in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a
gain or loss on derecognition.



2. BAIGHEEME (@) 2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
2.6 ERBEEREREGER
EHEE (B7)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount
is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities
and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that

result in derecognition if the Group:

. Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects

TWisZ (RIEZ ST ; equivalent amounts from the assets;
. WEIFHESNRIREE ; & . Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and
. BEAEEENMETEHNEEE . Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the

EZEARE -

assets without material delay.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the
basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria
for derecognition are therefore not met. This also applies to
certain securitisation transactions in which the Group retains a
subordinated residual interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the
Group applies continuing involvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of
the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the amortised
cost of the rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the
transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to
the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the Group
when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is
measured at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities
held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading booking)
and other financial liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability,
which is determined as the amount that is not attributable
to changes in market conditions that give rise to market
risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such
a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting
mismatch, in which case the gains and losses attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the liability are also presented
in profit or loss;

. Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or when
the continuing involvement approach applies. When the
transfer of financial asset did not qualify for derecognition,
a financial liability is recognised for the consideration
received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;
when continuing involvement approach applies; and

. Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of
debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well
as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
The terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any
fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative factors,
such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in,
changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features
attached to the instrument and change in covenants are also
taken into consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any
costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred to
adjust the carrying amount of the liability are amortised over the
remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

. The amount of the loss allowance; and

. The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any commitment to
provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net
in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the
conversion option in a convertible bond. If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded

derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

. Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to

those of the host contract;

. A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the

definition of a derivative; and

. The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or

loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts
at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship
between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values of hedged items.
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2.8

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)

(a) Fairvalue hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the consolidated
income statement under “Net trading income - Net gain/(loss)
arising from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit
or loss over the period to maturity. If the hedge relationship no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated
for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due to repayment of
the hedged item, the unamortised carrying value adjustment
(the difference between the carrying value of the hedged item
at the time of termination and the value at which it would have
been carried had the hedge never existed) to the hedged item is
amortised to the income statement over the remaining life of the
hedged item by the effective interest method. If the hedged item
is derecognised, the unamortised carrying value adjustment is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement under
“Net trading income - Net gain/(loss) from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose”. For derivatives that are managed
in conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their fair
value are included under “Net trading income - Net gain/(loss) on
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss”.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Company or the counterparty.

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent
to counterparties are also retained in the consolidated financial
statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements, unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the
purchases and sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in
trading income. The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as
a trading liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances
made. In the case of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal
arrangements or court orders, and with the legal title of the assets
having been passed to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The
foreclosed assets held for resale are included in “Advances and other
accounts - Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating

decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the Group
has the following segments: Personal Banking, Corporate Banking,
Treasury and Global Markets, Mainland China and Macau Banking, and
Others.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the
functional and presentation currency of the Company and major
part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement are presented net in the
consolidated income statement within the corresponding item.
Foreign exchange gains and losses on other comprehensive
income items are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a distinction
is made between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying
amount of the assets. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and those related to changes in the carrying amount,
except for impairment, are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment
revaluation reserve in other comprehensive income.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assetsand liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land and
all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
- Premises Over the remaining period of lease
- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives
and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10
years or the unexpired terms of
the lease, whichever is shorter

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.



2. BXREFEREE (&)

2.15 B

R RAE S Wt NEME AL B M E
REMIFRERIE T ARG Z Y ERERER
REWE o

REMERVURAE (SRR ZER) 5t& -

RN - REYFERRATEIR - R FE
TSLURRT B ZBRAER  RBEERMEEZ
BEME - BN ERERFLBE - 1
ZEFEREESE > AERRBRBAMGEE
Pl IE R ISR BRRBIRIRERETE
AETHE - REHEDKRERGERNZE
GHEMZIESISTH - ZFEESERINSEHEED
T  BERUFERFREVEZREYR > =
HilmaRE T2 R EYERER A TEE -

REMEZ ATERKR (HHEE) RREEZHE
EWARILIRITHR A Z RRAAEIA ©

B w2 A B 2 AR R P Fet T 8 o B H
A1 S5t ARBEZIRAE ° FIAHMEES
W EEE Z ARV BB A GRS W amiRA o

NHESE RS WERIRAEESD ©

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property, or for which the market has become less active,
continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises and other
fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They
include trade names and intangible assets of core deposits, contracts
and customer relationships. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years
using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Company'’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the
Company’s share of the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Company’s statement of financial position
exceeds the Company’s share of the carrying amount of that entity’s
net assets including goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In such case, the tax is recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of debt
securities at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, is also credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the
consolidated income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation
(i) Share option schemes

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is the
fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at each
reporting period with any change in the cost recognised in the
consolidated income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.
The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at the grant
date, is charged to consolidated income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When the
options are exercised, the Company will issue new shares to settle
its obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the “Share-
based compensation reserve” to the “Share capital” account.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)
(ii) Share award schemes

For award shares under the Share Award Scheme, the amount
to be expensed as share-based compensation expenses is
determined by reference to the fair value of the award shares
granted, taking into account all non-vesting conditions associated
with the grants on grant date. The total expenses is recognised
over the relevant vesting periods or on the grant date if the shares
vest immediately, with a corresponding credit to the “Shared-
based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.

For those awarded shares which are amortised over the vesting
periods, the Group reviews its estimates of the number of award
shares that are expected ultimately vest based on the vesting
conditions at the end of each reporting period. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative amount recognised in prior years
is charged or credited to share-based compensation expenses
in the current year, with a corresponding adjustment to “Share-
based compensation reserve”.

Where award shares are acquired under the Share Award Scheme
from the market or by electing for scrip in lieu of cash dividends,
the total consideration of the shares acquired from the market
(including any directly attributable costs) or the value of shares
received under the scrip dividend scheme is presented as “Shares
held for share award scheme” and deducted from total equity.

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested award shares
purchased from the market and shares acquired from reinvesting
cash dividends or received under the scrip dividend scheme
(dividend shares) are credited to “Shares held for share award
scheme”, with a corresponding decrease in “Share-based
compensation reserve” for the purchased shares, and decrease in

retained earnings for the dividend shares.
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2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely

than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are

not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the

likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any

lease incentives receivable,

. variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date, if any

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees, if any

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably

certain to exercise that option, and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term

reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options
are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does

not have recent third party financing, and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date

less any lease incentives received,
. any initial direct costs, and

. restoration costs.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

155



156

2. BXREFEREE (&)

2.21 HHE (&)

FEREEE—REZEEZ N ERFRREEH
PMUBIEER U B AINE ©

BREREERFAEREREERE Z(IRIZE
AN @RS A - MAHEEHER
AI2ERZU T ZIEE -

EEEREHEAR  EESHEWRBAERA
IR E F L EREER SR -

2.22 ZELER

FER-RUFEEARAEMEFEANITE » %
BN~ EEREMERHANFEEEE - A&
EEERHMEENWALIFRERZEE »
TENAERZ FEPHRERPIER

2.23 g7

BERROW O ERERD  BTHRMEGEZH
1B RERRRIEEWGRIRES R - L27R
FEmARA ©

EERRO 2R EEGEAMBRERNERRHE
Z BB EE -

2.24 HEKRERIREIEE

RREREBEER > RERFFAREEEBEH
fE A BREST3E A WEIHRRYASER - BEIRE ~ IR1T
REMEBRIEBER - BERE - HthoERSE
RIERFRE KRR R SRS B SRR
FERERRBZEFRE

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits

is probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

157



158

3. Ej}%ﬂ.ﬁﬁ{ﬂ:ii (:IE)

BB EENREEF A 2 BRI EERM
BT -EFeRERAREEKRGRZEE (TR
BEERAREET)) BEERIEETRARZE
B WhREERERES (SRR ) RTRZI

AEZERETEEMEE - It > AMBZES
BRI EERREERIEHIANR o

EFXCCETERESTERRRBFERZA
BERBSEIRLUE— P IRA AR E A R AR EEK

T KEBBEREGRBRITHE » ZEMRKR
FIETHAERZZMBERESERZAREE
Ht BIERERERZ ARRIEFERMIEERE
REEFLIGRAREREE - B4 L BRRE
FERRS | B AR E B R ERER T BIFTREAEZ
EREER e EE o AEEZ AR RIFIEREES
BELX - AR BERAABEZ T2ER RN LE
ERTERETERRREZ —RIABETE -
HEREFERTEZARREFNET > HEARKRR
FIRERARELDEZ BERTEETT - plitm
= FEEEME T HEAERRRKOERN D
BEXEHEr ERRFER » LaRREHREN
BE ~ BAKIE - ENED  AEMERAMEE
EkaiEnE - EEEAREE ERFEEE  RTRR
REEAREMNHDEREEREREEERES
BRE o 14 BREERGREEERETY
SEERRRRIFERKIZRARRITIRE

RIBZRABENBEERR RBEZER
i ABAIRERLE - TI5AREEIINERR
FIZR B R S B AE B R

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated by the
Board oversees and guides the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division
(“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit
is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the
control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that also
covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy sets out
the core values and high level risk management direction of the Group,
taking into account the overall business strategy and direction, under
which a robust Risk Appetite framework is established to guide the
strategic planning process and strengthen the risk-return management.
Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite framework sets out the types and
amount of risk that the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its
business plan. The Group’s risk appetite metrics are composed of key
indicators for measuring capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is
supplemented by a set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits
of the Group. In order to ensure that business is conducted within our
established risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk
appetite limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis.
In this connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement
that covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency,
liquidity and other key risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the
ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement
and the regular reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.
Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework and major risk appetite limits
are subject to review by the RMCC and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of assets.
The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term
funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending to
commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers appropriate
fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk and market
conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees and other
commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds and other
bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currencies and interest rates.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of these financial
instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms of
hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of
each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on
a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that
do not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting
are discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair
value hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt
securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate. Pay-floating/
receive-fixed interest rate swaps are matched to specific issuances of
fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate swaps are
matched to fixed-rate debt securities held with terms that closely align
with the critical terms of the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks,
such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by the Group. Interest
rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from fixed-
rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt securities held, whose fair
value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in fair value of an issued liability or a debt security
are significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships meet
the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of the

fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional amount

of the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Possible

sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(v)

changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before next
fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark rate of
the interest rate swap;

changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit risk on
the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not reflected in
the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in

interest rate; and

differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 FERERIT AR (&) 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
3.1.1 FFIERBGEEERE N EEEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
H(#) accounting (Continued)
MRz ATER M (@) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)
RERFFA TR g BARF R R A T EL A The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging
ZHHTIA - instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.
ZER

2023%F12H31H 31 December 2023 Maturity

1ERA 1FEME SEME
E\&EER — FI=R E & Risk category - interest rate risk Less than FE5F More than
LOBM T oA d HKS’000 1year 1-5 years 5 years
AT BB —FEE Hedge of issued liabilities -

certificates of deposit

HE Nominal amount 2,437,126 = =
TFHBEEHZE Average fixed interest rate 4.74% - =
T BB - BEES Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
HE Nominal amount 1,757,543 4,296,215 -
FHEEFRZE Average fixed interest rate 5% 4.99% -
HrHETrasE—EEs Hedge of issued liabilities - borrowing
HE Nominal amount - - -
THBEEM =R Average fixed interest rate - - -

A Z LA ESTE B HEE) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value

AR MR EWGIETSES through other comprehensive income
HE Nominal amount 1,983,923 11,275,548 3,929,084
B SlEhES Average fixed interest rate 3.79% 3.59% 3.15%

$HREA 2 DU ERAL AT BRAY Hedge of debt securities held at

(EVGECE amortised cost
HE Nominal amount 2,356,655 10,700,221 8,137,928
TFHBEEHZE Average fixed interest rate 3.84% 3.47% 3.03%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

ZIH#AE

20225 12H31H 31 December 2022 Maturity

1ELA 1FEME SEME
R BEE R — =R Risk category - interest rate risk Less than 55 More than
LOBTF (15T HKS’000 lyear 1-5years 5years
AT BB —FEE Hedge of issued liabilities -

certificates of deposit
HE Nominal amount 3,898,625 389,863 -
TFHBEEHZE Average fixed interest rate 3.17% 0.74% -
AT BE—BEGS Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
HE Nominal amount - 4,093,556 -
FHEEFRZE Average fixed interest rate - 3.86% -
HrETras—Es Hedge of issued liabilities - borrowing
L= Nominal amount - - -
THBEEN=ER Average fixed interest rate - - -
A Z UATESTE2B HES) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AR M EWGHIETSE S through other comprehensive income
& Nominal amount 4,238,195 10,124,343 5,563,679
THEEF]ZE Average fixed interest rate 3.94% 3.45% 3.34%
R 2 DU ERAL AT BRAY Hedge of debt securities held at
BES amortised cost

HE Nominal amount 48,468 10,620,370 8,846,085
EHEENE Average fixed interest rate 4.52% 3.32% 3.12%
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 FERERIT AR (&) 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
3.1.1 FFIERBGEEERE N EEEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
H(#) accounting (Continued)
ANEEEH Fair value hedges
BREEAYRIEE 28R ¢ The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as
follows:
2023
RETEREMS
RARAEELAE
i RESEZ
BRiE2023E  ETHAEEZATE
IS HhHERAEEE
SEEHERREE HEdESE  Accumulated amount
ZHAHRZATE ZATEES of fair value hedge
HARRAELE R ERBERIRA Changeinvalue adjustments remaining
Accumulated amountof 2 4t0iEE 2 1B subjecttohedge  inthe consolidated
fair value hedge adjustments | ine jtem in the usedfor statement of financial
on the hedged itemincluded  ¢oncolidated calculating hedge position for any
A inthe carrying amount  gtatement of financial ineffectiveness hedged items that
Carrying amount of the hedged item position in which the for 2023 have ceased to be
BT EE &ff BE &fE  hedgeditem ()  adjusted for hedging
HKS$'000 Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities isincluded Note (a) gains and losses
G - 2,428,028 - (9,008) BEGMNEDE (54,023) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
BEER - 5,916,645 - (13,113) BEEE (167,058) -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
B - - - - HOER - -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
FAZUATEIEBHEHHA 16,335,053 - (924,665) - DATEGEBHES 350,969 =
HEt >RGN ERES SIARMZ AR
Debt securities held at fair value THEE
through other comprehensive Financial assets at
income fair value through
other comprehensive
income
FEZNESM AT RN ERES 19,689,607 - (1,505,197) - DUEEMATIERN 433,629 =
Debt securities held at THEE
amortised cost Financial assets at
amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows: (Continued)

2022
RATLEHE
WRERADELER
R EZ
BRsENNE  EEHAEEZATE
E P S HhREEREE
SIEHPRREREE BEHELE  Accumulated amount
ZHWERZATE 2ATEES of fairvalue hedge
HrRRREER Changeinvalue  adjustments remaining
Accumulatedamountof = Atzeipnze subject to hedge in the consolidated
fair value hedge adjustments w2 40mR B8 usedfor  statement of financial
onthe hedged item included e jtem i the calculating hedge position for any
A inthe carryingamount  ¢onolidated statement ineffectiveness hedged items that
Carrying amount ofthe hedged item of financial position in for2022 have ceased to be
LEEF AT BE &fE BE &  whichthe hedged item S(®) adjusted for hedging
HKS'000 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities isincluded Note (a) gains and losses
FE - 4228983 - (59,505 BETNEDE 41,608 -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
BEER - 3801495 - (292,061) fEER 328,947 -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
(L= - - - - FOEN - -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
FEZUATEHEREEEHA 18,776,876 - (1,260,861) - DATENEBHES (1,923,889) -
HtheEWERERES St ARMEEER
Debt securities held at fair value tHEE
through other comprehensive Financial assets at
income fair value through
other comprehensive
income
BRI BRI B 17,622,300 - (1,892623) - LUBERRIATIRY (1,792,343) -
Debt securities held at SHEE
amortised cost Financial assets at

amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:

2023
i)
20235
HRAH
ZATEES
RRMBIRER Change in fair
BEHHTAZER valueusedfor  FEDNEER
Line item in the calculating ZHHEH
EEE consolidated hedge Ineffectiveness WHEEAES
C B t statement of financial  ineffectiveness recognisedin ¥k ZIER
HfE arrying amoun position where the for 2023 profit/(loss)  Line item in profit or loss
LOBEF A8 Nominal BE &fF hedginginstrumentis 5 () #(R)  thatincludes
HKS000 amount Assets  Liabilities included Note (a) Note(a) hedge ineffectiveness
GilESEI
Interest rate risk
GilESEri Ry pES 2,437,126 1,362 10,556 fT4ERTA 54,486 463 FBATEHFHERER
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3E/ (i)
certificates of deposit instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financialinstruments
subject to fair value
hedge
Rl - R EES 6,053,758 50,159 188,980 {T4SRITIR 169,006 1,948  FAATEHHERSR
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3E/ (i)
subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financialinstruments
subject to fair value
hedge
Rl - HpEE = = - 1EEmIA = - BAATESHERSE
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial IR/ (B8)
borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
R - SsB 2 UATE 17,188,555 932,544 7950 {TESRTIA (351,041) (12)  AATESHIERSR
HERHEHHAEMEE Derivatives financial TEZ3E/ (i)
WERERES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - hedge financial instruments
of debt securities held at subject to fair value
fair value through other hedge
comprehensive income
Flia il —$piE 2 R 21,194,804 1,519,696 14,630 {TEERTR (433,746) (117)  AATEEERER
FAG SR B Derivatives financial TEZ3WE/ (58
Interest rate swaps - hedge instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
of debt securities held at financialinstruments
amortised cost subject to fair value
hedge
B Note:
() ERNEBEmNERNSEATEERANEEE & (@)  The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each

WEPEERENNEELS AN HP T
BERNATEZSMERZER -

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R

category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in value
of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the change in
fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the current year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and

T hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)
2022
RS
20224
Fape S
REMBERIRR Change in fair
BEHhIAZER valueusedfor BB
Line item in the calculating it N
EEE consolidated . chedge  Ineffectiveness  WrafAEE
Carrving amount statement of financial  ineffectiveness recognisedin RN ZIAE
HfE arying position where the for 2022 profit/(loss)  Line item in profit or loss
LOBEFAISn Nominal BE B  hedginginstrument s () () thatincludes
HKS’000 amount Assets Liabilities included Note (a) Note(a)  hedge ineffectiveness
< m b
Interest rate risk
IR - Hh R 4,288,488 - 60,249 {TAERITA (41,976) (368) AATEHAHERISR
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TR/ (B8)
certificates of deposit instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
FEE - EER 4,093,556 - 295718 fTAERITE (332,353) (3,406) AATEEHIERTA
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3IE/ (B8)
subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
HEai—-HpEE - - - fTAERIA - - BATERHERER
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3IE/ (B8)
borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
FIEERA-—HAREZUATE 19926217 1,260,861 - fTEERIA 1,923,860 (29) AATEHFHERSE
SEEEEHHAEMRE Derivatives financial TEZ3NE/ (B8
WaRE%ES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - hedge financial instruments
of debt securities held at subject to fair value
fair value through other hedge
comprehensive income
Pl -smmE 7 DBl 1951493 1,893,831 1223 fiEEHIA 1,792,359 15 BRTEHAHERSR
AR ERE Derivatives financial TEZ3WE/ (F8)
Interest rate swaps - hedge instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
of debt securities held at financial instruments
amortised cost subject to fair value

hedge
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

In March 2021, the UK Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) announced
the date on which London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) will be
discontinued. All GBP, CHF, EUR, JPY LIBOR settings and the one-
week and two-month USD LIBOR settings had discontinued after 31
December 2021. The remaining USD LIBOR settings will discontinue
after 30 June 2023. In July 2023, the UK FCA published a statement
confirming that the USD LIBOR panel had ceased.

Also, at 31 December 2022, the Hong Kong interbank offered rate
(“HIBOR”) was included given that the reform of this benchmark was
considered possible. At 31 December 2023, HIBOR is no longer expected
to be directly affected by interbank offered rates reform following the
successful transition of all major LIBOR settings and the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) affirmation that there were no plans to
discontinue HIBOR.

The Group has defined and executed the implementation plan for Inter-
bank Offered Rate (“IBOR”) reform. We had ceased to enter into new
IBOR contracts and liaised with its counterparties to modify existing
IBOR contracts by using other interest rate benchmarks or agreeing
the fallback interest charging mechanism when IBOR discontinued.
These actions for a smooth transition had been completed in 2023.
Management considered that the risk and the impact to the Group is

immaterial.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,

and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving major
credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of the
loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees have been
chaired by the Chief Executive or Group Chief Risk Officer with certain
Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers as members.
Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring
requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and
are approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures, limits and
asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by management,
credit committees and GRD. The Group’s internal auditors also conduct
regular reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies
and procedures, and regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval and

review of new products and activities, and credit policies with details of
the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The credit
grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and loan specific
information collected at the time of application (such as disposable
income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and financial
indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate exposures). For retail
exposures, this is supplemented with internal data such as delinquency
status and external data such as credit bureau scoring information
on individual borrowers. In addition, the scorecards enable expert
judgement from the credit risk officer to determine the final internal
credit grade for each exposure. This allows for considerations which
may not be captured as part of the other inputs into the scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of portfolio
held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending of
retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a periodic basis
by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a Probability of Default
(“PD”).

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at the borrower
level. A relationship manager will incorporate any updated or new
information/credit assessments into the credit grading scorecard on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the relationship manager will also update
information about the creditworthiness of the borrower every year from
sources such as borrower’s financial statements. This will determine

the updated internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with external
default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD master scales are
calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit grade.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

.21 [EEEEZ (48) 3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

EE R MR (B8) Credit risk grading (Continued)

& Treasury

BRI ERIRIKTIHEE N2 EF5HE S & FEFERM For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury and
2 BB AEERR R IR TAR B 2 S E TR - 2% Global Markets portfolio, external rating agency credit grades are used.
TR FHBRR IS M EHT o SMRAI 2 EREN These published grades are continuously monitored and updated. The
WIRENRT RSB M 2 BT o PDs associated with each grade are determined based on default rates

published by the rating agencies.

3.2.2 RIS EERE1E 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HARUHREER BRI B AR BRAEE HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
BREFMSIBUREBE 2 M3MEL A » Eamn changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:
T

. REESR R EERENERIAD .
BRIERL REEERBHAERGERE
52 o

. iR TERHAR B EEREB RS R .
RIgEm(MEEEMRAEEM)) > BIEEB
EIMEER2) > BINREARFEERIE -

. HEMTRSKRAESEERE > RITRT .
BB EREE3 ) o

. (RIS T A R EEREAERT .
RR12EBRPIBEREZENFFSIRZ
EIFRAEERIREMI VR ERFT & - BEER2
g3z TRARBRE REE EHTEH
EERE -

. RESEMBRSENZTHERMES .
RN EZBNSHRAAE EATRIEE
GE

. BARREZ EEREEMEERZFNRT] .
RN EREEREZERMEE - HRH
EEBE—BER2PEENHE -

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk

continuously monitored by the Group.

If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured
based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS

9 is that it should consider forward-looking information.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets):

BIREREZFEERESY

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

P ER 1 BEER 2 PEER 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(e T#R) (FERRE B MnHERERIEEIN) (FERESEE)

(Initial recognition)

121 A i B i E B &8
12-month expected credit losses

FEBMFERRE RN 2 TEHEFRR R
—FZ

3221 FEERKIEE I

ENEUT BN ZEERFAEED TR T

AERMNMEERBRAEEN :

(Significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition)

(Credit-impaired assets)

ZHIEEEEEE
Lifetime expected credit losses

2 EEAEE SR
Lifetime expected credit losses

parsell The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in

addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a SICR
when one or more of the following criteria have been met:
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when there is significant adverse external credit rating transition
for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment grade to non-
investment grade, or one notch downgrade for bond with original
non-investment grade at purchase

when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from one
notch to five notches depending on its initial credit rating, for
corporate portfolio

when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for corporate

portfolio

when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according to
the loan classification of HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of

individual counterparties defaulting.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a portfolio
level for all retail financial instruments held by the Group. In relation to
corporate financial instruments, where an Early Warning list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed at the counterparty
level and on a monthly basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
revised as when appropriate by the respective credit departments of
the portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial
instruments in the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is aligned
with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets”), when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on

the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
. a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that

the Group would not consider otherwise;

. the borrower is bankrupt;

. it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to the
loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of

individual counterparties defaulting; and

. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of

financial difficulties.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there
is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In
addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered
credit-impaired.

3.2.23 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit
losses are the discounted product of the PD, exposures at default
(“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), defined as follows:

. The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation.

. EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the
time of default, over the next 12 months (“12M EAD”) or over the
remaining lifetime (“Lifetime EAD”). For example, for a revolving
commitment, the Group includes the current drawn balance plus
any further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current
contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

. LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months
and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
loan.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for
each future month and for each individual exposure. These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood
of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier
month). This effectively calculates an ECL for each future month,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The
discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest
rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on a
portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of
the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and
is assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit
grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected
payment profile, which varies by product type.

. For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over
a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any
expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early repayment/
refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

. For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted
by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion
factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining

limit by the time of default.
. For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the

maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilised amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These include collateral
type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/
book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery
costs observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to Note 3.2.2.4 for
an explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc., are
regularly monitored and reviewed.

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD
and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the
“base economic scenario”) are provided by some economic research
institutions and the in-house economic research team on a regular
basis and provide the best estimate view of the economy over the next
five years. For the economic variables out of the forecasting periods
(i.e. after the next five years), the point-in-time default risk level at the
last forecasting period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default
risk level of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables
on the PD, EAD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the impact changes in these variables
have had historically on default rates and loss rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the change
in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop indicator.
This determines whether the whole financial instrument is in Stage 1,
Stage 2, or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should
be recorded. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as
either a probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1), or a probability
weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted
ECLs are determined by running each scenario through the relevant ECL
model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

In 2023, the post pandemic recovery was not as strong as expected,
driven by the high interest rate environment, heightened geopolitical
tensions, falling asset prices and more importantly failure of certain
Mainland property developers. While US interest rates are expected to
drop in 2024, the impact on the local economy is yet to be observed as
the pace and the magnitude of the rate cut is still uncertain. Meanwhile,
credit quality issue of Mainland property developers and geopolitical
tensions is likely to persist for some time, bringing uncertainties to
economic developments. Against this background, the Group has
continued to adopt appropriate assessment and risk management
procedures in the measurement of ECL. This includes reviewing credit
portfolios, considering different macroeconomic forecast scenarios,
assessing the reasonableness of ECL models outputs, and evaluating
the adequacy of ECL allowances.

Management judgments and overlay

To recap, in 2021, the Group imposed management overlay to
the ECL model output in consideration of the potential impact on
certain borrowers who relied on the Government’s Pre-approved
Principal Payment Holiday Scheme (“PPPHS”). Although the principal
moratorium ended in October 2023, and the credit quality of the
portfolio was generally maintained, the Group considered it appropriate
to maintain an overlay amount of 0.17% of the total outstanding
for the vehicle finance portfolio as a provision for risk in light of the
uncertainties ahead. The Group will continue to evaluate credit quality
of the portfolio and the need for such overlay in the coming year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions

The Group relies on a broad range of forward-looking economic
indicators as model inputs, such as the forecasts of macroeconomic
factors (“MEFs”) such as property price indices, GDP growth rates,
unemployment rates, and interest rates. The selection of MEFs had
gone through stringent statistical data tests commonly adopted by
the industry as well as expert judgements to ensure that MEFs used
in the ECL models are relevant to and reflective of the risk profile of
the Group’s credit portfolios while satisfying required quantitative
standards.

” o«

The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based on the
underlying assumptions described in the below table. In particular, the
“base” scenario makes reference to a set of macroeconomic forecasts
obtained from different economic research institutions and the Group’s
economist. “Good” and “bad” scenarios were developed by referencing
the MEFs in the “base” scenario, with appropriate adjustment to the
upside and the downside potential variations taking into account
the uncertainties in the forward-looking economic environments.
The magnitude of adjustment were quantified based on historical
movements of the MEFs observed through a long span of observed data
covering peaks and troughs of past economic cycles.
Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario
Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The
base scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic
forecasts which formulate a “base case” view of the
most probable future direction of relevant economic
variables.

Good This scenario is determined by making reference to
the “base” scenario and reflects positive uncertainties
by incorporating upside variations to the “base”

scenario macroeconomic forecasts.

Bad This scenario is determined by making reference
to the “base” scenario and reflects negative
uncertainties by incorporating downside variations to
the “base” scenario macroeconomic forecasts.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Members of the CMC as well as department heads of credit risk units
put forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence,
enabling the Group to generate forecasts of economic factors and the
forward-looking PD and LGD. To have further professional review and
reasonableness checking, the Group’s economist provided his overall
view on whether the collective forecasted outcome is generally in line
with his expectation. As a stringent measure, the summarized outcomes
will be submitted to the CMC for final approval. These forward-looking
PD and LGD are then used as input parameters in the expected credit
loss model.

Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are set

out as below.
SEHIRIMETI9%
Average of 1EERmIHE
5-Year One-Year
%2023F12831H As at 31 December 2023 Forward-Looking Forward-Looking
ERAMEERELREX Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate (%) Hf Base 2.3% 2.5%
(B2t R¥F Good 7.0% 7.2%
TR Bad -2.4% -2.2%
EREENE Hong Kong Residential Property Price  E52 Base 2.9% -5.0%
ERIEEEE) (5 DL) Index Change (%) BiF Good 22.2% 14.3%
= Bad -16.4% -24.3%
EBREZ (R Hong Kong Unemployment Rate (%)  £H# Base 2.8% 2.8%*
Rif Good 2.3% 2.3%*
= Bad 4.7% 4.7%*
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

SEHFIIE T

Average of LFHARIRE

5-Year One-Year

1120224 12A31H As at 31 December 2022 Forward-Looking  Forward-Looking
ERANMEERELRE Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate (%) Hit Base 1.8% 0.9%
(B RiF Good 7.4% 6.5%
TR Bad -3.8% -4.7%

ERAEME Hong Kong Residential Property Price  £52 Base 2.0% -3.9%
BEigisgEs) (B0t Index Change (%) R§f Good 25.2% 19.3%
= Bad -21.2% -27.1%

ERREE (AL Hong Kong Unemployment Rate (%)  £52 Base 2.9% 3.3%"
RiF Good 2.3% 2.3%*

= Bad 5.2% 5.6%*
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*

These one-year forward-looking rates represent forecast average rates for
one year.

The above assumptions were the latest forecasts available at the time
the ECL calculation was performed. If after the period-end date further
changes in the economic condition that are not consistent with the
forecasts are observed, adjustments may be made in the assignment
of probability weightings accordingly to reflect the latest situation. No
such adjustment was made so far.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

The average weightings assigned to each economic scenario, “base”,

“good” and “bad” are as follows:

20234 20226

12A831H 12831H

31December 31 December

2023 2022

s Base 70% 71%
B Good 11% 14%
rE Bad 19% 15%
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Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated

within the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory,

legislative or political changes, have also been considered, but are not

deemed to have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has

been made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored

for appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as

follows:

(i)  Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured

borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(ii)  GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’

performance and collateral valuations; and

(iii)  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on

mortgage collateral valuations.
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3. HBRREIEGE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
322 FREFISEERAIE (1B) 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.24 A TEERS EE1EEE 2 iR (8) 3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)
RE T () Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
MTFAREREAEENLSHSEREFNER Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from
BREMEEEESHNGIENEECENTARE reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual
BEiERH e assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:
= Retail
EEEEEIENEE
ECL Impact

LGB T Tl g)m HK$’000 2023 2022
RFE=R Unemployment rates +1% 14,037 86,867

-1% (8,487) (13,103)
TEREIEEX GDP growth rates +0.5% (4,145) (4,610)

-0.5% 4,221 4,701

M BIRIER Property price indices +5% (5,729) (4,228)

-5% 11,651 8,360
faES Corporate

FEHAEEEIENRE
ECL Impact

LGB T HKS$’000 2023 2022
REX Unemployment rates +1% 26,048 35,288

1% (23,225) (32,079)
SEREIERE GDP growth rates +0.5% (4,953) (7,129)

-0.5% 5,161 1,417

MIZEERIER Property price indices +5% (9,044) (7,254)

-5% 12,005 10,049
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentration risk with respect to individual borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country are in place and their exposures are
monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of
the overall credit portfolio and bounded by regulatory limit. Country
limits are also set up with reference to the sovereign credit rating from
international credit rating agencies. All these limits aim to achieve a
more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit
risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions,
the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved financial
institutions, and uses established market practices on credit support
and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative
counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for individual financial
institution counterparty, including valuation limit for derivatives, is
approved by the GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit
rating of individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral
and their characteristics are established within the credit policies, as
are the respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse

to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in cases where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the Group
to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are based

upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow position

and ability to repay.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(a) Loansand advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral for securing loans and advances. The principal
collateral types are:

. Mortgages over properties;

. Charges over business assets such as premises and

accounts receivable;

. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities;

. Charges over deposits; and

. Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where
possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans

and advances.

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments or
underlying assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement or
analogous master agreement in order to follow the standardised
market practice of close-out netting arrangement in the event
of default or early termination and in accordance with the
regulatory requirements.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement
activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. The outstanding contractual amounts of such
assets written off during the year ended 31 December 2023 was
HK$1,160 million (2022: HK$201 million).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements

The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure of
financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount of financial
assets below also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment

20237 12H31H At 31 December 2023
IREE/ 2REE
Gross carrying/notional amount T
RRREE  REEUT iR

g Special  Sub-standard a3t ECL BEE
LOBISTF T8 HKS’000 Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RTINS R Balance and placements with banks 19,553,118 - - 19,553,118 5,534 19,547,584
—PEERL -Stage1 19,553,118 - - 19,553,118 5534 19,547,584
—FEER2 - Stage 2 - - - - = =
—FEER3 - Stage3 - - - - - -

AT Es 2 EHETHA Debt instruments at fair value through
Ht 2 ANENER IR other comprehensive income 40,071,584 - 78,113 40,149,697 81,886 40,067,811
—PEEL - Stage 1 40,071,584 - - 40,071,584 34,356 40,037,228
—PEER - Stage 2 - - - - - -
3] - Stage3 - - 78,113 78,113 47,530 30,583
DUg R AT RNEBTA Debt instruments at amortised cost 39,413,306 - - 39,413,306 40,928 39,372,378
—MEE - Stagel 39,413,306 - - 39,413,306 40,928 39,372,378
—P&ER2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—PEE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
BREMREM Loans and advances to customers 138,418,175 1,851,740 2,779,561 143,049,476 1,113,256 141,936,220
—BEERL - Stage1 128,604,667 - - 128,604,667 364,345 128,240,322
—PEER - Stage 2 9,813,508 1,851,740 - 11,665,248 263,656 11,401,592
—FEER3 - Stage3 - - 2,779,561 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306
EGES: Trade bills 2,060,317 - - 2,060,317 2,981 2,057,336
—PEERL - Stage 1 2,060,143 - - 2,060,143 2,981 2,057,162
) - Stage 2 174 - - 174 - 174
—PEER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
FEETH B R EMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 5,052,893 20,487 67,933 5,141,313 20,915 5,120,398
—PBERL - Stage 1 5,022,715 - - 5,022,715 6,979 5,015,736
—PEER2 - Stage 2 30,178 20,487 - 50,665 2,907 47,758
—[BE3 - Stage3 - - 67,933 67,933 11,029 56,904

ERREMEE  RIBER Loan and other commitments,

and financial guarantees 68,765,937 6,550 - 68,772,487 68,318 68,704,169
—PEE - Stage 1 66,993,660 - - 66,993,660 65,861 66,927,799
) - Stage 2 1,772,277 6,550 - 1,778,827 2,457 1,776,370
—P2E3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
At Total 313,335,330 1,878,777 2,925,607 318,139,714 1,333,818 316,805,896

ERBILTHERE » 25 RUATENE
BHEFHH AHMEARGENEBTAZ%
RTRAKRNKRERGFEPIESEE0E

HEEREE -

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R

For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance
maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) ZAEREMENEREE @) (1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
20225 12831H At 31 December 2022
REE/ a8
Gross carrying/notional amount B
BRREE  REESUT FiaEE
ER Special ~ Sub-standard At ECL #E
LOBIST T8 HK$’000 Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RITRAEERRTER Balance and placements with banks 26,432,036 - - 26,432,036 14,591 26,417,445
—PEERL - Stage 1 26,432,036 - - 26,432,036 14,501 26,417,445
—P&ER2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—PEER3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
AT E2EHZEHA Debt instruments at fair value through
Hit 2 ANENER IR other comprehensive income 39,775,573 - - 39,775,573 48,275 39,727,298
—FEERL - Stage 1 39,697,600 - - 39,697,600 47,645 39,649,955
—P&ER2 - Stage2 771973 - - 77,973 630 77,343
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
DUg R AT RNEB TR Debt instruments at amortised cost 32,985,496 . - 32,985,496 59,406 32,926,090
—PEERL - Stage 1 32,985,496 - - 32,985,496 59,406 32,926,090
—PEEx2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—PEER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
BREMREM Loans and advances to customers 132,178,325 1,812,898 2,539,012 136,530,235 1,636,402 134,893,833
—PEEL - Stage 1 123,617,311 - - 123617311 406,618 123,210,693
— e - Stage 2 8,561,014 1,812,898 - 10,373,912 342,731 10,031,181
—PBEER3 - Stage3 - - 2,539,012 2,539,012 887,053 1,651,959
BERE Trade bills 3,666,988 - - 3,666,988 5,570 3,661,418
—PEERL - Stagel 3,665,308 - - 3,665,808 5,569 3,660,239
—MBER - Stage 2 1,180 - - 1,180 1 1,179
—PEER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
FEstH SR EMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 4,100,434 11,806 70,319 4,182,559 25,193 4,157,366
—PEERL - Stage 1 4,075,916 - - 4,075,916 10,169 4,065,747
—P&ER2 - Stage2 24,518 11,806 - 36,324 2,238 34,086
—PEER3 - Stage 3 - - 70,319 70,319 12,786 57,533
ERREMEE  RETER Loan and other commitments,
and financial guarantees 74,563,798 33,167 10,125 74,607,090 98,973 74,508,117
—PEERL - Stage 1 71,765,299 - - 71,765,299 89,684 71,675,615
—P&ER2 - Stage2 2,798,499 33,167 - 2,831,666 9,289 2,822,377
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - 10,125 10,125 - 10,125
At Total 313,702,650 1,857,871 2,619,456 318,179,977 1,888,410 316,291,567
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3.2.5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail
Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30

DPD.

Class 2 “special mention
31-90 DPD.

”, which generally covers loans with

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers
are current in meeting commitments and for which the full
repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which
borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to
credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan quality
cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest; or
loans that are considered uncollectible after all collection options
have been exhausted.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

Treasury

Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with

internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to

counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to

counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

IREE
Gross carrying amount
LOBIETF TG HKS’000 2023 2022
FIER S RBRNEE Trading assets
—(E5RS - Debt securities 1,739,841 562,161
—{TETA - Derivatives 1,062,388 746,544
HqHHTETAR Hedging derivatives 2,503,761 3,154,692

DUATESHE B E BT AIEEER
SRAE
—BEES

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
- Investment funds

8,216 9,303
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.5 REIAFFE IR mat BAtis ELeF 57 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
ZREIEEREE (1B other credit enhancements (Continued)

FEEZEERRI2E TP BE— ST The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed

with reference to the following:

. HEPZER AR B IHBERVBRRRZ . Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
B8 ; portfolio, are backed by collateral;

. EEREZERERRBRLERENKRE . Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
RARFERY1.94% (20224 © 1.86%) ; K& constituted 1.94% (2022: 1.86%) of the total loans and advances

to customers; and

. BHEHE SR EMESRERT4% (20224 : . T4% (2022: 72%) of the investments in debt securities and other
72%) R/EASERR © bills have at least an A- credit rating.
3.2.6 BRIRE 3.2.6 Loans and advances
BEREF BT - Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:
LB T 008 HKS’000 2023 2022
BRI BR4AEER Gross loans and advances 143,049,476 136,530,235
NkR - REEELRRE Less: total impairment allowances (1,113,256)  (1,636,402)
e Net 141,936,220 134,893,833
EERBEZER R Credit-impaired loans and advances 2,779,561 2,539,012
Bk BEERSBEZER Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (485,255) (887,053)
B Net 2,294,306 1,651,959
FEIERRATE" Fair value of collateral held* 1,707,443 1,056,118
EEREERABREERER K Credit-impaired loans and advances as
PREEEA DL a % of total loans and advances to
customers 1.94% 1.86%
* ERRATFENRBIERRMERERKRERS * Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of
iR MEPERREET © collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance as a
percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad internal

rating classes.

2023 2022
BEERE BEZER
(L ETREREE L EREREE
ALt Bt
Impairment Impairment
SR xk#s  allowance EREEE allowance
B7Lt as a % of B asa % of
Loans and loan Loans and loan
advances balance advances balance
% % % %
4871 Class
1-1FH 1-pass 96.8 0.3 96.8 0.4
2—45RIREE 2 - special mention 13 10.0 1.3 15.3
3—AREUT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.9 17.5 1.9 34.9
100.0 0.8 100.0 1.2
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
impaired under HKFRS 9

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

192

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R

ARG
NFE
Eps4EEE WEEE BRE{E  Fairvalue
20237 12H31H At 31 December 2023 Gross Impairment Carrying of collateral
LCBMSTF 5T HKS’000 exposure allowance amount held
EERBEZER Credit-impaired loans
BAE : Loans to individual:
— =R+ - Credit cards 13,055 11,265 1,790 =
—FIBE™N - Mortgages 336,922 60,443 276,479 315,248
—Hfh - Others 295,157 118,753 176,404 51,617
G : Loans to corporate entities:
—BHE™M - Term loans 1,834,850 195,196 1,639,654 1,073,352
—BBER - Mortgages 49,254 12,842 36,412 47,724
—BZmE - Trade finance 123,826 30,069 93,757 101,265
—HAth - Others 126,497 56,687 69,810 118,237
EEREZEREEE Total credit-impaired loans 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306 1,707,443
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3.

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

() BREBMBREERBIRFEEER

Loans and advances to customers that are credit-

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

BEZEFERRBEHR(E) impaired under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
FHIEES
RIE
R EAREE BEZEH IRMEE Fair value
20225 12831H At 31 December 2022 Gross  Impairment Carrying  of collateral
LCEMST o 5T HKS’000 exposure allowance amount held
BEEREBEZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER Loans to individual:
—(EAF - Credit cards 14,176 11,991 2,185 -
—ZIBE™R - Mortgages 254,376 52,170 202,206 219,655
—HAth - Others 340,231 168,771 171,460 43,633
BEEM Loans to corporate entities:
—BHE™M - Term loans 1,566,736 569,768 996,968 498,002
—IBER - Mortgages 109,328 6,608 102,720 108,734
—E2ME - Trade finance 106,092 35,465 70,627 43,726
—HAth - Others 148,073 42,280 105,793 142,368
EEREZEMMEEE Total credit-impaired loans 2,539,012 887,053 1,651,959 1,056,118
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

() BEHKIEEETAEEE

(b)

Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) Gross amount of overdue loans

2023 2022
HHAKR(EE BHARER
= el BRARgE
Gross Gross
amount of EECEE] amount L4858
overdue BSLE  ofoverdue Bt
LUBIET (U5 HKS’000 loans % of total loans % of total
FEEELEMK Gross loans and advances to
BERARZR > B customers which have been
overdue for:
—3BAMU EZE6MEA - six months or less but over
three months 344,615 0.24 535,376 0.39
—6EAMUEELIF - one year or less but over six
months 664,811 0.46 987,443 0.72
—1F E - over one year 1,158,163 0.81 332,525 0.25
2,167,589 1.51 1,855,344 1.36

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(Continued)

(i) Value of collateral held and impairment allowances

G R ATFRFmn E against overdue loans and advances
EEE
KREEHEE gl gl iRl P5ER3
Outstanding HhE  FAEEMD  REEAIEG RELERE
amount of Current Portion  Portion not Stage 3
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 loansand market value covered by coveredby  impairment
LOBEET o5 HKS'000 advances  of collateral collateral collateral allowances
BHEARERE RS Overdue loans and advances
KER to customers 2,167,589 2,615,092 1,553,890 613,699 228,158
BRURER
REEHE iRt D HHRD PEER3
Outstanding BhE FAIEEMD  REERIEZR REERE
amount of Current Portion Portion not Stage3
20224F12831H At 31 December 2022 loansand  market value covered by covered by impairment
LOBMSFT(78;m HKS000 advances of collateral collateral collateral allowances
BHAREBELER Overdue loans and advances
R to customers 1,855,344 1,715,178 888,975 966,369 632,380

FEZERREBRIERER  #18
MERIBIREMEEEERE

() KEHER(EHRaEETLHRZE

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,

mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed

assets such as equipment.

(c) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

HEF) overdue loans and advances shown above
{h4a%E 1548%8
Bt Bt
LOBIEF iR HKS°000 2023 % of total 2022 % of total
BERERMBR Loans and advances to customers 405,780 0.28 339,249 0.25
FEERIBUBZRERE Stage 3 impairment allowances 115,036 123,023
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3.2 FEREGE

3.7 BEEHE

7220235 %2022 125318 » Wt im HAEE3E
ANNEZRIBMEER o

3.2.8 WIETHE #Fm

RERFTA ZWEHRHR I T -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.7 Trade bills

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no balance of trade bills
that were overdue for more than 3 months.

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

LGB TFTvsR HK$°000 2023 2022

BE4E Nature of assets
Bl /ES Repossessed properties 252,687 125,262
Hth Others 925 5,560
253,612 130,822

W EHE R IR AT IE R BIREE > BUGHRIEA MU
RARBRZ ERAREIRET o

i 5+ BT % 35 48 {& 4 58,181,000 78 7T (2022 £F :
59,356,000787T) Z X R E P S T H A
Th 782 EAR R AR B R A BepB i 2 Tk 2 AT L
VIR ERE RO o ZIRIF @A 2RV TH
MEEIETWRHEBEHEZEE - BAZERE
WAL IEFESR o

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$58,181,000 (2022: HK$59,356,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders issued
by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the Group
for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note 30. The

relevant loans had been derecognised.



3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.9 EHRERF 3.2.9 Loss allowance
TRIBHEREBUHEIRE LR E NN ER LML The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s ECL allowances
Z2EBPERKRBR ~ ERUKIERYERRZTEH for loans and advances to customers, loan commitments and financial
EEEEEBNRE guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.
£ Retail

MEERL 3::9) PEER3 At

FiEE FHiEE FHEE FHiEE
BRER BRER BRERE BRER

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
LOBEEF 5T HKS’000 allowance allowance allowance allowance
2023F1H1H At 1 January 2023 301,393 43,466 232,932 571,791
B/ Transfers:
EREREL Transfer to Stage 1 7,800 (5,227) (2,573) =
BREMR Transfer to Stage 2 (6,259) 38,425 (32,166) -
EBRERRS Transfer to Stage 3 (25,868) (18,830) 44,698 =
FREEREIS R BB AL 2 §/2  Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (4,595) 11,755 339,157 346,317
HBRIRE - BAT B New financial assets originated, purchased
JERMEE or derecognised during the period 55,948 17,767 (6,880) 66,835
BNTAE /BIBKE BHEK  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking
AIE /ARG 28 assumptions (50,112) (11,140) 48,651 (12,601)
FEIRRLIR Unwind of discount 363 570 76 1,009
b6z Write-offs - - (433,434) (433,434)
SN R ELfth 28 Foreign exchange and other movements (72) (47) - (119)
2023%F12A831H At 31 December 2023 278,598 76,739 190,461 545,798
20221814 At 1 January 2022 365,825 36,230 219,180 621,235
82 Transfers:
ERERE Transfer to Stage 1 5,676 (5,676) - -
BRERE Transfer to Stage 2 (4,498) 4,975 (477) -
EREMRES Transfer to Stage 3 (20,511) (13,099) 33,610 -
AEREBEREGEEMESLZF2E  Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (845) 7,615 266,461 273,231
HARETRA ~ A SRR New financial assets originated, purchased
JEHEE or derecognised during the period 36,837 7,516 (7,197) 37,156
BHEIAR BIBRE /BNEKR  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking
HIE /R RR 28 assumptions (81,337) 5,403 31,178 (44,756)
FRIREEER Unwind of discount 409 502 68 979
e Write-offs - - (309,891) (309,891)
IME R HLA =S Foreign exchange and other movements (163) - - (163)
2022F12A31H At 31 December 2022 301,393 43,466 232,932 577,791
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 ZERE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.9 ETIRER (5B) 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
1oE Corporate
(1291 (2] PeEz3 &t

RS BHEE FHEE FHiEE
BRER BRER BiRERE BiRER

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
LOBEF 5T HKS’000 allowance allowance allowance allowance
2023F181H At 1January 2023 194,546 308,554 654,121 1,157,221
' Transfers:
EBYRERR] Transfer to Stage 1 20,345 (19,629) (716) -
BRERED Transfer to Stage 2 (17,535) 17,535 - -
BRERES Transfer to Stage 3 (123) (200,220) 200,343 -
FMERER R EREEMESEZE 2  Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (8,115) 19,807 174,078 185,770
HARITRE ~ BA TR New financial assets originated, purchased
ZEHMERE or derecognised during the period 10,497 43,908 (19,597) 34,808
BNTAE /BHIB%E /BHEK  Changes in PDs/LGDs/FADs/forward-looking
I/ AR RS 28 assumptions (48,113) 17,929 257,298 227,114
ERRAGIR Unwind of discount 396 1,579 508 2,483
b6z Write-offs - - (971,199) (971,199)
SNEE R L fth 43 Foreign exchange and other movements (290) (89) (42) (421)
2023%12H831H At 31 December 2023 151,608 189,374 294,794 635,776
2022%181H At1 January 2022 218,142 323,745 328,429 870,316
I Transfers:
BB TR Transfer to Stage 1 7,275 (6,111) (1,164) -
ERERERL Transfer to Stage 2 (19,004) 19,004 - -
BRERES Transfer to Stage 3 (1,795) (81,831) 83,626 -
FPERER REGEEFTEEZ# 2  Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (3,481) 20,174 505,434 522,127
HAPRTRA ~ AR New financial assets originated, purchased
EHEE or derecognised during the period 23,306 (16,342) (39,442) (32,478)
BNTAR /BHIB%ER /BHEK  Changes in PDs/LGDs/FADs/forward-looking
AIE /AR RR 28 assumptions (28,716) 50,246 44,493 66,023
RIRIAIR Unwind of discount 84 1,422 121 1,633
i Gz Write-offs - - (267,340) (267,340)
IME R HL A= Foreign exchange and other movements (1,265) (1,753) (42) (3,060)
2022412A31H At 31 December 2022 194,546 308,554 654,121 1,157,221
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3.2 EEEK@E)
3.0.9 EFIEER (4B)

TREHEEBMBREER IR AERILREE
Z BB (B RERNBRZRE(EBERE
PRI R HERNBERER) LR ©

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross exposure
(in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of loans and advances
to customers and notional amount of loan commitments and financial

guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.

o2 Retail
PRERL [42:7) PRER3 A&t
ER4EEE il Ebg4egE il
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
LOBIEFolidn HK$’000 exposure exposure exposure exposure
2023%1H1H At 1 January 2023 108,270,766 549,368 608,783 109,428,917
B2 Transfers:
BRERER Transfer to Stage 1 91,960 (69,081) (22,879) -
BREMR Transfer to Stage 2 (499,145) 576,495 (77,350) =
BT Transfer to Stage 3 (449,421) (154,194) 603,615 =
IBHESD ~ 4R EHEED Origination, derecognition, further lending
E—TERRER and repayment 581,806 (70,277) (33,527) 478,002
Hi Write-offs - - (433,434) (433,434)
SN R EL {23 Foreign exchange and other movements (28,606) (262) (74) (28,942)
2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 107,967,360 832,049 645,134 109,444,543
202F1818 At 1 January 2022 111,759,224 448,842 588,688 112,796,754
B/ Transfers:
EREREL Transfer to Stage 1 76,020 (76,020) - -
BYERER Transfer to Stage 2 (344,783) 349,174 (4,391) -
EREMEES Transfer to Stage 3 (347,038) (93,907) 440,945 -
IAHESD ~ 42 [FHEED Origination, derecognition, further lending
E—FERRER and repayment (2,714,542) (78,721) (106,318) (2,899,581)
b Gz Write-offs - - (309,891) (309,891)
IME R H A= Foreign exchange and other movements (158,115) - (250) (158,365)
2022512831H At 31 December 2022 108,270,766 549,368 608,783 109,428,917
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3. BEBRREIEGE)
3.2 EEEK@E)
3.0.9 EFIEER (4B)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

1oE Corporate
PRERL FEER2 PEER3 At
ER4EEE EbR4EEE EbR4EgE Elg4EzE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
LOBEET AR HK$’000 exposure exposure exposure exposure
2023F181H At1January 2023 86,794,020 12,656,210 1,940,354 101,390,584
EE N Transfers:
BREMERL Transfer to Stage 1 825,047 (820,113) (4,934) -
YRR Transfer to Stage 2 (4,489,852) 4,498,645 (8,793) -
BRERES Transfer to Stage 3 (60,863) (1,445,766) 1,506,629 -
IAHESD ~ 4R [FHEED Origination, derecognition, further lending
E—FEMREN and repayment 4,608,617 (2,277,320) (327,205) 2,004,092
b6z Write-offs - - (971,199) (971,199)
SN R ELth %) Foreign exchange and other movements (46,002) 370 (425) (46,057)
2023F12831H At 31 December 2023 87,630,967 12,612,026 2,134,427 102,377,420
20221818 At1 January 2022 93,331,598 13,457,362 856,375 107,645,335
E=roN Transfers:
BYEERR] Transfer to Stage 1 1,289,871 (1,287,410) (2,461) -
ERERER Transfer to Stage 2 (4,974,097) 4,979,117 (5,020) -
BRERLS Transfer to Stage 3 (827,604) (823,332) 1,650,936 -
IGHESD ~ 4R LD Origination, derecognition, further lending
E—FEHNIER and repayment (1,858,687) (3,640,620) (287,024) (5,786,331)
/622 Write-offs - - (267,340) (267,340)
SME R E S Foreign exchange and other movements (167,061) (28,907) (5,112) (201,080)
2022128315 At 31 December 2022 86,794,020 12,656,210 1,940,354 101,390,584

HEAGEERERERITIER RUSERA A
TR U A E 2 BEEH T AR MEENG
WEHBTLAE  HPUATET=EBHEFHF AR
HEEWE N ER T 248(E78,113,0007 7T M fE
EEREREKI > B EEHEBEEEEERE
FEFF22022512 831 HB9630,000 8 i i1 = 5
2023512831 HA947,530,00078 7T (20224 : 42{E
77,973,000/8 TCHFSER 1SR EMEEL2 > BEHEE
5518 (R P ER 9 A% A E F 72,00078 7018 11 22 630,000
BIT) o D EEERINM EASHNFERER
ELBER o

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Treasury portfolio, which consists of cash and balances with banks
and debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income. Of which, debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income with notional amount of
HKS$78,113,000 was transferred from Stage 2 to Stage 3 with an
increase in ECL allowance from HK$630,000 as at 31 December 2022
to HK$47,530,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: transfer notional
amount of HK$77,973,000 from Stage 1 to Stage 2 with an increase in
ECL allowance from HK$72,000 to HK$630,000) due to stage transition.
Others are classified in Stage 1 without stage transition during the year.



3. HEEKRER(8) 3.
3.2 EEEK@E)
3.2.10 (BF5EE %
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.10 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating agency
designation at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

UATHE
FERHEE
FAHMRE
Wt EREE LAER RS
Financial FlIERRY
assets at EREE
fair value Financial
X%  through other assets at
2023128318 At 31 December 2023 B®REE comprehensive amortised At
LOBITF 5 HK$’000 Trading assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 927,174 204,328 1,131,502
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 1,739,841 14,972,157 8,768,677 25,480,675
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ - 16,210,084 16,494,505 32,704,589
B EERA- Rated but lower than A- - 5,259,389 6,458,233 11,717,622
FETR Unrated - 1,395,483 7,487,563 8,883,046
At Total 1,739,841 38,764,287 39,413,306 79,917,434
MATE
srERHES)
HAHMEE
WENERMEE LUgERRR 2
Financial BIJ8RRY
assets at TREE
fairvalue Financial
X% through other assets at
20225 12831H At 31 December 2022 FE#EE  comprehensive amortised ast
LB idm HK$°000 Trading assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 3,127,926 - 3,127,926
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 562,161 10,208,949 6,440,778 17,211,888
A-EA+ A-to A+ - 15,630,609 15,806,959 31,437,568
BB BERA- Rated but lower than A- - 8,975,053 7,449,315 16,424,368
*BTR Unrated - - 3,288,444 3,288,444
At Total 562,161 37,942,537 32,985,496 71,490,194
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure

(a) Geographical sectors

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are

classified according to the location of the borrowers after taking

into account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies

when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area

which is different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to

customers by geographical area.

20235 20226

12A31H 12H31H

At At

31December 31 December

LOBWF 3T HKS$000 2023 2022
BEREM MR Gross loans and advances to customers

_ - Hong Kong 119,759,434 115,359,550

_chEpo ~ Mainland China 7,546,867 6,387,927

_smpe ~ Macau 14,012,453 13,466,251

e - Others 1,730,722 1,316,507

143,049,476 136,530,235

202 KIRITEEARAT 2023555k
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure (Continued)

() 7% (b) Industry sectors
EEEA KB — 21T # R B s Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector classified
4E according to the usage of loans
LOBETFTlidm HK$°000 2023 2022
EEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEswt Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property development 6,908,262 5,194,440
—MERE - Property investment 23,767,506 21,406,840
S - Financial concerns 3,607,794 2,564,573
—REEL - Stockbrokers 1,240,252 842,926
—HEERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,791,670 4,825,599
— 5 - Manufacturing 1,684,066 1,954,317
—ERRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,662,549 2,247,726
— ERGEE) - Recreational activities 62,840 79,708
—EMRE - Information technology 29,760 22,048
—Hfh - Others 6,062,815 6,054,928
50,817,514 45,193,105
A Individuals
—-BEIEEEHE S - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
A2 EERHE IR Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
TEEEHEEEFER Participation Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 467,752 484,470
—BEEMETMEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 34,954,353 33,911,826
—ERREM - Credit card advances 3,841,087 3,674,222
—Hfh - Others 13,530,504 12,181,304
52,793,696 50,251,822
TEEEHANEDN Loans for use in Hong Kong 103,611,210 95,444,927
B55E (1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,624,799 5,752,611
EEBLUMERMER (F(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note (2)) 33,813,467 35,332,697
143,049,476 136,530,235
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors (Continued)

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans (Continued)

Note:

(1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet

positions arising from adverse movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of DSB, run their treasury
functions locally under their own set of limits and policies and within
the market risk management framework set by DSB. The RMCD of
DSB oversees the market risk arising from the treasury operations of
BCM and DSB China to ensure that the risk controls put in place are
commensurate with their businesses and consistent with the Group
standards.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(a) Marketrisk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and control
market risk are outlined below.

(i) Value-at-risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
one calendar year using a method known as historical
simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.1 Marketrisk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(a)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value-at-risk (Continued)

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board and its delegated committees at least
annually for all trading positions and allocated to business
units. Actual exposures, including VaR, are monitored
against limits on a daily basis by RMCD. Average daily VaR
for the Group for all trading activities during the year was
HK$3,022,000 (2022: HK$3,388,000).

(ii)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress testing,
where stress movements are applied to each risk category;
and scenario stress testing, which includes applying
possible stress events to specific positions or portfolios.
Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading portfolio
is measured to evaluate the expected size of extreme
trading loss beyond a specified confidence level and over a
longer holding period. In addition, reverse-stress tests are
performed as a useful tool to evaluate the maximum size of
market stress that the Group can endure before hitting the
prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.
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3.3 TiFAK (&)
3.1 JBEXSRZ H5EE (4E)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.1 Marketrisk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(2) mERARENE (b) VaR summary of trading portfolio
#FE2023F12831H1E121AR HZE2022F12831H L1218 8

12 months to 31 December 2023 12 months to 31 December 2022
T35 Ri= =RIE T BE =
LOEMSFoS);n HKS000 Average High Low Average High Low
4 R B Foreign exchange risk 2,504 4,030 291 1,660 3,113 262
IESEl Interest rate risk 1,393 4,822 469 2,393 5,844 511
IR kR All risks 3,022 5,997 703 3,388 6,132 653

3.3.2 JEEIRITIRZ FiG R

KREBZRITERT > THEREAREERANEH K
EmtRBEZRFE -

3.3.2 Marketrisk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.
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(a) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities. In
addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including reverse-
stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest rates on the
Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions and credit spreads
on the Group’s investment securities are regularly performed
to gauge the market risk inherent in the Group’s banking
book portfolios and manage it against the established control
measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the market
risk of the banking book.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.2 Marketrisk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of subsidiaries in Mainland
China and Macau. The net exposure positions including
the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by individual
currency and in aggregate, are managed by the Treasury
and Global Markets Division of the Group on a daily basis
within established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that
this is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2023, if HKS had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$34 million higher (2022: HK$27 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HKS had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$34 million lower (2022: HK$27 million lower).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.2 Marketrisk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in
its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”). From an earnings
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the net income
arising from future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
From an economic value perspective, interest rate risk is
the risk that the economic value of a financial instrument
will undergo adverse impact because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from
both perspectives in the banking book. As such, the interest
margins or net interest income and the economic value
of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and monitor
the interest rate impacts through scenario analysis and
stress testing regularly.

At 31 December 2023, if HKS and USS market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up shock
under the HKMA’s standard parallel up scenario, with
other variables held constant, the impact on earnings over
the next 12 months and the impact on economic value of
equity would have been HK$201 million higher and HKS$775
million lower respectively (2022: HK$335 million higher and
HK$670 million lower respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity

analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are broadly
on the same basis for both 2022 and 2023.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s

investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed

to risks arising from other factors. Consequently, the value of such

investments could change significantly depending on a variety of

factors including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that

might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. BEBRREIEGE) 3.
3.3 THiZE (&)

3.3.3 SMNEmESE

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

TRE A ERZEEH D RLUBEEEIIE The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
THEEREE  UKEEBBRINGERETF liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit
BEREEREZEEE - commitments translated into equivalent HKS amounts, categorised by
currency.

2023512A31H At 31 December 2023 B g5 WP AEH i ay
LEEFT AT HKS'000 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
e RITRITHVAEER Cash and balances with banks 7,825,273 1,925,695 488,870 1,456,791 4,699,141 16,395,770
ERTIERERNIS Placements with banks maturing between

HER one and twelve months 496,027 271,124 - 2,230,640 153,423 3,151,814
?%T’E*%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% Trading securities 1,739,841 - - - - 1,739,841

ATHES B EHES) Financial assets at fair value through

ET?\?&!ﬁﬁEﬁmﬁ'ﬁE profit or loss - - - 8,216 - 8,216
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 98,744 3,190,255 - 43,311 233,839 3,566,149
XIE“#&HWEE Advances and other accounts 114,604,375 12,751,407 7,789,057 8,794,149 5,174,966 149,113,954

UATEEEHEEA Financial assets at fair value through other

Eﬂﬁ@%ﬁ@ﬁm@a comprehensive income 7,888,098 31,448,863 863,918 88,181 235,882 40,525,842
DU AT RN SREE Financial assets at amortised cost 5,499,662 30,230,626 1,577,744 1,887,122 177,224 39,372,378
SREER Total financial assets 138,152,920 79,818,570 10,719,589 14,508,410 10,674,475 253,873,964
&ff Liabilities
TR Deposits from banks 39,775 1,954,100 - 490,697 4n 2,485,044
fTE&mIa Derivative financial instruments 47,690 1,036,182 - 12,231 183316 1,279,419
KIERBRENERE Trading liabilities 99,853 - - - - 99,853
BRER Deposits from customers 137,684,695 40,385,267 8,818,391 12,005,523 8,339,822 207,233,698
BEINEDE Certificates of deposit issued - 2,428,028 - - - 2,428,028
BEER Subordinated notes - 50916,645 - - - 5916,645
HAERE RiBE Other accounts and accruals 3,450,439 3,925,255 288,090 302,757 54,113 8,020,654
SHaEAH Total financial liabilities 141,322,452 55,645,471 9,106,481 12,811,208 8,577,123 227,463,341
BEABRAKARE Net on-balance sheet positions (3,169,532) 24,173,093 1,613,108 1,697,202 2,096,752 26,410,623
BEBERIMGELEFE  Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 47,035  (22,348,398) - (1,436,748)  (1,798,634)  (25,536,745)
EE&E Credit commitments 55,122,860 7,059,396 1,841,877 4,697,483 50,871 68,772,487
* BESBERIIMNIELRFEETEANREARE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

BN EEF R INE

EERITTE TEMRIRFERE o

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

2022%12A318 At 31 December 2022 BT e P NG 2t At
LOEEF A HK$'000 HKD usp MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
RERIERTHER Cash and balances with banks 9,396,640 401,962 521,291 2,294,409 5,186,578 17,800,880
ERMZEDERRE Placements with banks maturing between

W one and twelve months 5,839,272 - - 2,217,134 500,159 8,616,565
BERBRRNES Trading securities 562,161 - - - - 562,161
WATErEEHES Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNSEHEE profit or loss - - - 9,303 - 9,303
TE&mIA Derivative financial instruments 153,112 3,568,584 - 2,716 176,824 3,901,236
REETREMKE Advances and other accounts 110,166,410 13,449,728 7,846,780 8,453,351 2,796,348 142,712,617
WATESEEEEHHA Financial assets at fair value through other

Et2ENENEHEE comprehensive income 9,061,417 28,956,363 324,521 131,374 144176 38,617,851
DU ATRNSREE Financial assets at amortised cost 4154888 25,098,193 1,141,093 2,355,588 176,128 32,926,090
SRBEAT Total financial assets 139333900  71474,830 9833885 15,523,875 8980213 245,146,703
& Liabilities
B1TEA Deposits from banks 422,926 3,689,567 - - - 4,112,493
fTE£MTIA Derivative financial instruments 59,048 828,542 - 11,551 98,496 997,637
FIERAEENERE Trading liabilities 730,491 - - - - 730,491
BRER Deposits from customers 129,098,151 39,154,306 9,256,780 13,042,834 9,240,130 199,792,201
BETHEE Certificates of deposit issued - 4,228,983 - - - 4,228,983
BEER Subordinated notes - 3,801,495 - - - 3,801,495
EfERERTER Other accounts and accruals 3,001,043 4,317,747 189,629 316,402 49,129 7,873,950
SEIBRAS Total financial liabilities 133,311,659 56,020,640 9446409 13,370,787 9,387,755 221,537,250
BESRRNEERH Net on-balance sheet positions 6,022,241  15454,190 387,476 2,153,088 (407,542) 23,609,453
BEABRIMNIALEEE"  Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 16463860  (15,923,280) - (1,099,191) 647,607 88,996
EEAE Credit commitments 59,473,558 7,503,748 2,160,921 5,092,322 376,541 74,607,090
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 TIBEE (@) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 FIERE 3.3.4 Interest rate risk

TERMIIAERZFERE - KNBIEAERRZ The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
BRESETEC EREBEREE ) UTREEEX Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at
HeEIHAE UUREE R %) H1E ° carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or

maturity dates.

3fEAME
3fER 1 1ENE
FUF Over 55 SELE THE

20235128310 At 31 December 2023 3 months 3months  Over1year Over  Non-interest Bt
WEET AT HKS000 or less to1year to 5 years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
HERITRITAVEER Cash and balances with banks 15,549,282 - - - 846,488 16,395,770
ERTIELERMES Placements with banks maturing between

HER one and twelve months 1,172,881 1,978,933 - = - 3,151,814
FIERBRGENES Trading securities 1,725,135 7,293 7,413 - - 1,739,841
UATHEEE AHES) Financial assets at fair value through

SABGNEREE profit or loss - - - - 8,216 8,216
fTE£MIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,566,149 3,566,149
BIBEHRAMERE Advances and other accounts 129,093,406 7,390,531 5,604,257 253,581 6,772,179 149,113,954
WATESEEEEHEA Financial assets at fair value through

HEtrERGENEREE other comprehensive income 5,882,922 7,989,493 21,376,780 3,515,092 1,761,555 40,525,842
D AT RN EREE Financial assets at amortised cost 4,855,651 7,644,867 19,744,598 7,125,270 1,99 39,372,378
sEmEELH Total financial assets 158279277 25,011,117 46,733,048 10,893,943 12,956,579 253,873,964
af Liabilities
HITER Deposits from banks 2,472,238 6,107 - - 6,699 2,485,044
fTEemTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,279,419 1,279,419
KIERBRENGE Trading liabilities 99,853 - - - - 99,853
ERER Deposits from customers 153,408,394 37,670,653 2,634,371 - 13,520,280 207,233,698
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 796,144 1,631,884 - - - 2,428,028
BERS Subordinated notes 1,754,856 - 4,161,789 - - 5916,645
EftRERTER Other accounts and accruals 487,347 101,404 326,627 149,162 6,056,114 8,020,654
SRBESH Total financial liabilities 159,018,832 39,410,048 1,122,787 149,162 21,762,512 227,463,341
FISHEZESS (KIGEE)*  Totalinterest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (739,555)  (14,398,931) 39,610,261 10,744,781
FRTE TRz A Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 30,131,970 (395,558)  (17,669,399)  (12,067,013)
FIEHRZESH (%)% Totalinterest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 29,392,415  (14,794,489) 21,940,862  (1,322,232)
* RCHEF WA EENREEEBERNEEMN * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of

BENHEEET - KRR EBREEEFA on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
TLREF R R IEMETHRETE TRESH89 takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered

Ko into to mitigate interest rate risk.

212 KIRITEEBRAR 2023FF5R
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3.3 THiZE (&)
3.3.4 FEEGE (4)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EAME
3(EA FlIE 1N E
FUF Over E56 SELE THE

202F12831H At 31 December 2022 3months 3months  Over1year Over  Non-interest =6
LOBETF AR HKS'000 or less to Lyear to5years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
RERIERTHER Cash and balances with banks 16,088,163 - - - L7277 17,800,880
ERMIZEDERRE Placements with banks maturing between

WET one and twelve months 5,856,264 2,760,301 - - - 8,616,565
RIERBRENES Trading securities 545,165 6,438 10,558 - - 562,161
WATErEEHES Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNSEHEE profit or loss - - - - 9,303 9,303
fTEERTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,901,236 3,901,236
REETREMKE Advances and other accounts 122,129,946 4,962,885 8,510,503 2,910,738 4198545 142,712,617
WATESEEEEHHA Financial assets at fair value through

Et2ENENEHEE other comprehensive income 6,690,905 6,158,337 20,117,460 4,975,835 675314 38,617,851
DS ATRNEREE Financial assets at amortised cost 2,969,264 3210135 19,153,704 7,590,998 1989 32,926,090
THEEAH Total financial assets 154279707 17,098,096 47,792,205 15477571  10499,104 245,146,703
= Liabilities
B1TER Deposits from banks 3411424 - - - 701,069 4,112,493
fTE£MIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 997,637 997,637
BERZRENEE Trading liabilities 730,491 - - - - 730,491
REEA Deposits from customers 132723417 48,958,085 2,406,598 - 15704101 199,792,201
BEINETE Certificates of deposit issued 814,917 3,049,142 364,924 - - 4,228,983
BERS Subordinated notes - - 3,801,495 - - 3,801,495
EfERERTER Other accounts and accruals 738,548 101,529 295,877 101,148 6,636,848 7,873,950
SEIBRAS Total financial liabilities 138,418,797 52,108,756 6,368,894 101,148 24,039,655 221,537,250
FISHEERES (RGEE)*  Totalinterest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* 15860910  (35,010,660) 40923331 15376423
RETETRRZ S Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 29,990,577 689,839 (16,153,692)  (14,526,724)
FISHEEES (CHBE)*  Totalinterest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 45851487 (34,320,821) 24,769,639 849,699
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand severe liquidity stresses. The Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) and the Core Funding
Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory standards specified by the HKMA for
reporting on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period, the Group
had maintained sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above the statutory
minimum of 25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the HKMA’s requirements set forth in the
SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity Risk”
and the SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk
Management”. The SPM LM-1 is to provide the approach adopted by
the HKMA for supervising and assessing the liquidity risk of banks while
the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles
formulated by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel
Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of
banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to oversee
liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the Group’s loan
and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and projections,
and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the LMR, CFR and
maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. In addition, material changes
in the liquidity risk metrics together with any corresponding proposed
mitigation actions will be reviewed by ALCO. Appropriate limits or
triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid assets are
held to ensure that the Group can maintain a sufficient level of stable
funding to support its asset growth. The Treasury and Global Markets
Division is responsible for the day-to-day management of funding and
liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for the measurement
and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis,
and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial
Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity risk,
and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR,
CFR, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune times in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis of
the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as
the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical
observations. The cash flow projections also take into account the
historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn
lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as standby letters
of credit and guarantees. The Group always maintains an adequate
liquidity cushion, which is composed of high quality marketable
securities with sufficient market depth to meet its liquidity needs at all
times, even under adverse market conditions. Eligible securities in the
cushion mainly have low risk and simple structure and can be readily
sold or used as collateral to obtain funds within a short period of time.
Debt securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure
their market liquidity.
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3.4.1 FEETRGEIERF (4B)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

B8AT In HK$ million
20234 20224
12831H 12H31H
AEpr4E As at Asat
Internal EAcAER| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2023 2022
F14R R EBBENRE LN « 2B RI/T « BRAEFAS K 13,202 11,331
NEBAETIIRRZ ERIEEZR0%NEBES
Tier1 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
F2AMR RIEEEBBENREEZNBT « ZBERIRT - AEEURIFE 13,594 7,859
R TR R 2 AR E R 20% B BE 5
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and non-
financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight under the
Basel Il Standardised Approach
2Bk 2 OAFRESHREL A EER BB EEF L RPN RBE E 46,973 46,384
S RIIERITHRRZ EMBEERS
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate

or financial institutions with at least an investment grade and
those securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets”

under the liquidity maintenance ratio

REBEMETEDR - SREERESEERM
B~ —RTIBEEBY Rt E ME TR 5 UET
EREMRREZBZ T HER TEERE
FEBRI-RINRFERER  SEEEHK
SRR KB ENERBREA N R LR
Bz NE R IHIER « REBRERESEE S
g s EHES B 2 RN ERIEN A
BIRERTBZIEF (PINETRIREH R 7
ERFRItEREERRZEE) - SFETR
BAAKEVSFERAREE B URFRAD
REEREN - ERRAABZRZRAFRAE
TRREBERTZREATEAMS - NREE
ME=H2RFEE - AEEZMBADNEES
RZBER T AEEERBESH R UENEE
2 AEEZTTETARZ RS RINESH R
REH - AEBZTTET ARG RS BINESK
RAUKRGH - BRAEBETETARZHTZ
R RZHHER - BRI m BB EER FE5T
AREERRE o

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help identify any emerging risk at an early stage. The
Group maintains a contingency plan that sets out its strategies for
dealing with liquidity stresses and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.



3. HMEERE

(%)

3.4 REELER ()

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 FIHFE T 3.4.2 Maturity analysis
TEROMAEERREHREEHASOEEAES The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
P AMELIA (WEA) 2 FerRRAErBE KR maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the
I=(E reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,
the earliest callable date.
AR E
fB3fdF  3fERML
FUF F1f 1EME
HEEE  1EAELT  3monthsor Over EE  SENE

2023%12831H At 31 December 2023 Repayable Upto lesshutover  3months  Overdyear Over  fEEHE ait
LB HK$'000 on demand 1month Imonth  tolyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
BE Assets
RERTRTIEES Cash and balances with banks 2,798,656 13,597,114 - - - - - 16,395,170
HRTIZ1ERRA Placements with banks maturing between

R one and twelve months - - 1,172,880 71,398 1,901,536 - - 3,151,814
F (R AR Trading securities - 199564 925,571 7,93 7,413 - - 1,739,881

AATEtEERES Financial assets at fair value through

af/\iam VEHEE profitorloss - - - - - - 8,216 8,216
fifeMIA Derivative financial instruments - 391,222 168,773 461,233 1108949 1435972 - 3,566,149
%IE‘*#&H ] Advances and other accounts 7,906,144 20,568,181 8,765,111 18,835,778 47,061,097 43,855,800 2,121,843 149,113,054

WATEHEEAESEA  Financial assets at fair value through other

Ami@uﬁzmmﬁmﬂéé comprehensive income - 2862699 2,042 8,100,081 22,262,163 3515092 1761555 40,525,842
DESHATERNEREE  Financial assets at amortised cost - M7698 1279847 7,095,630 20,521,940  7,125271 1,99 39,372,378
BEnaRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 225131 2215131
HEEHERSE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 129946 129946
BE Goodwil - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
B EE Intangible assets - - - - - - 69,715 69,715
NENEMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2,813,087 2,813,187
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 761,604 761,604
fiEEE Currentincome tax assets - - - 1273 - - - 1213
FithEgE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 165,823 - - 165,823
BER: Total assets 10,704,800 40,266,478 14,736,434 35,478,686 93,028,921 55,932,135 10,596,640 260,744,094
af Liabilities
R Deposits from banks 97,690 625719 1,755,528 6,107 - = - 2,485,084
fiheRTa Derivative financial instruments - 4sadma 166,770 331,390 246,168 50,617 - 1219419
R ERENEE Trading liabilities - 99,853 - - - - - 99,853
ZRER Deposits from customers 61,406,351 35,870,147 69,652,215 37,670,614 2,634,371 = - 207,233,698
BEINESE Certificates of deposit issued - 406,054 390,090 1,631,884 - - - 2,428,028
BEEH Subordinated notes - 1,754,856 - - 4,161,789 - - 5916645
ek Lease liabilties - 12,305 23,898 95,859 296,832 52,935 - 48189
EftRERFR Other accounts and accruals, excluding lease

TERERE liabilities 3719281 4218240 972455 1,507,735 64,591 1311 35,152 7,538,825
HHESE Currentincome tax iabilities - - - 8161 - - - 8161
ELEeE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 103,699 - 5 103,699
Bfait Total liabilities 61,883,322 43,531,648 72,960,956 41,621,200  7T507,450 114923 235,152 227,854,651
FrEEE Net liquidity gap (51,178,522)  (3,265,170) (58,224,522)  (6,142,514) 85521471 55817212 10,361,488 32,889,443
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3. MBRREE(GE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 RENEEERE(E) 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 FIHFE 7 (#8) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1EANE
B3ER  3@AME
FUT ki 15 E
HEEE  1BEIUT  3monthsor Over E5E SELLE

N2F12831H At31 December 2022 Repayable Upto lessbutover ~ 3months  Overlyear Over  HSTRAHE &t
LT HKS'000 ondemand Lmonth 1 month tolyear  to5years Syears  Indefinite Total
El Assets
RERERANES Cash and balances with banks 3329660 14471020 - - - - - 17,800,880
HRTIZ1ERRA Placements with banks maturing between

HBNER oneand twelve months - - 5856260 2,760,303 - - - 8616565
B GBENES Trading securities - - 545,165 6,438 10,558 - - 562,161
LATEEEEEY Financial assets at fair value through

FABENEHEE profit or loss - - - - - - 9303 9303
fEsRTA Derivative financial instruments - 297,916 169477 83959 1390438 1,809.446 - 390123
KBRS REMRE Advances and other accounts 7312478 19328139 9450982 15940086 45195717 43719598 L705617 142712617
LUATEFZEESER A Financial assets at fair value through other

Hin2ERENEHEE  comprehensiveincome - 1A% 4732868 628075 20510033 4975835 675314 38,617,851
DUBSAATERISSEE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 1399416 507964 321013 20215587 7,591,000 1989 32,926,090
VN Investment in an associate - - - - - - 2159290 2,159,290
HEEHERLE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 12301 13,01
BE Goodwil - - - - - - 713451 13451
BYEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 69,715 69,715
HEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2808838 2,808,838
LENE Investment properties - - - - - - 802,691 802,691
EEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 262,73 - - 262,13
AR Total assets 10642138 36992417 21,26,718 28378995 87584606 58155879 9,069,280 252,086,033
I Liabilities
FirfE Deposits from banks 51759 2574810 1,020,088 - - - - 4110493
fEEMTA Derivative financial instruments - 249,956 184,586 161,327 401,768 - - 997,637
RIERGHENEE Trading liabilities - 499,125 230,766 - - - - 730491
BB Deposits from customers 867839 21539766 55020079 48958156 2,406,361 - - 199,792,201
BEANEDE Certificates of depositissued - - 814916 3,049,143 364,924 - 4228983
BEEE Subordinated notes - - - 3,801,495 - 3,801,495
HEaR Lease liabilities - 11,992 23,833 101,529 295,876 101,148 - 534378
EGEENG R Other accounts and accruals, excluding lease

TERERE liabilities 39191 4269674 998,427 6,985 712,562 744,205 28528 133957
HHiEEE Current income tax iabilities - - - 284,504 - - - 284,504
EHEAR Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 39,131 - - 39,131
BEA: Total liabilities U605 19145923 58292695 52561644 802117 845,353 268528 221,860,885
FrEtER Net liquidity gap (6208248T)  T846494  (3T009977) (24182649) 79562489 5731056 8800752 30,225,148

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity is shown as follows:

1fEBNE
B3R  3ERLE
AU RE 1M E

HEEE  ERSLUT  3monthsor Over B5E SENE

Repayahle Upto lessbutover  3months  Overlyear Over  fEEEHER ait

LT HKS'000 on demand 1month Imonth  tolyear  to5years 5years Indefinite Total
20235127310 At 31 December 2023
REREESA Certificates of deposit held included in:
LIATEFZEEZEA  Financial assets at fair value through other

EMRENGNSHEE  comprehensiveincome - - 116051 245,088 - - - 361,139
LUESAASIRNEREE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 51 - 3,390,806 - - - 3,918,269
022E1E3H At 31 December 2022
FREDERAR Certificates of deposit held included in:
LIATEEREEEHA  Financial assets atfair value through other

EthPENGNEHEE  comprehensive income - - - - 234,493 - - 234,493
DUBSAATERISHEE  Financial assets at amortised cost - 5475529 167475 2,077,486 307,688 - - 310178

BEEAARARKNZMBEEMZIENHEIHE
HEREE+TDER - HNETHNEBRZEREE
TEENHRRNELER - WIRTM S > 28
ERBERE N EE - MEEKNFERAIERSE
HgES] » B EIENNESIRER

HERA BN RN A BN A SR
B B ENAES  RIMEEEREE 2 RERF
=R EEEB A EARNEERE -

HEE—RAERE =SS REERRZEEED
REE > BAEFRNEREREE TARIEN
MBBEFREDREENEREE - HNRZEE
EEREIIR LB BASHAES - FAILBNE
HEEZFEEAENRENGOBEERYLER
HERIREEK °

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management
of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as
businesses transacted are often of uncertain term and of different
types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but
also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace,
at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature
are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis

include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency

futures, exchange-traded currency options;

. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

. Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps

and cross currency interest rate swaps;
. Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps; and

. Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.



3. MBEREE(E)
3.4 REBEEKE(E)
3.4.3 HEAEIHZ R BEEET (&

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
EBU LB 3fERME 1N E
IERAUT FIE E55
1EBFMUT  3monthsor Over Over SEN L
2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 Upto less but over 3 months 1year Over &t
WEET T HKS'000 1month 1month tolyear to 5 years 5years Total
FETARER Non-derivative cash flow
af Liabilities
RN Deposits from banks 729,834 1,755,734 6,107 - - 2,491,675
RRER Deposits from customers 98,016,971 71,344,966 38,783,585 2,706,755 - 210,852,217
HERGRRNEE Trading liabilities 100,000 - - - - 100,000
BEANEDE Certificates of deposit issued 426,348 410,104 1,715,955 - - 2,552,407
- Subordinated notes 1,800,993 - 214323 5,012,902 - 7,028,218
sk Lease liabilities 12,306 23,898 95,859 296,833 52,035 481,831
Hhef Other liabilities 46,320 1,152 49,058 - 292,685 389,215
BEAE Total liabilities
(BWEIER) (contractual maturity dates) 101,132,772 73,535,854 40,864,887 8,016,490 345,620 223,895,623
fETERER Derivative cash flow
BEBEE TSI Derivative financial instruments settled
on net basis (4,705) (14,592) (33,941) (65,284) - (118,522)
RABEE 2RI Derivative financial instruments settled
0n agross basis
it Total outflow 85,336,237 | | 22,075,866 | | 72,768,443 5,529,931 613,826 | | 186,324,303
HABE Total inflow (85,388,726) | | (22,183,153) | | (73,795,310) | | (8,432,753) | | (1,300,819) | (191,100,761
(52,489) (107,287)  (1,026,867)  (2,902,822) (686,093)  (4,776,458)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
BRLLEE  3ERML 1ELE
3EAAUT FlIE E5E
MERZLAT  3monthsor Over Over SELLE
202F12831H At 31 December 2022 Upto  lessbutover 3months Lyear Over =5
LOBETF T ia)m HKS'000 1 month 1 month to 1year to 5years 5years Total
FETARER Non-derivative cash flow
L Liabilities
RGN Deposits from banks 3,148,402 1,382,987 - - - 4,531,389
REEA Deposits from customers 95895491 55,619,737 50,045,801 2,472,269 - 204,033,298
FIERZRENaE Trading liabilities 500,000 232,000 - - - 732,000
BEINEDE Certificates of deposit issued - 831,134 3,186,512 392,760 - 4,410,406
&EEE Subordinated notes 44103 - 113,547 4,505,592 - 4,663,242
HESR Lease liabilities 12,568 24,940 105,902 307,274 102,485 553,169
HtheE Other liabilities 1,921,368 505,260 363,116 - 271,746 3,061,490
&fE0E Total liabilities
(B#ZIHB) (contractual maturity dates) 101,521,932 58596058 53,814,878 7,671,895 374231 221,984,994
TETARSN Derivative cash flow
A A Derivative financial instruments settled
on net basis (127,172) (39,229) (96,951) (47,124) (1,520) (311,996)
REBER  TESRTA Derivative financial instruments settled
on a gross basis
iiluskiar Total outflow 65,920,646 | | 19,021,182 | | 19,090,989 | | 16,823,690 6,407,382 | | 127,263,889
MARE Total inflow (64,878,213) | | (18,802,935) | | (21,225,892) | | (19,005,166) | | (7,135,611) | |(131,047,817)
1,042,433 28247 (2,134903)  (2,181,476) (128229)  (3,783,928)
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

. Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual

amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments

that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

. Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the

reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

. The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

. BERERREZBAKIE . Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
1ENUA 1EME

2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023 No later than E5E S5EME At
LOBETF 5 HK$'000 lyear 1-5years Over 5 years Total
EREdE Loan commitments 63,598,438 2,657,580 194,226 66,450,244
BR AR R Guarantees, acceptances and other financial

At RAR facilities

—EREERERSE - Guarantees and standby letters of credit 1,906,693 22,228 - 1,928,921

-RERBEERE - Documentary and commercial letters of

credit 393,322 - - 393,322

RERRAVRIE Operating lease commitments 2,474 6,355 1,430 10,259
BAREE Capital commitments 50,729 - - 50,729
&% Total 65,951,656 2,686,163 195,656 68,833,475
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3.4.4 BEREZINER (B)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

LM 1EME
2022 12A31H At 31 December 2022 No later than E5F SENE a5t
LB FTlin HK$'000 1year 1-5years Over 5 years Total
BRI Loan commitments 68,441,125 2,301,536 668,036 71,410,697
BR AR Guarantees, acceptances and other financial
Eth SRR facilities
—EREERERSE - Guarantees and standby letters of credit 2,613,307 17,352 - 2,630,659
—REREEERH - Documentary and commercial letters of
credit 247,910 - - 247,910
BESRER Forward forward deposits placed 317,824 - - 317,824
RERRARIE Operating lease commitments 6,299 10,297 - 16,596
BAREE Capital commitments 71,857 - - 71,857
CES Total 71,698,322 2,329,185 668,036 74,695,543
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3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(a) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility for
overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to the
TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and where
appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified valuers
and the valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the
integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(a) Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximises
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and
minimises the use of unobservable inputs. For example, the fair
value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of
the estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts is generally based on current forward rates
and the fair value of option contracts is derived using appropriate
pricing models, such as Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit spreads
in determining the current value of its financial liabilities and
other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option. When
the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a gain on
these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has decreased.
When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises
a loss on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process

are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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3. HBRREIEGE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.5 TREERAGEZATEGE) 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) RFEZR (b) Fair value hierarchy
FEEGEA T RMEBEE AT ERITER The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy
AR HEEM RRRTERTE that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable

inputs used in the fair value measurement:

&E AR Level Descriptions
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1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices). This level includes the majority
of the OTC derivative contracts. These are financial
instruments with quoted prices for similar instruments
in active markets or quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments in inactive markets and financial
instruments valued using models where all significant
inputs are observable.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

REMATESE Recurring fair value measurements
2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 F14R 2R 3R aF
LUBIETF o5 HKS’000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S Descriptions
FHER 5 BRI S K& Trading securities and financial
URTEs+E B HES assets at fair value through
AR ERHEE profit or loss
(et Tioes Debt securities - 1,739,841 - 1,739,841
KREREE Investment funds 8,216 - - 8,216
TTEERMITA Derivative financial instruments
FER 7 Ak Held for trading - 1,062,388 - 1,062,388
HHBEEH Held for hedging - 2,503,761 - 2,503,761
UAFESTEBHES) Financial assets at fair value
FFAEMPEEEERN through other comprehensive
TREE income
(b Tk Debt securities - 38,764,287 - 38,764,287
Em e Equity securities 268 - 1,761,287 1,761,555
BNFESTEZEESRST  Totalassets measured at
fair value 8,484 44,070,277 1,761,287 45,840,048
UAFESTEBHED) Financial liabilities at fair value
STABTNERMaE— through profit or loss -
F1ER 5 Ak held for trading
B8 Debt securities - 99,853 - 99,853
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments
FER Z Ak Held for trading - 1,057,303 - 1,057,303
FHBEEH Held for hedging - 222,116 - 222,116
BATESTEZBEAST  Total liabilities measured at
fair value - 1,379,272 - 1,379,272
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent investments
in shares issued by unlisted entities. These investments were
acquired some years ago when the Group applied to join the
platforms or cooperative arrangements operated by the relevant
entities in areas such as international financial messaging, cross-
border payments, credit cards issuance, etc. which are essential
to the provision of banking services by the Group.

The unlisted equity investments are measured using valuation
techniques of market comparable companies, dividend discount
model, discounted cash flow model, or recent transaction.
The significant unobservable inputs are the average price-to-
book ratio (“PB ratio”) of the comparable listed companies, the
dividend growth rate and cost of equity used in the dividend
discount model, and the discount rate and dividend yield used
in the discounted cash flow model. As at 31 December 2023, if all
of the significant unobservable inputs favourably changed and
unfavourably changed by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive
income would have increased by HK$87 million (2022: HKS50
million) and decreased by HK$87 million (2022: HK$45 million)
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
out of the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The
changes in carrying value represent the revaluation gains/losses
during the year. There was no addition or disposal during the
year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

At 31 December 2022

F14k FE24R

F34R

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

A

[==y=]
LB T (75T HK$°000 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
S Descriptions
T%T’E 25 FERREE S & Trading securities and financial
NETE B HES) assets at fair value through

qu)\%E T B RS E profit or loss

(et Tioess Debt securities - 562,161 - 562,161

KEES Investment funds 9,303 - - 9,303
TEERMITA Derivative financial instruments

FHER S Ak Held for trading - 746,544 - 746,544

FEREEH Held for hedging - 3,154,692 - 3,154,692

UAFESTEBEHEES) Financial assets at fair value

FFAEMEEEERN through other comprehensive

ERIEE income

1B Debt securities - 37,942,537 - 37,942,537

RS Equity securities 337 - 674,977 675,314
BNFESTEZEESRST  Totalassets measured at

fair value 9,640 42,405,934 674,977 43,090,551

UAFESTEEHEED) Financial liabilities at fair value

st AER E’]énﬂﬁfi— through profit or loss -

e 5 held for trading

1BE7558 Debt securities - 730,491 - 730,491
ThEEmIA Derivative financial instruments

FHER S Ak Held for trading - 640,447 - 640,447

FERIEEH Held for hedging - 357,190 - 357,190
BATESTEZBEAST  Total liabilities measured at

fair value - 1,728,128 - 1,728,128
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.5 EMBEEREBEZATEGEE 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(A) XL FEFEZEHTA (c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
THHEFENERBEZER  UEEHNTE The following methods and significant assumptions have been
BNESHMTENAFEE applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
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presented below:

(i) Cash and balances and placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(ii) Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates to determine fair value.

(iii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value of
amortised cost assets is based on market prices or broker/
dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits from banks, deposits from customers and
certificates of deposit issued

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is
the amount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings
not quoted in an active market is based on discounted
cash flows using interest rates for new debts with similar

remaining maturity.

(v) Subordinated notes

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 except as follows:

2023128317 At 31 December 2023 BREfE F1R 2R 534R AFE
LOBIT T3 HK$’000 Carrying value Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
ERHEE Financial assets
ReRIRTERRK Cash and balances and

TERITRVER placements with banks 19,547,584 19,547,584 - - 19,547,584
DU SRR ATIBRRY Financial assets at

TREE amortised cost 39,372,378 - 39,306,558 2,000 39,308,558
Era=i| Financial liabilities
BEITNEDE Certificates of deposit issued 2,428,028 - 2,430,481 - 2,430,481
BEES Subordinated notes 5,916,645 - 5,915,400 - 5,915,400
20226 12331H At 31 December 2022 FREE =148 ST H3R AT
LOBIT L5 HK$°000 Carrying value Level 1 Level2 Level3 Fair value
TRIEE Financial assets
RERRITHERR Cash and balances and

ERITHER placements with banks 26,417,445 26,417,445 - - 26,417,445
DUeRm A5 B R Financial assets at

SHEE amortised cost 32,926,090 - 32,562,989 2,000 32,564,989
TRIBE Financial liabilities
BETNEDE Certificates of deposit issued 4,228,983 - 4,233,857 - 4,233,857
BEGER Subordinated notes 3,801,495 - 3,797,662 - 3,797,662
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

. To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

. To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a

going concern;

. To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to

other stakeholders; and

. To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of

its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Hong Kong banking subsidiary is monitored regularly by the Group’s
management, employing techniques based on the guidelines
developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the HKMA, for
supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the HKMA
on a quarterly basis.

Under the regulatory framework in Hong Kong, DSB is required to meet
three capital ratios, namely, the Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Tier
1 capital and Total capital respectively against risk-weighted assets.
The internationally agreed minimum of these three ratios are set at
4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In
order to comply with HKMA’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-
G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, DSB is required to set further
buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar Il
capital requirement. In addition, DSB is required to fulfil the capital
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer requirements
set by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio forms part of Basel IlI
implementation and the required information is submitted to the
HKMA on quarterly basis. In line with the international standards, the
minimum Leverage Ratio is set at 3% by the HKMA.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognised by the
HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules, taking into
account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-balance sheet
exposures are converted into credit-equivalent amounts by applying
relevant credit conversion factors to each exposure, before being
classified and risk-weighted as if they were on-balance sheet exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated statement of financial position are share capital, retained
profits, other equity instruments and other reserves. Capital also
includes collective provisions and regulatory reserve for general
banking risks as allowed under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in Mainland
China, DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the National Financial
Regulatory Administration (“NFRA”) respectively for supervisory

purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the NFRA on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM and
the NFRA requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or capital
base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy ratio)
not lower than the required statutory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are
not included in the consolidated financial statements. These services
could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-
administration.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment of
the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the consolidated financial statements are fair and
reasonable in all material respects.

(a) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions
and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and
the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note
3.2.2, which also sets out key sensitivities of the ECL to changes in these
elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

. Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

. Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the

measurement of ECL;

. Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of

measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in Note 3.2.2.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried at fair
value are valued based on observable market quotations. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation for
valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range of observable
quotations, recent observable transactions, the reliability and quality
of the pricing source, and the value of securities of a similar nature. For
unlisted equity investments, management judgement and estimates
are required for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters,
assumptions and modelling techniques.

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments measured at fair
value at reporting date are shown in Note 19, 20 and 22.

(c) Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of
goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the assumptions
in relation to future benefits to be generated from the intangible
assets, including future cash flow of benefits to be generated from the
acquired entities, or discount rates which could be caused by major
changes in market conditions and outlook, could result in adjustments
to the carrying values of such assets. In the event that the expected
recoverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly
lower than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would have
to be recognised.

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible asset at reporting date
are shown in Note 27.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out impairment assessments on its investment in
BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment against
the higher of management’s estimate of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of the value in use is based on
a discounted cash flow projection which contains certain assumptions
derived from management and observable market information. This
estimate is subject to application of management judgement and is
sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate disposal.

As at 31 December 2023, management’s estimate of the value in use is
lower than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ. As a result, in
the year ended 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in BOCQ has been written down by HK$552 million (2022:
HK$1,683 million).

(e) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most
relevant:

. If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the

Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

. If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably certain to

extend (or not terminate).

. Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical
lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to
replace the leased asset.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Determination of the lease term (Continued)

Most extension options in property leases have not been included in
the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not
exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise)
it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects
this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee. During the
current financial year, the Group has not exercised any extension or
termination options.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at
reporting date are shown in Note 28.

(f) Tax position relating to the unamortised upfront
payment and deferred payments recognised as income

As announced by the Group when the Hong Kong Distribution
Agreement (“HKDA”) was entered into on 19 June 2017, the HKDA was
intended to be an exclusive, long-term bancassurance cooperation
between DSB and Tahoe Life Insurance Company Limited, which
was terminated on 8 July 2022. A new bancassurance arrangement
entered into with Sun Life Hong Kong Limited which has commenced
in the second half of 2023. Management assessed that the upfront
fee and deferred payments received and receivable by DSB under
the HKDA and the new bancassurance arrangement can be treated
substantially as capital in nature for tax purpose. Management has
taken this consideration into account in the preparation of the financial
statements.
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5. ZFTRBMBERARKEEES 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
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MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
EREFERRR Statement of Financial Position of the Company
12H31H
As at 31 December
LOBIETTlL5)m HK$’000 2023 2022
EREEE Non-current assets
MEABRE Investments in subsidiaries 7,000,118 7,016,170
MATEtEBEEHTA Financial assets at fair value through other
HithzxmlmNEmEE comprehensive income 856,394 856,394
mEE Intangible assets 8,635 8,635
7,865,147 7,881,199
MENEE Current assets
El—EN B AR Z RIT4EER Bank balances with a subsidiary 59,258 4,250
FEMER B E AR B Accounts receivable and other accounts 468 468
FEWI B ARRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 36,063 19,945
95,789 24,663
mEnaE Current liabilities
TRIRE AR EMRE Accrued expenses and other accounts 1,968 1,902
[EHBARRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 442,818 442,830
444,786 444732
FmEas Net current liabilities (348,997) (420,069)
7,516,150 7,461,130
R EQUITY
&N Share capital 6,894,438 6,894,438
HihfwE (BIERERT) 5% (FF) Other reserves (including retained earnings) Note (a) 621,712 566,692
AL Total equity 7,516,150 7,461,130

EEEF20245F3 828 B R ISR o

B3k
EF

"HEHE
EFEEE

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

March 2024.

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Director

Hon-Hing Wong
Managing Director



5. ZAABMEIRRRKRAGES) (8) 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

= .
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(F) HRBNHEEE
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Note:

(@)  Reserve movement of the Company

DARHRESZ L
B A EHE
RNz Bt
fREEH  Share-based
Retained Compensation ait
LOBETFTiA)T HKS’000 Earnings Reserve Total
2022F181H At 1 January 2022 594,371 4,694 599,065
FEHF Profit for the year 445343 - 445,343
MRS I URARR Provision for equity-settled share-based
W Bt compensation - 239 239
2021FREFR S 2021 final dividend (337,380) - (337,380)
20225 HHERRR S 2022 interim dividend (140,575) - (140,575)
20224 12H831H At 31 December 2022 561,759 4933 566,692
202351810 At 1 January 2023 561,759 4,933 566,692
FERF Profit for the year 617,266 - 617,266
DS U AR Provision for equity-settled share-based
W Bt compensation - 55 55
2022FFHEE 2022 final dividend (407,668) - (407,668)
2023F G S 2023 interim dividend (154,633) - (154,633)
2023126310 At 31 December 2023 616,724 4,988 621,712
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with HKFRS
8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC members,
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
is determined on the basis of personal banking, corporate banking,
treasury and global markets and banking businesses in Mainland China
and Macau. Operating performances are analysed by business activities
for local banking business, and on business entity basis for banking
businesses in Mainland China and Macau.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following reportable
segments:

. Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales and
investment services.

. Corporate banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from and the advance of loans and working capital finance to
commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and the
provision of trade financing.

. Treasury and global markets activities are mainly the provision
of foreign exchange services and centralised cash management
for deposit taking and lending, interest rate risk management,
management of investment in securities and the overall funding

of the Group.

. Mainland China and Macau banking businesses include personal
banking, corporate banking business activities provided by
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Macau, and the Group’s

interest in a commercial bank in Mainland China.

. Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from customers,
products and services directly identifiable with individual segments
are reported directly under respective segments, while revenue
and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding operation and
funding resources are allocated to segments by way of transfer pricing
mechanism with reference to market interest rates. Transactions within
segments are priced based on similar terms offered to or transacted
with external parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated

on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are
grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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6. M¥QIE$EH: (H\E)

6.

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

#F2023F12831HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2023
FERHR
HMERIRH RPIEReT
%%  Mainland
AT  &%BFT  Treasury  Chinaand ]|
Personal  Corporate  and Global Macau Hift Inter- act
LOBETF T8 HKS$'000 Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
FHERA/ () Net interest income/(expenses) 2,015,027 1,183,911 1,124,749 478,004 13,908 (164) 4,815,435
FEREHA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 748,390 203,211 (26,453) 148,483 37,560 (10,542) 1,100,649
BEWA /(i) 488 Total operating income/(expenses) 2,763,417 1,387,122 1,098,296 626,487 51,468 (10,706) 5,916,084
BESY Operating expenses (1,855,232)  (533,440)  (232,540)  (547,755)  (10,636) 10,706  (3,168,897)
NIAEEHE (5548) /% Operating profit before credit
[Pyl impairment (losses)/written back 908,185 853,682 865,756 78,732 40,832 - 2,747,187
EERE SR /O Creditimpairment (losses)/written
back (311,830)  (350,600) 27,560  (98,244) 1,803 - (131,31)
NETRERETEEZ  Operating profit/(loss) before gains
Wa R ER 2 & and losses on certain investments
iafl/ (1) and fixed assets 596,355 503,082 893,316 (19,512) 42,635 - 2,015,876
HERBYE  TEREM  Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair
BEEERIATE value adjustment of investment
HE3 (BB /W properties, premises and other
fixed assets (874) - - 1,79 (39,179) - (38,259)
EEMEAT 728 Share of results of an associate - - - 688,957 - - 688,957
BENFREZAESE  Impairment loss on the investment in
an associate - - - (552,000) - - (552,000)
FELEHENTRE Loss on deemed disposal of
258 investment in an associate - - - (10) - - (10)
PEEHARHIZREZ2E  Shareof results of jointly controlled
entities = = - - 27,014 - 27,014
FRARATRA Profit before taxation 595,481 503,082 893,316 119,229 30,470 - 2,141518
BB /O Taxation (expenses)/credit (98,487) (82,3200  (147,363) (16,346) 63,244 - (281,272)
FERF Profit for the year 496,994 420,762 745,953 102,883 93,714 - 1,860,306
HZ2023E12831HEEE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2023
EREHER Depreciation and amortisation 73,020 18,407 10,177 57,666 189,744 - 349,014
120235 12H31H At 31 December 2023
NESE Segment assets 50,462,117 65,445,748 93,997,176 38,706,673 7,889,172  (4,756,792) 260,744,004
NEEE Segment liabilities 121,866,174 49,354,251 12,902,840 31,848,027 16,640,151  (4,756,792) 227,854,651

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R
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6.

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

HZE2022F12831HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2022
SRR
HERIRIK PR
MHES Mainland
TBART T Treasury  Chinaand IS
Personal  Corporate  and Global Macau Ht Inter- st
LOBETF T am HKS$°000 Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
BRI/ (EH) Net interest income/(expenses) 1890619  1,183415 918,047 485,207 (94,263) 35 4,383,060
JFRIBHA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 2,102,346 188,591 33,839 114,999 10,157 (6722) 2443210
BEWA/ (i) % Total operating income/(expenses) 3992,965 1,372,006 951,886 600,206 (84,106) (6,687) 6,826,270
BESH Operating expenses (1,747,004) (485,425) (199,218) (543,714) (47,336) 6,687 (3,016,010)
MIAEEHE (558) /% Operating profit/(loss) before credit
B2 EERN/ (58) impairment (losses)/written back 2,245,961 886,581 752,668 56,492 (131,442) - 3,810,260
EERE SR /o Credit impairment (losses)/written
back (192,606) (468,365) (36,388) (107,358) 2,117 - (803,100)
NBETRERETEEZ  Operating profit/(loss) before gains
W kBRI &R and losses on certain investments
iahl/ (58) and fixed assets 2,053,355 417,716 716,280 (50,866) (129,325) - 3,007,160
HERBMERM Net loss on disposal and fair value
EEBEREATE adjustment of investment
BELEEE properties and other fixed assets (2,337) (60) - (29) (38,336) - (40,762)
EEL BT IRRY Net gain on disposal of financial
SHEE IR assets at amortised cost - - 2% - - - %
iGNz EE Share of results of an associate - - - 656,691 - - 656,691
HENTREZAESE  Impairmentloss on the investment in
anassociate - - - (1,683,000) - - (1,683,000)
FEHERSATLE Loss on deemed disposal of
pd investment in an associate - - - (10) - - (10)
FEERFEHER 2 2E  Shareof results of jointly controlled
entities - - - - 29,879 - 29,879
BriaER/ (E538) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,051,018 417,656 716304 (1,077,214) (137,782) - 1,969,982
BB /EE Taxation (expenses)/credit (338,200) (68,936) (118,357) (14,879) 179,190 - (361,182)
EEER/ (58) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,712,818 348,720 597,947 (1,092,093) 41,408 - 1,608,800
EHZE2022E1283181EEE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2022
EREHER Depreciation and amortisation 74,355 15,862 8,150 58,725 223,077 - 380,169
#2022E 128318 At 31 December 2022
NEEE Segment assets 56274744 63748007 93451822 35908242 1426257  (4724029) 252,086,033
DEEE Segment liabilities 11729213 48743485 14,526,149 29279831 16806236  (4,724,029) 221,860,885
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6. EESIEWRS(E) 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

BIEDIEER D IRERNEBRE IR A IRER
% BEBERS MBI AFRNETEEZ AR
o B E2023F K2022F 12831 HIEFE » (RE
B WEEB—FERNEEDIEER10% U £
ZAREBZEE - 86 - EEWATRRENET) o

Geographical information

Geographical segment information is based on the domicile of the legal
entities within the Group with business dealing and relationship with,
and services to external customers. For the period ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, no single country or geographical segment other than
Hong Kong contributed 10% or more of the Group’s assets, liabilities,
operating income, or profit before taxation.

244

7. FHEWKA

7. NETINTEREST INCOME

LOBEF T HK$’000 2023 2022
FMEWKA Interest income
RERAEIRITHERR Cash and balances with banks 704,047 327,255
BEKE Investments in securities 3,846,823 1,882,200
FIEEHRREMEKRE Advances and other accounts 6,934,735 4,755,147
11,485,605 6,964,602
MEZEH Interest expense
IRITERBEETER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 6,068,633 2,266,792
BETNERGE Certificates of deposit issued 184,061 104,812
BEBEHS Subordinated notes 328,257 164,346
HEaRE (HE28(2)) Lease liabilities (Note 28(b)) 7,669 8,201
Hith Others 81,550 37,391
6,670,170 2,581,542
FEBABR Included within interest income
—FHER S ABENES & - Trading securities and financial
MR ETEBHEFFA assets at fair value through profit
BERNERMEE or loss 13,110 6,258
—UAFEFEAEEEF A - Financial assets at fair value
HithemlEmEmEE through other comprehensive
income 2,560,848 1,052,753
— USRI AT IR SR E = - Financial assets at amortised cost 8,911,647 5,905,591
11,485,605 6,964,602
MEXZHES Included within interest expense
—UAFESFEAREEF A - Financial liabilities at fair value
BmiEmans through profit or loss 5,098 7,086
— USRI AT IR SR aE - Financial liabilities at amortised
cost 6,665,072 2,574,456
6,670,170 2,581,542

REE2023F 2022F 12831 H I FE » R

HBEREBEZMBEUA -

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there was no interest

income recognised on impaired assets.



8. FRBERMAZWA

8. NETFEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

LGB F T2 HK$’°000 2023 2022
RIS ERAZWA Fee and commission income
RAURTEESEBHEHFTA Fee and commission income from
BaNEmEEREEZ financial assets and liabilities not at
RIS E R AEUWA fair value through profit or loss
—(EEBRZRBERAE - Credit related fees and commissions 158,987 156,941
—BZWE - Trade finance 49,475 57,761
—fBRF - Credit card 272,664 250,016
HMRFBE RMEERA Other fee and commission income
—RBHRRL AT - Securities brokerage 100,840 144,653

—REGEE R EM (GE (F))

—EERERVEEERS

— RIS ERTEE
—HtRFHE

RFBERAEXH
RURFEFHEBHEF A
BueREERARZ
BRI E RS

—FEENMAE
—BfNHEMER

5 -

() FR002FER7 2+ amR12022F758
AAREESHRIEEBASREDHIHERRE
IV TE TRBEIE S {9 % 28 & $£1,394,149,000 78

JT ©

(2) FEERFE=SREHEE 58 BEEERR
HEERY - BRUESHRBHNEERUREAS
PEALNEELEFEEMBREA

- Insurance distribution and others
(Note (a)) 163,961 1,518,633
- Retail investment and wealth

management services 131,980 157,757
- Bank services and handling fees 72,258 70,096
- Other fees 128,802 76,890

1,078,967 2,432,747

Fee and commission expense

Fee and commission expense from
financial assets and liabilities not at
fair value through profit or loss

- Handling fees and commission 202,974 176,750
- Other fees paid 9,191 6,902
212,165 183,652

Note:

(a) The amount reported for 2022 includes recognition of the unamortised
upfront payment and deferred payments totalling HK$1,394,149,000 upon
termination of the HKDA announced by the Group on 8 July 2022.

(b)  The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
investment management services to third parties. The assets subject to
these services are held in a fiduciary capacity and are not included in these
consolidated financial statements.
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9. BFXBWA

9. NET TRADING INCOME

LB F 04T HKS’000 2023 2022
INERZ 7R R Net gain arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 125,667 143,034
FER 2 RRmE S 2 Flm (B518) Net gain/(loss) on trading securities 2,819 (452)
FERZABRNITTE T A B E Net gain from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose 34,947 8,035
BAFES e ST A Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
Flla S (B518) instruments subject to fair value
hedge 2,222 (3,785)
MUAESEBHES T AEBTHN Net loss on financial instruments at fair
ST AZFEIE value through profit or loss (812) (3,980)
164,843 142,852
10. HMEEWA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
LGB T T8 HKS$’000 2023 2022
REXRDFEZUAFETEAHESF A Dividend income from investments
HihrEWmmERE TERE 2 REWA in equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income, held at the end of the year
— FhEE - Listed investments 609 716
—JELTHKRE - Unlisted investments 32,137 3,410
KEWME AW ALEEE Gross rental income from investment
properties 14,580 18,310
HMFAEWA Other rental income 15,994 16,763
Hith Others 5,684 12,064
69,004 51,263

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R




11. EEXH

11. OPERATING EXPENSES

LGB F T2 HK$°000 2023 2022
1B EFN e ad]sz Employee compensation and benefit
expenses
— N Bt ASEER - Salaries and other staff costs 1,996,824 1,939,833
— B — TRRLZE L 512 - Government grant - Employment
Support Scheme - (3,848)
— MUBD A E RN~ BB IR (5E44) - Provision for share-based
compensation charged (Note 44) 14,108 239
—RAREZH - FEMRETE G - Pension costs - defined contribution
plans (Note) 118,599 107,554

TERHEMEEEES Y »
TNEFEITE
—TEMEX M (Miz28(2))
—Hfth
e
—TEREMEEEE (5128 (F))

—HERRZ Y (528 (2))
[EE R RS
ENRl ~ XA KREE
TZEEI =
Hith

5t
RN EENRES S

LGB T i8)m

Premises and other fixed assets
expenses, excluding depreciation
- Rental of premises (Note 28(b)) 2,338 2,956
- Others 223,948 249,018
Depreciation
- Premises and other fixed assets

(Note 28(a)) 203,168 232,025

- Right-of-use properties (Note 28(b)) 145,846 148,144
Advertising and promotion costs 85,050 89,824
Printing, stationery and postage 48,171 41,565
Auditors’ remuneration 16,355 11,359
Others 314,490 197,341

3,168,897 3,016,010

Note:

In respect of the Group’s provident fund schemes

HKS’000 2023 2022

FABRINRERHRET2U R

BEFARD AR B R ERER MR

RN SEE AV E M E 2R e S

LGB T ig)m

Forfeited contributions utilised to reduce the

Group’s contribution during the year 18,274 21,816
Forfeited contributions available for reducing
future contributions at the year end 3,763 3,800

In respect of the other defined contribution schemes of the Group

HKS’000 2023 2022

FARRBRINRERHRE2U R

BEFARPARINE B R ERETR MR

Forfeited contributions utilised to reduce the

Group’s contribution during the year 3,000 1,291
Forfeited contributions available for reducing

future contributions at the year end 85 122
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12. EE& 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

BREBASRAIEIBHERAE (BESRAIZE The emoluments of the Directors of the Company in respect of
KR ER) 538 > ARBEEN B MSRE the period of directorship disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the
W Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation were set out below:

Hitblefn
AR
ga.  AREARNEERZ Wt BAER
8
2R FIRARTEAL 1) 2B
By Incentive honuses accrued Other  Employer's
Salary, in respect of services share-hased  contribution a4
EEHE  allowances renderedintheyear  compensation  to retirement (#2)
HZ2023F12A31ALLFE  Vearended 31 December 2023 Directors’ andbenefits ~ MREXfT  LREEA payment benefit Total
WEEF AT HKS$'000 Fee inkind  Cash-settled Share-settled (Note 1) schemes (Note2)
iE Chairman
TrERE David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 5,946 9,225 4,575 - - 20,246
nTES Executive directors
BEERY Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8,718 2,173 1,077 - - 11,968
ThERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 2,458 2,890 1,195 - 197 6,740
REERs Nicholas John Mayhew - 8,294 8,844 3,656 234 497 21,525
BiFTES Independent non-executive directors
SEBRE Robert Tsai-To Sze 475 - - - - - 475
RRsHIRE Seng-Lee Chan 637 - - - - - 637
SREE David Wai-Hung Tam 529 - - - - - 529
ERERE Blair Chilton Pickerell 635 - - = = - 635
&3 Total 2,776 25,416 23,132 10,503 234 694 62,755
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12.

5t ¢

EEME (R)

B MBI AR 2 R 2 S2 (1 B R AR () B2 Eh 5t
B REENDITERREURE R EFHER
BeAE LIRS S Z DURID B/ B 2 21T o DU
MEREE 2R - AARRHROIEL B0
B o RS 2 IRMDERERZ N 28K
B > HARAEERLERIRIERIT LR SR A
X o MUREZ N ZURMGIEAEMRZ 2R
B > BRI TRERD R B RISER S B
AR Z FEURHE o

ERERFKTRERRARENBARZES » H
HZEMBRARXNZHFHNERSE LIRS
FENEETA o

REERNRPELD > TERSEMERETE
AEARS ~ ZHREH » ERAATAER—
BEAATZ EEEFREFEEPEINEAN
(20224 @ £E) o

REZE2023F12A31HIEFE > WwEEEAES
MEABEARNFREWBABIEHERZEMR
B2 AR ZTEREABNE (20226 : #)

AER » WESZ TR IR RBREN TES
Rt BN E B RIS A5 = 5 A s s
EERE (20224 : ) o

12,

Note:

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Other share-based compensation payment includes share awards, equity-
settled and cash-settled share based payment on the share options
exercised or cancelled during the year. For share awards, it represents the
cost of the vested shares based on the closing price of the vesting date. For
equity-settled share based compensations, it represents the cost borne by
the Group recognised on the exercise of the share options while for cash-
settled share based compensation, it represents the cash payment, being
the difference between the exercise price and the average closing price of
the shares of the Company for the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the date of cancellation of the share options.

For directors who are also directors of the Company’s subsidiaries,
remuneration paid by these subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
total remuneration set out above.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2022: Nil).

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in respect
of directors’ other services in connection with management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year ended 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and no

consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year (2022: Nil).
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12. EEMNE @B

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Etbie
AERERH
5o, PRERRAREZ R EEH
2R e e ) 2@
gyfjz  Incentive bonuses accrued Other  Employer's
Salary, inrespect of services share-based  contribution At
EZ%  allowances rendered in the year compensation  to retirement ()
HE2NFNA3IALEE  Yearended 31 December 2022 Directors’  and benefits ~ WR&ST  MRESA payment benefit Total
WEEF AT HKS'000 Fee inkind  Cash-settled  Share-settled (Note 1) schemes (Note2)
I% Chairman
TFERSE David Shou-Yeh Wong 500 5,946 9,943 3495 - - 19,884
WEE Executive directors
RERLL Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) - 8718 2,280 801 - - 11,799
THERE Gary Pak-Ling Wang - 6,144 1243 2,157 - 492 16,036
REERE Nicholas John Mayhew - 8,052 8,476 2525 - 497 19,550
B EdiTES Independent non-executive directors
SEBRE Robert Tsai-To Sze 475 - - - - - 475
ks Seng-Lee Chan 600 - - - - - 600
SRS David Wai-Hung Tam 500 - - - - - 500
FhERE Blair Chilton Pickerell 600 - - - - - 600
&t Total 2,675 28,860 27,942 8,978 - 989 69,444
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13. EEMEZ5MAL

(i) BEN=AEEt
LB TFTud)m

13. THE EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

(i) The aggregate emoluments

HKS’000 2023 2022

L BE - B @R EMRR

SUEMRRARVE
HAth AR {7 2 EHERANB S A

RINEN S8 2 B

(ii) SfIREWAATHIBEAERMT :

Salaries, housing, benefits in kind and

other allowances 38,784 39,296
Performance-related bonus 48,478 49,419
Other share-based compensation

payment 609 -
Employer’s contribution to retirement

benefit schemes 1,385 1,511

89,256 90,226

(ii) The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals are
within the following bands:

A&
Number of individuals
2023 2022
HBITHKS
10,500,001 - 11,000,000 -
11,500,001 - 12,000,000 1
16,000,001 - 16,500,000 - 1
19,500,001 - 20,000,000 - 2
20,000,001 - 20,500,000 1 -
21,500,001 - 22,000,000 1 -
22,500,001 - 23,000,000 - 1
24,500,001 - 25,000,000 1 -
5 5

FSUESMEIWAZ ALTRN » B3 (20224F : 4
i) AEE - HABNESINSEaEE LM M
F12 o

RERN > AEE W EREAIRSWAANLSN
M - FEARMNASINEALEE 2 SR E SRERAHE o

LitsimsWAA LIS EEAMETZEE
PR AR A AN S B~ SEAERITRIR RN TEAT -

Included in the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals were
the emoluments of 3 (2022: 4) Directors. Their respective Directors’

emoluments have been included in Note 12 above.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals shown above

included incentive bonuses accrued in respect of the services rendered
and the Group’s performance for the financial year.
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14. SHRERHE

14. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

LB F 08T HKS 000 2023 2022
PR AES (BNREE 2 ZEE) New allowances net of allowance
releases 851,311 868,342
WEEEE EEE 2 I8 Recoveries of amounts previously
written off (120,000) (65,242)
731,311 803,100
DEIT - Attributable to:
—BR B RE - Loans and advances to customers 798,335 784,312
—Hithem&EE - Other financial assets (36,369) 40,419
—EFUKIE R SIER - Loan commitments and financial
guarantees (30,655) (21,631)
731,311 803,100

15. 118

BEANGRDIRBENGSTEERGAURE
16.5% (20224F : 16.5%) Je 2 o FREIPHI K R
FIMRRD I FERE S ERR AN R A ERLSE %
BHE 2 IRITIEETE o

BEEMBZRASEENERER > RERZSE
MEEEHEFNKNEER FIRKFIBRZR

15. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation

on profits in Mainland China and Macau has been calculated on

the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under

the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

FIEDBFEST © year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
LGB T HKS$’000 2023 2022
KEEIRIA Current income tax:
—EARFER - Hong Kong profits tax 231,268 352,450
— RE Pt R PR I8 - Mainland China’s and Macau’s
taxation 38,320 37,772
—PRIBEEE (B28) /TR EH - (Over)/under-provision in prior
years (39,522) 4
IRIEFRIE (F95E35) - Deferred income tax (Note 35):
— AR ERNAES RED - Origination and reversal of timing
differences 51,301 (29,044)
— WA R - Recognition of tax losses (95) -
281,272 361,182
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15. RIALE)
KEBEBRRIDEF 2 RBER RN GEE AR IR

15. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical

MR B IERBEENT - amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable
to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:
LOBMST T3 HKS’000 2023 2022
FRIR AT A Profit before taxation 2,141,578 1,969,982
BEBFSREL 5% H ZRIE Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits
tax rate of 16.5% 353,360 325,047
RIEAERR - Tax effects of:
HBEIxR 7 FERER Different taxation rates in other
countries 13,094 17,118
EEEIRZULA Income not subject to taxation (39,734) (132,178)
REEIRISZ H Expenses not deductible 136,468 271,348
DMBERERME TR Results of associates and jointly
HEEHIEEZ %A controlled entities reported
net of tax (120,115) (113,284)
REMZEWERPRERZIEE Items recorded in other
comprehensive income (22,279) (6,873)
PIBEEE (B5E) /T e & (Over)/under-provision in prior years (39,522) 4
281,272 361,182
16. &2 16. DIVIDENDS
LGB T2 HK$’°000 2023 2022
BIRFHKRE | §REER0.11ET Interim dividend paid of HK$0.11
(20224 : 0.10787T) (2022: HK$0.10) per ordinary share 154,633 140,575
BORCREARR S | SRR EREAR0.4978 7T Proposed final dividend of HK$0.49
(20224 : 0.29%7T) (2022: HK$0.29) per ordinary share 688,819 407,668
843,452 548,243
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17. =SiREF

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

2023 2022
(&) CE7T)
(HKS) (HKS)

sha Earnings per share
Ha Basic 1.32 1.14
s Diluted 1.23 1.07

i B AR &F TS 28R & 7 1,860,306,000 /& JT
(20224 : 1,608,800,0007870) R EAE B1TLE
A& B% 17 = IO A ¥5$41,405,752,132% (20224 :
1,405,752,1320%) 5155 o

ESREER|THIRIRRF1,723,528,00078 7T (2022
£ 1 1,507,448,000787T) It B5 EE(G = A RF
5136,778,000787T (20224 : 101,352,000587T) A
HEMIE > RENSBITEERRG ZIN#EFS
£11,405,752,132/% (2022 4F : 1,405,752,132%) &%
FEMASESETLERRMNE - FRRRE
R ARITEREEREEBRAHD 2 NETFHE
TR ER A o

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on earnings of
HK$1,860,306,000 (2022: HK$1,608,800,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,405,752,132 (2022: 1,405,752,132) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on earnings of
HK$1,723,528,000 (2022: HK$1,507,448,000) after taking into account of
the dilutive effect of share of profits in an associate in HK$136,778,000
(2022: HK$101,352,000) and the weighted average number of
1,405,752,132 (2022: 1,405,752,132) ordinary shares in issue during
the year after adjusting for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The share options outstanding during the year and at the year
end have no dilutive effect on the weighted average number of ordinary
shares.

2023 2022
B E R F) BT 7oii) Profit attributable to shareholders
(HK$’000) 1,860,306 1,608,300
FE(LEE AR A RS E GBS T oD Dilutive effect of share of profits
in an associate (HK$’000) (136,778) (101,352)
BLUETESREERF ZEF BT o) Profit used to determine diluted
earnings per share (HK$°000) 1,723,528 1,507,448
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18. HEREIRITHIAER

18. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

LB T8 HKS’000 2023 2022
RS RIEIRITIVASRR Cash and balances with banks 3,072,114 3,273,316
BRI F2HERTERR Money at call and short notice 13,324,813 14,529,515
16,396,927 17,802,831

kR REERE Less: impairment allowance
—PEERL - Stage 1 (1,157) (1,951)
16,395,770 17,800,880

19. FERZABNESFRUATEFNE
BEZFHtABamNTHMEE

19. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS AT

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

LGB T T8 HKS$’000 2023 2022
FIER ZRGHES Trading securities:
BRES Debt securities:
—&8Lm - Listed in Hong Kong 14,406 16,866
—3JELm - Unlisted 1,725,435 545,295
1,739,841 562,161
M EstEEEEHTA Financial assets at fair value through
BENEMEE profit or loss:
KEES . Investment funds:
—&5&Lm - Listed in Hong Kong 8,216 9,303
8,216 9,303
=L Total 1,748,057 571,464
BIEEEBESANE - Included within debt securities are:
—EEER (ERREER) - Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 1,725,135 89,278
— HEE TR - Other treasury bills - 455,887
—BUNESS - Government bonds 14,706 16,996
1,739,841 562,161
FREITHNE | By issuers:
— IR AT R AR R ERT T - Central governments and central
banks 1,739,841 562,161
—1b% - Corporate entities 8,216 9,303
1,748,057 571,464

F22023F 2022128311 » LittiEerES
ERHFEERE -

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no certificates of deposit

held included in the above balances.
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20. PTEEMTA 20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

R2023F 12 318K BAZTTETASHNELER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
EREAFEWT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2023 were as follows:
=100
LEEE A¥fE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =1
LB T lidn HKS'000 amount Assets Liabilities
1) FERGERZITETIR 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SMEGTHETR a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRAKRIAEEH Forward and futures contracts 183,067,007 878,718 (885,411)
BB A Koot S PE B Currency options purchased and written 20,696,124 128,874 (121,144)
I E TR 11 Cross currency interest rate swaps 874,545 13,361 (12,907)
Z) FIFETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
|24 17 Interest rate swaps 3,689,125 34,352 (30,717)
7)) BTt TR ¢) Equity derivatives
BAROh i e Equity options purchased and written 433,584 6,779 (6,797)
T) Baair£TA d) Commodity derivatives
iz i Commodity forward and swaps 56,593 304 (327)
BERGAGRZiTETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (8B 5t held for trading 208,816,978 1,062,388 (1,057,303)
2) FHEEHBBRZITETAR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
F) IEEUAFESHZiTETA a) Derivatives designated as fair value
hedges
lESEE: Interest rate swaps 46,874,243 2,503,761 (222,116)
SRR ZITETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (B8R &5t held for hedging 46,874,243 2,503,761 (222,116)
Bz ITEE/MIA Total recognised derivative financial
gE/ (8B a5t assets/(liabilities) 255,691,221 3,566,149 (1,279,419)
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20. TEEMTAEE) 20. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

20225 12 A31ARBFAZTTETASHNELER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
EREAFEUWT : and their fair values as of 31 December 2022 were as follows:
= e
HELE Caa
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE I={E
LOBIEF i3 HKS’000 amount Assets Liabilities
1) BERGE®RZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
&) SMELTHET A a) Foreign exchange derivatives
EHNAEEH Forward and futures contracts 89,702,960 619,726 (517,746)
8 A\ Koot S HA A Currency options purchased and
written 15,996,882 54,410 (55,034)
IR E R 215 5 Cross currency interest rate swaps 258,108 8,646 (8,565)
Z) FIETETA b) Interest rate derivatives
RS Interest rate swaps 2,546,183 61,362 (56,702)
A) Bm T E TR ¢) Equity derivatives
A Soa e A Equity options purchased and
written 229,616 2,400 (2,400)
FERGR®RZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
gE /(B &5t held for trading 108,733,749 746,544 (640,447)
2) FHEEDRRBRZITAETIA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) IEE KA FEE A 07E a) Derivatives designated as fair value
TA hedges
F) 2 1A Interest rate swaps 47,823,185 3,154,692 (357,190)
FIEEHBGRZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(Af) &5t held for hedging 47,823,185 3,154,692 (357,190)
BERZITEEmIE Total recognised derivative financial
EE /(BB &5t assets/(liabilities) 156,556,934 3,901,236 (997,637)
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21, BEEMREMKE

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

LGB T lid)m HK$°000 2023 2022

BER B EBSAEEE Gross loans and advances to customers 143,049,476 136,530,235
bk - REEE Less: impairment allowances

—PEERL - Stage 1 (364,345) (406,618)

—PEER2 - Stage2 (263,656) (342,731)

—BEER3 - Stage3 (485,255) (887,053)

(1,113,256)  (1,636,402)

141,936,220 134,893,833

B2ER Trade bills 2,060,317 3,666,988
b - REZEE Less: impairment allowances

— B - Stagel (2,981) (5,569)

— PR - Stage 2 - (1)

(2,981) (5,570)

2,057,336 3,661,418

Hith&E (Ki3£30) Other assets (Note 30) 5,141,313 4,182,559
kR ©REERE Less: impairment allowances

— BB - Stage 1 (6,979) (10,169)

—BEER2 - Stage2 (2,907) (2,238)

—BEER3 - Stage3 (11,029) (12,786)

(20,915) (25,193)

5,120,398 4,157,366

RIEERMHAMRE Advances and other accounts 149,113,954 142,712,617
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21, BEEMREMKE (&)

() BiEEEREMKEMZMEHEREK

BRUNTF -
REERABREEREREEERAFHEM
ERUCsEBaAMEBETEEZRERE S
B8 o SHURMHATR AR EHREFEER > U@
EEEZLHEEE -

LGB T 7Tl d)m

21. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Loans and advances to customers include finance lease
receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The contracts
have an option for acquiring by the leasee the leased asset at nominal
value at the end of the lease period.

HKS’000 2023 2022

REERERE C EIREER

1R
1FEL 24

2EL EFE3E

3FEM EFESE

5L E

MBERE AR ZHBWA

MBEHEKRE P

MBEREREPEZONIOT

1FEMRA
1M FZE2eF

2D FE3E

3EL EFESE

S5EFL E

12023FE %2022 12831H » LMRMERER
BHRZEENE B RERREREE -

R2023F 12831 H  AEBZBEEHEERE
FAWElz EREREBERIEENEGESTS
29,418,00078 7T (20224 : 30,782,000587T) °

Gross investment in finance lease

receivables:
Not later than 1 year 960,410 901,741
Later than 1 year and not later than
2 years 660,989 655,159
Later than 2 year and not later than
3years 466,321 468,447
Later than 3 year and not later than
5years 397,624 529,133
Later than 5 years 1,478,151 837,773
3,963,495 3,392,253
Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (946,216) (468,733)
Net investment in finance leases 3,017,279 2,923,520
The netinvestment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:
Not later than 1 year 810,108 801,909
Later than 1 year and not later than
2 years 530,845 587,721
Later than 2 year and not later than
3years 374,505 420,228
Later than 3 year and not later than
5years 319,335 474,667
Later than 5 years 982,486 638,995
3,017,279 2,923,520

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included

in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2023 of the Group
amounted to HK$29,418,000 (2022: HK$30,782,000).
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22, UATHEstEEEEEARMET

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

WM EREE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
LGB TFTUsR HK$°000 2023 2022
BB . Debt securities:
—&5&L™m - Listed in Hong Kong 10,976,354 13,609,856
— &AL - Listed outside Hong Kong 15,729,976 15,742,345
—3JELm - Unlisted 12,057,957 8,590,336
38,764,287 37,942,537
TS Equity securities:
—BBLD - Listed in Hong Kong 268 337
—JFtm - Unlisted 1,761,287 674,977
1,761,555 675,314
=1 Total 40,525,842 38,617,851
BRETEESESAE . Included within debt securities are:
—FBENERE - Certificates of deposit held 361,139 234,493
—EEER (ERREER) - Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 1,489,951 897,617
—HEERE - Other treasury bills 1,878,367 3,867,536
— B &S - Government bonds 1,198,230 635,348
— Hth &R - Other debt securities 33,836,600 32,307,543
38,764,287 37,942,537
M EstEEEEHTA Financial assets at fair value through
HitheEN N EmEE other comprehensive income are
REITIREER DI T analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:
EFSES . Debt securities:
— R R AR R ERAT - Central governments and central
banks 8,338,984 9,160,937
—NEE - Public sector entities 1,799,394 802,807
—IRIT R E SRS - Banks and other financial
institutions 9,422,100 5,902,047
—1bZ - Corporate entities 19,203,809 22,076,746
38,764,287 37,942,537
em MRS Equity securities:
—1bz - Corporate entities 1,761,555 675,314
40,525,842 38,617,851
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22, UATHEstEEEEEARMER
WmHIERE E (1)

EFUATEEREEH T AHLMEEEREDN
BHEMETERER20202FEFNRAKREREER
RMPHE o PR IERREHE > BREZATED
7,817,000 78 7T K2 3 # H E R et W im A 518 o it

thEEREEEETRRE -

FLhREmMtEFIEARTERERMZ IR
BABIR I RBOEREET AR R -

23. LUBERAASTIRRHIERAEE
LOBIEF T ud)m

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

Certain investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income had been sold during 2022 due to
risk monitoring consideration. The fair value of the investments at the
date of derecognition was HK$7,817,000 and no cumulative gain or loss
on disposal had been recognised. No equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income has been derecognised
during 2023.

Unlisted equity securities mainly represent the Group’s equity interests
in financial institutions that provide payment gateway and cross-border
payment services.

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

HKS’000 2023 2022

(Bt TE
—&BLE®
— BB ET
—JLT

PR @ R EEEE

—PEERL

BREEEHESFNE !
—FrENENE
—EEERE
—BURFES
—HAtEF RS

DU ERp S | BREV SRR E
RETIREERD T ¢

— R RBUF R RIET

—REIE
—IRIT R H thERAE

—1b

Debt securities:

- Listed in Hong Kong 13,549,372 11,895,925
- Listed outside Hong Kong 15,977,711 12,981,228
- Unlisted 9,886,223 8,108,343

39,413,306 32,985,496

Less: impairment allowance
- Stage 1 (40,928) (59,406)

Total 39,372,378 32,926,090

Included within debt securities are:

- Certificates of deposit held 3,918,269 3,120,178
- Treasury bills 1,577,781 1,121,950
- Government bonds 222,317 214,612
- Other debt securities 33,694,939 28,528,756

39,413,306 32,985,496

Financial assets at amortised cost are
analysed by categories of issuers as

follows:
- Central governments and central

banks 1,800,098 1,336,562
- Public sector entities 2,031,319 1,410,432
- Banks and other financial

institutions 13,394,699 10,420,964
- Corporate entities 22,187,190 19,817,538

39,413,306 32,985,496
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24, HPEATIHIRE

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

LB (5T HKS 000 2023 2022
FE(LEEFE Share of net assets 7,097,508 6,489,667
HE Goodwill 344,623 344,623

7,442,131 6,834,290
& . HEERE Less: impairment allowances (5,227,000)  (4,675,000)

2,215,131 2,159,290
128312 AFE Fair value at 31 December 1,816,000 1,866,400

FEEREBRRTZRENATFENLZEEER
THPIEFA 2023 K2 2022 548 2 WM& o

N

12023FEK%2022F12831H 2 & AT 2 T BE
B

’

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bank of Chongging shown
above is calculated with reference to the closing market price of BOCQ’s
H-shares as at the end of 2023 and 2022.

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
December 2023 and 2022:

SE R g 2, FEEH Frik##Esm a2t
78 Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of
Name and operation activities interest in ownership
2023 2022
BHEIRT FREE ARHEM R1T7
Bank of Chongging People’s Republic of China Banking 13.20% 13.20%
LB TF oI5 HKS’000 2023 2022
181H At 1 January 2,159,290 4,230,951
FEILFRTR B2 AE Share of results, net of tax 688,957 656,691
FEMEBRIR B ICE B (AR Share of investment revaluation
reserve, net of tax 248,924 (226,037)
BRRE Dividend received (198,237) (209,484)
HBEEEIE Impairment loss charged (552,000) (1,683,000)
HEHEZ B Loss on deemed disposal (10) (10)
PE 7= B R HAGAEE Exchange differences and other
adjustments (131,793) (609,821)
12831H At 31 December 2,215,131 2,159,290

ERAEETERRTHNESEERRAER [
R AE2 HIARARYARIBRE - MAEERGRAHE
BIRITREERTES

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

The Group is considered to have significant influence over BOCQ on the
basis of its representation on the board of directors and participation in
policy-making process.
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24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, the results of BOCQ
were included by the Group on the basis of BOCQ’s financial statements
announced for and made up to the 12 months to 31 December 2023.

20235 20224
12AH31H 12831H
At At
31 December 31 December
LOBIE T (t2)m HKS°000 2023 2022
BERITZEEV IR RRER Selected information of the statement of
financial position of BOCQ
RE AT IRIBITHAEER Cash and balances with central banks 43,939,228 45,946,001
FEUN ELMERTT Be e Rbi A% Due from other banks and financial
institutions 50,810,875 48,589,056
EEETREM Loans and advances to customers 418,020,589 383,513,820
HihEmEE Other financial assets 308,278,102 275,311,617
Hth&EE Other assets 13,118,284 13,465,538
BEA Total assets 834,167,078 766,826,032
FE(T AR RERTT Due to central banks 68,498,716 44,158,597
BEER - BORIT R EMESRIEERIE Customer deposits, and amounts due to
banks and other financial institutions 507,495,786 476,494,843
HihEmas Other financial liabilities 186,771,430 183,203,799
Hh&E Other liabilities 6,304,844 5,297,773
BEA5 Total liabilities 769,070,776 709,155,012
e Total equity 65,096,302 57,671,020
bR © HtiEmM TR Less: Other equity instruments (8,860,278)  (6,239,197)
M R ERIRERRER Less: Non-controlling interests (2,614,518)  (2,417,877)
LBRIRE RS Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 53,621,506 49,013,946
EBERT RIS Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total
BRI THRE M EREN shareholders’ equity to the carrying
ZEREELIRS amount in DSB’s consolidated financial
statements
REIRTIE(L RS DSB’s share of total shareholders’ equity 7,076,999 6,468,932
m: WEER 2 BE R AT ERE Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment
at acquisition 365,132 365,358
bk L RE Less: Impairment (5,227,000)  (4,675,000)
fREE Carrying amount 2,215,131 2,159,290
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24. BFEREHRE (48)

() EERITZHEEMBEN(B)

LCBIE T

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

HKS$°000

20235 20224F
12H31H 12H831H

At At

31 December 31 December
2023 2022

FEEBEIRTT 2 AR ERANE

LB T LS

Share of BOCQ’s contingent liabilities

and commitments

HKS$°000

9,372,253 12,065,327

2023 20224
1H1H 1818
F2023F 02026

12H31H 12A31H
1F12{E 8 F1218AH
12 months 12 months
from from

1 January 1 January

2023 to 2022 to
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

BEIRITZEEREARER

FMBUA
BFIRFERAEZIWA
ERBHEER
MBS H

FEEH
Hth2E
EEmAREE

BREBRITIRE

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Selected income statement information

of BOCQ

Net interest income

Net fee and commission income
Loan impairment charges

Tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

Dividend received from BOCQ

11,523,285 12,536,232
453,826 883,061
(3,577,073)  (4,128,183)
(947,152)  (1,359,852)
5,767,658 5,934,531
1,913,724  (1,739,289)
7,681,382 4,195,242

198,237 209,484



24. BFEREHRE (8)

(2) /REZBEARRK2023F-D 2R
=1

120235128310 » REETEBRITTZREZ
NFEEEPRIEEEANLIE - Bt » KEEF
BHESBRRITZREZREEETRENSMU
FHEATUEIEEE o

RERS S Gt EEREE (TEREE)) ME
EZEERITPINEIZEMZREZREE - E
REENNEREERGEZEBRITEMFARR
RORIR R > RAEEREERTHHNRAZIER
REEFERZ RRRFIERFEE - BH
IR RBRAHE - FANEREENEZ
MIRETLSETN ARG ER EFRITRA
PRASTIEE o

ETERAEEFEUSHZREZAIREISE
B AEEEZEFARMEREETSHEAE
ERZURFRSEEREEZ2HEHE - BETF
AFHURME BEEIRTZ &SRR TR
BEERITARKBEERZTHARATSREE -
ERBEEERTZARRERETEEEEREF
EEFE -

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2023

At 31 December 2023, the fair value of the Group’s investment in BOCQ
had been below the carrying amount for approximately 10 years. On
this basis, the Group continues to perform an impairment test on the
carrying amount of the investment in BOCQ to assess the recoverable

amount.

The impairment test is performed by comparing the recoverable
amount of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation,
with the carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation uses
discounted cash flow projections based on management’s estimates of
BOCQ’s earnings and dividends to be paid in future, and the estimated
probable exit value in future after considering the growth of BOCQ and
its net asset value for the medium and longer term. The discount rate
applied to the VIU calculation was estimated with reference to BOCQ’s

cost of equity, which is publicly available in the market.

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable amount
of the investment, the Group considers all relevant factors including
market views and qualitative factors to ensure that the inputs to the
VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments need to be made to
reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ and also market outlook for
the medium and longer term that are relevant in projecting BOCQ’s
future performance. Significant management judgement is required in
estimating the future cash flows of BOCQ.
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24, IRERTIRE (@) 24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(2) BEBEZRERNH Rt 2023FERZR (b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
B (#&) recognised in 2023 (Continued)
PREtEH2023F 12 A31HAEEMN EERTIRE The key inputs underlying our HK$2,215 million VIU on our investment
8915 FR & (8 %2,215,000,00078 7T » EFFIRABZ in BOCQ as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:
BRBHEWMT .
2023 2022
EERAEER Annual profit growth rate NF2%EA%  F2024FH918HA
NF6%ZET%
EREFH%
Ranging from Ranging from
2% - 4% 6% - 7% in the

near termup to
2024, and 5% per
annum thereafter

& BIREE L Dividend payout ratio 28.2% 25.3%
BRIREE (34) Discount rate (Note) 12.0% 12.0%
FLUESTIR A ERF Az KRB IR ENEERN PB ratio for estimation of 0.26 0.27

QELEES potential future recovery

value under different
holding periods

5 MEBEURREARRMERSHRUGEFREE -] Note: Post-tax discount rate is used to calculate the VIU using the post-tax cash
BEIREERAAST ERATARIRE - 2023F 2 A1 flows. The post-tax discount rate is subsequently grossed up to pre-tax
AEIRER £415% (20224F © 15%) ° F B RRATFIsT discount rate. The pre-tax discount rate for 2023 was 15% (2022: 15%). The
BHERBEERER calculated VIU using post-tax and pre-tax is the same.
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24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2023 (Continued)

The following table illustrates the impact on VIU of changes to key
inputs which management considers as reasonable and possible. The
following summary reflects the sensitivity of the VIU in response to the
change of each key input. It is possible that more than one favourable

and/or unfavourable change may occur at the same time.

E=Ell: N
Favourable change Unfavourable change
EREEN EREEN
H T
2023F 2023 Increase fEFEE Decrease fEREE
(HEFT) (In millions of Hong Kong dollars) inVIU Viv inVIU Viv
FERIERE Annual profit growth rate +1% 40 2,255 -1% (40) 2,175
REIREELLE Dividend payout ratio +5% 124 2,339 -5% (124) 2,091
BRIRE Discount rate -25E8 25 2,240 +2552 (25) 2,190
-25bps +25 bps
iRz PB ratio +185 52 2,267 -134 (52) 2,163
+1bp -1bp
BRiEs TRt
Favourable change Unfavourable change
RREEN RREEN
tF TR
202026 2022 Increase  FAEE Decrease  BAEME
(BE#T) (In millions of Hong Kong dollars) inviu ViU inviu ViU
FERFIERE Annual profit growth rate +1% 4 2,201 -1% (42) 2,117
REIREELLE Dividend payout ratio +5% 126 2,285 -5% (126) 2,033
BhIRE Discount rate 25HE 25 2,184 +2558, (25) 2,134
-25 bps +25 bps
iRE PB ratio +1%5 50 2,209 1% (50) 2,109
+1bp -1bp
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24. BFEREHRE (48)

(Z) REZRERMNHRI{2023F/HEZH
0@

RIEEHE2023FE12831AZ MR EEE L E
A2EHNHKEM 28 FrEN B8k EMmE
Tz ih > R EB 2 ERBERKEEFAE
BRE (B8EHE202F128318E#E2 8
STRVEETR) MHES R ME T 2 AU EIEERT)
MEFERE(E - AEEF2023F 128318 2R
ETRMBENS  BAKHBEEREBRZH
Bl RE AR R IORE E2022F 1283182
K&t R {ET124,675,000,0008 T4 2 IREE » &
BRAFESEE4552,000,000787T © FIE > 722023
R RTTIE R (E 5552,000,00078 7T LUAME
IR EZBEE2,215,000,000587T °

STEAHIRTT (AAERMREENWEB A > TE
BREAAERHEERTVESD) 2 EATRELEE
WERAEZEEZRERT] » AR ITIEE
BIRTTZ IRER BRI o MEZBREEREN
BRI ERE M2 21,213,000,00058 7 © ZRE
ZREB BRI T ERTRLEK -

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2023 (Continued)

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31 December
2023, which takes into account the sensitivity of the key inputs shown
above and the effects of possible interaction of these inputs, the
recoverable amount, as determined by the VIU calculation and after
considering all relevant factors (including the cumulative impairment
charge having been recognised as of 31 December 2022) and valuation
inputs, remained below the carrying amount. The latest impairment
test performed by the Group for the position as at 31 December 2023
concludes that the recoverable amount, based on the VIU calculation,
is assessed as lower than the carrying amount, after deducting the
cumulative impairment allowance made up to 31 December 2022
of HK$4,675 million, by HK$552 million. As a result, an additional
impairment charge of HK$552 million was recognised in the year of
2023 to reduce the value of the investment to HK$2,215 million at 31
December 2023.

The calculation of DSB’s (which is the Group’s subsidiary in Hong Kong
and directly holds the Group’s interest in BOCQ) capital adequacy does
not include the retained earnings from the investment, except for BOCQ
cash dividend received by DSB. Provided that the investment continues
to be held at or above the original cost of the investment of HK$1,213
million, impairment made on the investment does not affect DSB’s

capital adequacy.



25. HEHEHBERKRE

25. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

LB T (05T HKS’000 2023 2022
JELMRRS > AR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
FE(LUEE R S Share of post-acquisition reserves 109,946 103,072

129,946 123,072

F2023F K 2022F 12 A31 HMHEIEHRIEREWN

The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2023

LE and 2022:
LHER 1
zBa5atE
Percentage
EEiib Ut FTEEBRIEE I, of effective
b2y i Place of Principal activities and interest in
Name incorporation place of operation ownership
IREHERAIRAE s BEER > &5
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
RS TEHEIRAS i JIBTETR - BB
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
IR ERARAT S BIETER » &
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%

FREBMERBIERARLAD ZEEHNELT K
MIRTTHRA - MM EEERADKIRMEREA
RABLIRBHERBRAT ZEEMB AT

Hong Kong

The Group’s interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is held by
DSB, a subsidiary of the Company. Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited and BCT Financial Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of
Bank Consortium Holding Limited.
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26. SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

2023:
PGB B 53 tE
Percentage of BT ERRa AN
shares held Particulars of
RELE FEEK SEfth2g B ite issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity Place ofincorporation  Directly Indirectly share capital
KTRTARAE RIT a5
Dah Sing Bank, Limited Banking Hong Kong 100% - HKS$6,200,000,000
ZE(1931)BRAT RS s
MEVAS (1931) Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$400,000,000
K HARAE EEE B
Dah Sing Finance Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HK$25,000,000
BEER HERUHE
South Development Limited Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100% - uss1
KHER1T (FED) BRAS i FPEARHME
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China - 100%  RMB1,200,000,000
BFIEERRITRGBIRAR 81T B9
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau - 100% MOP225,000,000
RERIRRERI B R AR TRigmaA 55
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong - 100% HK$500,000
KEEARAE AR B
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong - 100% HK$100,000
REER B
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HK$9,998
BEER EH
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HKS1
REER B
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong - 100% HKS1
K ARAT BHEXLS B
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong - 100% HK$10,000,000
MEVAS Nominees Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$50,000
MERE HEEREURE
CWL Prosper Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 100% uss1
laRENH (E8) BREAT EEE B
Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong - 100% HK$450,000,000
ZEIBERAT & EH
OK Finance Limited Money lending Hong Kong - 100% HK$1,000

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R



26. MIBAE (58 26. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
PR B
Percentage of B BT EARRa AN
shares held Particulars of
YNCIBY FEEK SEhEs Bi% ifE issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity Place of incorporation  Directly Indirectly share capital
HERERRAR MELE EH
Vanishing Border Investment Services Property investment ~ Hong Kong - 100% HK$20
Limited
MELE HERUHE
Wise Measure Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 100% uss1
MERE HEEREURE
Reliable Associates Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 100% uss1
HAOREEERAT EEE B
Modern World Holdings Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HKS1
HOEEEERAT mEE EH
Modern Bright Hong Kong Limited Inactive Hong Kong 100% - HKS1
MERE HEEREURE
Talent Union Holding Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands - 100% uss2
MERE HEEREHE
Well Idea Enterprises Limited Property investment  British Virgin Islands 100% - uss1

BRAHIRTERAREARBRARTIN - LitFr
BRBEARBTIMNRBSEIREBLIM TS 5 AR
I HSHEEBEMAI 2T AR BIRAIEML

BRAHTIRIT (FED) AIRAE ~ EPIEERITRMG
BRAT K LB EEBUINEMMRIIBI AT
S > HWABIHESBEE o

KHER1T (FPE) BIRA R 200857 B TEFEIAH
SEMAL - HREPEAREMBEZ AR EMA
IBRAR (EREE s ARz ExRE) °

Except for Dah Sing Bank, Limited which is a public limited company, all
the above companies are private companies, or, if incorporated outside
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as a Hong Kong
incorporated private company.

Except for Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A. and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified above,
all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of the

People’s Republic of China.

There was no change in the list of subsidiaries.
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27. BERETEE

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Bl ZRMi%
&4 BlEE BIBE
BIBE Core  Customer [ BREES
G Contract deposit relationship Trade Club &t
BT HKS°000 Goodwill  intangibles intangibles intangibles name  debentures Total
A& Cost
03F1B1HK At 1 January 2023 and
2023%128317 31 December 2023 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 1463 1,029,264
RIEAE /B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2023F151H% At 1 January 2023 and
2023F12831H 31December 2023 98,239 26,499 80,583 40,777 - - 246,098
REE Carrying value
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 713,451 - - - 58,252 11,463 783,166
BLER ZRE%
= EBRVE BVEE
BIEE Core Customer ik BRES
BE Contract deposit  relationship Trade Club At
WEET AT HKS°000 Goodwill intangibles intangibles  intangibles name  debentures Total
PR Cost
2021817 At1January 2022 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,717 58,252 - 1,017,801
g Additions - - - - - 11,463 11,463
WNEDAIA At 31 December 2022 811,690 26,499 80,583 40,777 58,252 11463 1029264
RIEAE /B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
200F1R1HE At 1 January 2022 and
202128318 31 December 2022 98,239 26,499 80,583 40,777 - - 246,098
REE Carrying value
02E12A317 At 31 December 2022 713451 - - - 58,52 11,463 783,166

BEERBRZEVEEGREGN ROUERKRE
FRAGEEERLGRRIERAZEN FSERTF
Z PR - RS REESAEEAMR
T EFNHEREBRRUMAINGRERE

E51E5T o

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core deposit
intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are amortised
over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
balance method. Trade name and club debentures are carried as an
asset of indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss.



27. BEREREE @) 27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
BENREREARNDEIBRELE—RNERD
EERAREEL B (TREELBEA) ° /&
ENEMB2TIMT -

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.

&8 R
Hong Kong Macau
EEEIRIT ELASRIT IRITHEHS
Corporate Personal Banking =1

LB T (75 HKS’000 Banking Banking Business Total
(D% Cost
2023F181HK At 1 January 2023 and

20235 12H31H 31 December 2023 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
KERE Accumulated impairment
2023F181HK At 1 January 2023 and

2023%F12H31H 31 December 2023 98,239 - = 98,239
REE Carrying value
2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023 - 220,428 493,023 713,451

o P
Hong Kong Macau
EEEIRTT B ALRTT RITEER
Corporate Personal Banking =

LOBMST oA F HKS’000 Banking Banking Business Total
D% Cost
2022F181HK At 1 January 2022 and

20224 12831H 31 December 2022 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
RERE Accumulated impairment
2022F181HK At 1 January 2022 and

20224 12831H 31 December 2022 98,239 - - 98,239
IREE Carrying value
20224128310 At 31 December 2022 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
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27. BEREREE @)
() BEREREEZRER

FEASFERENS  BHREAEZFHE
BEMEEZREELSBMUNLINEER - Z5TEE
FHREEERASMGS » USFFE 2 ERIR
0 KREBRERFEHENIEREA20%BUE
mﬁ%%ﬁmﬁmﬁ%iuéixgoﬁﬁﬁéu
HEEEEBEABENHEAMIRSESBA#
B R ZEBREARPANEEE R Z R
il o TR Z BIRE L EEN AEE 2 BEARM A
DNFEF98011.23% (20224F © 11.10%) ©

BESREEETZRERNAT ER2BEETSE
35 2 3% R Al B B R AR EA ST 8 2 TR
A BHERISBSELBEKE - FTEAZMIRES
11.23%(20224F : 11.10%) JyRE N AER 2 B
FRA NI o

SHEEFNARENSSNSEFRBMULRESE
BESHNREERAETHEEET EE,\F’E%{E
EERIREERG S AR ERSR -

AEETERIEE  BRESEGESIRES
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28. ITEREMETEEE
LOBBEF AP

27. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use discounted cash flow
projections prepared by the Senior Management based on the latest
5-year business plan, taking into account projected annual growth rate
of net profit at an average of 20%, and in perpetuity with 2% constant
growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business plan was developed
by the Senior Management based on their evaluation of the businesses
and associated projected discounted cash flow of net profit of the
relevant CGU and the conditions in which such businesses will operate
over the projection period. The discount rate used is based on the
Group’s weighted average cost of capital at 11.23% (2022: 11.10%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar market transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity after the
fifth year. The discount rate of 11.23% (2022: 11.10%) used is based on
the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

Impairment testing in respect of club debentures is performed annually
by comparing the book value of each club debenture with its market
value. Impairment loss is recognised when the market value is below
the book value.

No impairment loss on goodwill, trade name and club debentures were
identified in the year (2022: Nil).

28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

HKS’000 2023 2022

7 ~ BRI RRE
ERAREE

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Premises, furniture and equipment 2,358,835 2,304,841
Right-of-use assets 454,352 503,997
2,813,187 2,808,838




28. ITEREMEEEE (E)
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28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment

R ~
RiERSE
Furniture,
equipment
17Z  and motor &%
LB TF (05T HKS’000 Premises vehicles Total
HZE2022F12831HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2022
FYREFEE Opening net book amount 1,858,498 512,917 2,371,415
g Additions 97,452 85,243 182,695
HeE Disposals - (2,659) (2,659)
TEESZ S (MI5ELL) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (66,427) (165,598) (232,025)
EREE Exchange difference (9,852) (4,733) (14,585)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 1,879,671 425,170 2,304,841
20225 12831H At 31 December 2022
[D#N Cost 2,548,676 1,432,175 3,980,851
RIGITE Accumulated depreciation (669,005)  (1,007,005)  (1,676,010)
IRMEEE Net book amount 1,879,671 425,170 2,304,841
#Z%2023F12831HIEEFEE Year ended 31 December 2023
FXRERE Opening net book amount 1,879,671 425,170 2,304,841
g Additions - 275,081 275,081
HE Disposals (12,309) (2,676) (14,985)
EESZH (MI5ELL) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (67,514) (135,654) (203,168)
EREE Exchange difference (2,020) (914) (2,934)
FXRIREE Closing net book amount 1,797,828 561,007 2,358,835
2023%F12H31H At 31 December 2023
D% Cost 2,526,221 1,679,623 4,205,844
REITE Accumulated depreciation (728,393) (1,118,616) (1,847,009)
IRMERHE Net book amount 1,797,828 561,007 2,358,835
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28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment (Continued)

TEZREFEEE . The net book value of premises comprises:
LGB T o) HKS$’000 2023 2022
GEN =R Leaseholds
EEARA ZFHHEY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(TF10E50F Z ) lease (between 10-50 years) 1,377,661 1,430,580

EEBLIMNTAE ZHEEYN
(fE10ZE50F 7 )

(z) HE
I EE A BIFRAETAA 2 THERIEE R o

(i) EERGEEHBRRERZEEE

Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
term lease (between 10-50 years) 420,167 449,091

1,797,828 1,879,671

(b) Leases

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position
FEUBERARANBEAEE Z &R The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
™ following amounts relating to leases:
LGB (irdm HKS$’000 2023 2022
FREEE Right-of-use assets
LES Properties 454,352 503,997

HERR (BETHEMRE RER)

BEFHEEAFELERAREEES
97,015,000 7T (20224F :73,626,00057T) ©

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Lease liabilities (included in
other accounts and accruals) 481,829 534,378

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2023 financial year
were HK$97,015,000 (2022: HK$73,626,000).



28. ITEREMEEEE (E)
(z) HE#)
(ii) TGRSR 25

FREWERANEBEE SEFRIT ¢

28. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (CONTINU

(b) Leases (Continued)

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income

statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following amounts

relating to leases:

ED)

FdEE
LOBMST T3 HKS°000 Note 2023 2022
FREEEZITESEH Depreciation charge of right-
of-use assets
EY/ES Properties 11 145,846 148,144
FMEZH (BEFEAFNEZE-—HEEE) Interest expense (included
in interest expense - lease
liabilities) 7 7,669 8,201
BRI EREEEEE I Expense relating to short-term
(BIEETEREMBEEEESH » leases and low-value assets
TEIEITE) (included in premises and
other fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation) 11 2,338 2,956

023 F N EMBEEZRESERHEES
156,226,000 7 7T (2022 € © 157,077,000 3

7o) ©

(i) FEEZHEZBRAMNGTAR

AEFEREZEYZE o 7220224 2023
F HEAR—RAIEEZIEZETHR
{BRIAEMIFE TN T (iv) Bt = IE R824 o

HERRERNEREZRNESZHEZARE
IR AR - FREEAREHEZBEZE
RIS - HESRIRIMERZ2A - 1
ExEEMIEREERR EAERR
) o

(iv) ERRALILEERE

IERREIDEEROEEAERS T 2ET
MEEERN - iAEEEENEEPERZ
BEMS > CRARFFRAERRETEER
M o RBBRE ZIER MR IIEEER R
FASEEMIFS BBEAITHE -

The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was HK$156,226,000
(2022: HKS$157,077,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years for 2022 and
2023, but may have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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29. KEYE

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

LB F 08T HKS’000 2023 2022
181H At 1 January 802,691 756,351
i Additions - 84,651
B ATERIE Fair value losses on revaluation (41,087) (38,311)
12H31H At 31 December 761,604 802,691
RERFFA 2 BETAE RS Unrealised gains or losses recognised
Bz REIRIN 1R in consolidated income statement
relating to those assets held at the
end of the year
—AFERE - Fairvalue losses (41,087) (38,311)
KEWEZ REREEE - The net book value of investment properties comprises:
LGB TFTUsR HK$’000 2023 2022
R MEH Leaseholds
EERARA 2N Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(FF10E50F 2 ) lease (between 10-50 years) 646,110 683,555
TEBEBLIMTE Z R HATEL Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(FF10E50F 2 f5) term lease (between 10-50 years) 115,494 119,136
761,604 802,691
STEREMEZATE Fair value measurement of investment properties

AEEFR2023F K2022F 12 531 H AR EY N
BEET T B o b hRBE T FETAIZ
B—RFEAEH ((HEKREERERL) BRAR R
REBRFEENZ K EMERE K FEAER
CEF) BRABSABMUMNEMZ REYEREEFL
B ZERBRARBEEECTEURTS2E Z 8L
FEHITHAR AT AC SR AT  ETE R EMENE
BEF > HP—IBEFZRIEACE R « 3Kk
EREZMEF I AN RAEE PR B RIH & B 11
B - HEBAERN THREENLENELZA
FESt=EEEE DL » RZIRR ©

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2023 and 2022 by adopting the direct comparison approach or the
income capitalisation approach. Under direct comparison approach,
valuation is referenced to recent transactions for similar premises as far
as practicable by independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills
(Valuation and Professional Services) Limited for investment properties
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for
investment properties in Macau. The key inputs was the unit sale rate
taking into account of time, location, and individual factors such as
size and levels of buildings. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in
decrease in fair value measurement of the investment properties by the
same percentage and vice versa.



29. KREWE ()
STEREMEZATE@)

TISEEAMEZHERR  HEEBYHBRE
ERFBRE(RAFEAB)FZATEEE B
BEtARTSE2HEEME 2R NRENYER
%o

REVMEURBO A ERZBIBERMGER
STEATE X ERDEERFAEAETBYHRS
B 13F( AT ESFB) PR TFEFROEIMR
Al e

DWAREEECHEZBEATEZRENE
BRZHERFRAREBEECREEEBZFY
EXHBEHEPERWAZENET - RF(ER
ERTHETNERRMRBEGR > BH5RaRme
TERARA o

WARBEECTETAIREZ 80

29. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement of investment properties
(Continued)

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the

property from the perspective of market participants.

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are classified
as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
Value Measurement”.

Under income capitalisation approach, investment properties of which
the fair value is determined on the basis of capitalisation of netincomes
with due allowance for outgoings and reversionary income potential.
The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the market rental
and inversely correlated to the market yields.

Unobservable inputs on income capitalisation approach:

fhER* TRz 8 ]

Valuation technique(s) Unobservable input(s) Range

REME BELEERZE THE BB FFHR1,4558705102,000787T
(2022 : §F75IR1,647/8 705 108,900/ 7T)

Investment properties Direct comparison Unit sale rate HK$1,455 to HK$102,000 per square foot
approach (2022: HK$1,647 to HK$108,900 per square foot)

WARBEECHE (iR G 2.00%ZE3.15%
(EHWEX) (2022: 2.00%Z3.10%)

Income capitalisation Market yields 2.00% to 3.15%
approach (reversionary yield) (2022:2.00% to 3.10%)

miEHEE BT HR26BTESSHETT

(2022 : §FAR2TETLEILETT)

Market rental HK$26 to HK$88 per square foot

(2022: HKS27 to HKS91 per square foot)
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30. Hth&EE 30. OTHERASSETS

LOEMETF TAUBT HKS’000 2023 2022
FEWRIB R T IE B Accounts receivable and prepayments 3,272,721 2,584,139
FESTURA Accrued income 1,746,420 1,479,954
Hith Others 122,172 118,466

5,141,313 4,182,559

31. FHEXRZHRENAR 31. TRADING LIABILITIES
LOBIEF LT HKS’000 2023 2022
e B [ R A Bl B (R 25 Short sales of treasury bills and

treasury bonds 99,853 730,491
32. BERTEM 32. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
LB (5 HKS’000 2023 2022
TEIRTER R RER Demand deposits and current accounts 26,312,731 34,146,530
prEfm% Savings deposits 34,682,959 37,661,100
TR~ BASEERTERR Time, call and notice deposits 146,238,008 127,984,571

207,233,698 199,792,201

PRAERA ~ BERIKIEERERIN  FIBEEMERER Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits
ERTETER o carry variable interest rates.

280 AKIRITEEARAT 2023FF5R



33. BRITHIETGE
LGB F A8

33. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

HKS’000 2023 2022

SRR A T LU A RAT AT
S BERTR

R2023F 2022 » REBRENR VAR
FEEER BB TEREAUATEFEEHES
ST AIEH °

AEEFIE DB TERE IR SAENN
SEERL PR 2 BREI1E 59,000,000 7T (2022
£F © 1560,000,00057T) ©

34, BEGER

LUBBST o5

At amortised cost with fair value hedge
adjustments (for hedging interest
2,428,028

rate risk) 4,228,983

During 2023 and 2022, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$9 million
higher (2022: HK$60 million higher) than the above carrying amount.
34. SUBORDINATED NOTES

HKS’000 2023 2022

PR R @ R T SRR A RS A THE
HIPREERIR

225,000,0003 70220294 EI HRHY
EEBESSGE(R))

300,000,000 7T 2031 F I HARY
ERBEERE(2)

250,000,0005& 7022033 ZIHBAY & BB EE7S
(FE(A))

[R20235F F2022F A » ZNEBARB IR IAHED R
BEERMREGBERULTEFERAREFHA

8 o

At amortised cost with fair value hedge
adjustments (for hedging interest
rate risk):

US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

Rate Notes due 2029 (Note (a)) 1,754,856 1,708,812
US$300,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
Rate Notes due 2031 (Note (b)) 2,158,805 2,092,683
US$250,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
Rate Notes due 2033 (Note (c)) 2,002,984 -
5,916,645 3,801,495

During 2023 and 2022, the Group did not designate on initial recognition
any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.
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RIEEH (R)

T KRBT R2019F1 81588172
225,000,000 T EE BB E R ZABRAR (&
BRG) L EFEEERRENTHRES
“HREANIOFHIE EREER (EH)) (BE
FEB(IRITE (EX) BADZIER) © ILEEHF
0202918 150 ZIHA o BEEMEEIE 07520244
1815 « HETREHERZNEEH > £84
5% > BH¥FEME—R o HE > MEBRITEENR
BERED > TN EGEITAERSFRE
ElEEES BS54 T - ERBEEEER
FESCHLE > IR TAI AR B EE BRI A (FEE0
DEF o KFIRITINE B —EPR IR TE T L A= IS
AR ERNET Bif A LUIERIERME
M= (HERBRAMERNZE]) BERITET S

o
T °

B ARFHB|ITR22021F11 828872
300,000,000 E T EEERX BN L RFEEER
HENTIHARE R REANIOFRTEERER
% (MER)) (BRTEBRITE (BR) BRADZ K&
) o ILE BN 203111320 EIHF - B2
BEIEHA20265F11H2H - HETHEHEENE
BEH > FEA3% S¥FNE—X - HE M
BRERTEEMHEEOED > TN EgE:T
7 B RS FHAEEIE E S SR M19586F o A
BEESERAELIE  KNIRITTAIUEREE
BEDIFTA (FEEED) B o KITIRTTIRE B —EIFE
IRATET MR BRSO EBHNEEN Si2ih s
DUERIRR R E T X AR FEF SRR o

B KR#FIETH2023F11B15H BT
250,000,000 E T EE BB L RFEEER
WHENTHFRE S —RERNI0FIHRE S BEE
% (IM&7%1) CBRFEB(IRITE (BA) RANZ
&R o IEEEFERHL2033FE 115158 EIH - %
EHEE A 42028115150 - HE{THEHEE
EMERER  £BAT315% @ SXEME—R -
Hig  MEBRTEEHBEREEED > FE0F
EgE;ABRSFIIEEEEES S E 2958
F o BEREESERTBELHINE - KIIRITAIIN
EEBEBLIE (FEED) EF o KMiRITAE
B—EIRRIRITE] LM R s B S R E B EE R
g A ERIBRMENEAERITEH S
IR o

AEEELSEEERRIBREGNENSNS
BB L _EFTS > BRE &5 137,000,000 7 (2022
£ 1 5292,000,00057T) ©

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

34.

Note:

(a)

SUBORDINATED NOTES (CONTINUED)

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 15 January 2029
with an optional redemption date falling on 15 January 2024. Interest
at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at the then prevailing
5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. DSB may, subject to
receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole
but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed
rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on
Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) has been entered into with an
international bank.

This represents US$300,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 2
November 2021 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 2 November 2031 with an optional redemption date falling on 2
November 2026. Interest at 3% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 195 basis points.
DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the
Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to
swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate
based on SOFR has been entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$250,000,000 Basel Il compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of DSB (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
November 2023 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes will
mature on 15 November 2033 with an optional redemption date falling on
15 November 2028. Interest at 7.375% p.a. is payable semi-annually from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 295 basis
points. DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on SOFR has been entered into with an international
bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$137 million

higher (2022: HK$292 million higher) than the above carrying amount.



35. EREFRIE

EEMAEEREENHEREERGERITE
HIHEVAATIR IR E EM B AR IR & AR RIEIER R
HE MBI AR 7 PIET - HiIEZ 28RN

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

I to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

LOBMTF oA d HKS$°000 2023 2022
FERIEE & Deferred income tax assets 165,823 262,273
EIERRIEEE Deferred income tax liabilities (103,699) (39,131)

BEEMIBEE B EREBYRFEZRE ZBRE K

[CIWASZ 2 Fast BEADATET

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date of
recovery and settlement are as follows:

LB F TSR HKS$°000 2023 2022
IRIERMIBEE - Deferred income tax assets:

—HJfE12 ER BB ZREIREE &

EIEIRIEE(S
—EER ERREEZIELEREARE

IREAR IR B ABE BT ©

LOBIET T 5T

- Deferred income tax assets
to be recovered after more than
12 months 299,438 347,379

Deferred income tax liabilities:
- Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled after more than
12 months (237,314) (124,237)

62,124 223,142

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

HKS’000 2023 2022

1H1H
PR EWERIRARRIE (X 1) ol
(FfI5E15)

REAMEERENRIE (ZH) /[l

(M95E39)
ERER

12831H

At 1 January 223,142 102,503
Tax (charged)/credited to the
consolidated income statement

(Note 15) (51,206) 29,044
Tax (charged)/credited to other

comprehensive income (Note 39) (108,662) 97,430
Exchange difference (1,150) (5,835)
At 31 December 62,124 223,142
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35. RIEFRIA (48)

BEEMBEEREERTFEEZET) > TEER
BRI A B T I AR T

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

284

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

IRIEFRIA S - Deferred income tax assets:
HE
EfEREE B
Impairment  JRHHITE REf
allowances  Accelerated Deferred REE(
and tax HsEE expenses  Investment Bt
LU )T HKS$'000 provisions  depreciation Taxlosses  andothers  revaluation Total
21817 At1 January 2022 218539 - - 52,92 P 271,743
HELREERENNE Reclassified from deferred income tax
liablities - - - . (53,031) (53,031)
P EWEEREE /(1)  Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
income statement 10,814 - - (8,228) - 2,586
REMZEREALE Credited to other comprehensive income - - - - 131912 131912
ERER Exchange difference (4,000) - - (1,804) (27) (5,831)
20225128318k At31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023
W3%1818 225,353 - - 42,890 79,136 347,379
HELRESRENDE Reclassified from deferred income tax
liabilities - a1 - - 416 843
PEEWGEERRA (S2H) /[ (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
income statement (22,332) 200 95 17,490 - (4,547)
REMZENENDE Credited to other comprehensive income - - - - (43,181) (43,181)
EREE Exchange difference (844) - - (212) - (1,056)
2023F12831H At 31 December 2023 202,177 627 95 60,168 36,371 299,438

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R




35. IRIEFRIE (4B

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

IRIERIERS ! Deferred income tax liabilities:
AEER
R
Impairment MFRBIE  RENMEER
allowances Accelerated  Investment REEf:
and i tax  properties  Investment Bt
LB AT HKS’000 provisions Provisions  depreciation  revaluation  revaluation Total
20251811 At1 January 2022 - 11,453 98,229 6,462 53,096 169,240
BNMNBERLRE Reclassified to deferred income tax assets
&E - - - - (53,031) (53,031)
PeEAREIRA (I%) /S (Credited)/charged to the consolidated
income statement - (11,453) (16,884) (230) 2,109 (26,458)
REMZERGEAZE Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - 34,482 34482
EREER Exchange difference - - - - 4 4
20225128318k At31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023
20231817 - - 81,345 6,232 36,660 124,237
BN EEETREEE Reclassified to deferred income tax assets - - 41 - 416 843
PEAREIRA (I%) /S (Credited)/charged to the consolidated
income statement 34 10,851 26,980 (222) 9,016 46,659
REMZEREATE Charged to other comprehensive income - - - - 65,481 65,481
EREE Exchange difference - - - - 94 94
2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 34 10,851 108,752 6,010 111,667 237,314
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35. RIERIE(4E)

TR ERREMEERERN (ZH) /Bl 2%
JERRIR -

LCBIET T 5)m

35. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The deferred income tax (charged)/credited to other comprehensive
income during the year is as follows:

HKS’000 2023 2022

N CE S /NS = =

—MATHEFTEEEEHEA
Hih2EWER SRS E (5E39)

36- Ei%@/-\_JZnﬂﬁl%

eV NARARE BERER AT —RE
ERETRBPIEEZEFFINT ¢

LOBIET T3

Fair value reserves in shareholders’
equity:
- financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (Note 39) (108,662) 97,430

36. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions
are balances with group companies arising from transactions
conducted on normal commercial terms:

HKS’000 2023 2022

>?f
i
iy
St
o
=
am
m

HAthiR B KTt

HRIRMWE AR 2
BIEEMAEMMIRE
BEREM
HAthik B KRR

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Balances from the holding company

Advances and other accounts 11,093 584
Deposits from customers 178,248 727,935
Other accounts and accruals 1 1

Balances from fellow subsidiaries

Advances and other accounts 7,748 5,772
Deposits from customers 520,090 489,357
Other accounts and accruals 3,781 5,218




37. HARBERIEIE

() Bk
R12A31HRBARMARIEEEFE BB KE
ABEEEEZERNEENT :

LCBIET 7T 5)m

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets
as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

HKS’000 2023 2022

BRERREBRERZHAX

(2) F&a%iE

FEREESRRIMEAERETERZEMIA
BREREMEEERBINESEENT

Expenditure contracted but not

provided for 50,729 71,857

(b) Credit commitments

The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to
customers are as follows:

BHEEE

Contract amount
LOBWEF T HKS$’000 2023 2022
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 1,572,787 2,135,043
B S BRI B ATE R Transaction-related contingencies 356,134 495,616
BB S IATER Trade-related contingencies 393,322 247,910

PIEIRGBUES T A BT EA 2 A Commitments that are unconditionally

cancellable without prior notice 62,066,805 66,596,620
HhxdE Other commitments 4,383,439 4,814,077
EHREIRTER Forward forward deposits placed - 317,824
68,772,487 74,607,090

EERMEINESEE

Credit risk weighted amount

LOBEF T HKS$’000 2023 2022
WABERIEE Contingent liabilities and commitments 2,119,544 2,657,818

=8 AR BB IR (BRT R () IRAFF
s o

The credit risk weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

287



37. HABEREIE (&)

(R) EfFEIFZEE

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Assetspledged

LGB TFTUsR HK$’000 2023 2022
BRI ERZRREEKR Trading assets and financial
TR EFEEER investments pledged to secure
liabilities 2,473,697  3,185206
—Hrh | 2 OE R - of which: under repurchase
agreements 2,373,752 2,453,089
BEFRzEETE Amount of liabilities secured 2,397,069 2,678,069
—Hr  1ZEIERGE - of which: under repurchase
agreements 2,297,216 1,946,069

ERIITRIERRENEEME HIRIRFR &R
RZEE - ZEXSHREERIEEHNERRS
(BE IR IR E E LURE N B R A 545
BT S2J12FF) IRAGETT ©

(T) EERERE

WAEEZ ABRHBEAN » AR BUEYFEEE
HEMR AR SAEAE (AR T ¢

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted to

secure liabilities on a legal and contractual basis. These transactions are

conducted under terms that are usual and customary to collateralised

transactions including repurchase agreements, and include assets

pledged to cover short positions and to facilitate settlement processes

with clearing houses.

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease

payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating leases

are as follows:

LB F (79T HKS’000 2023 2022
1FELR Within 1 year 12,260 12,165
1EF24F Between 1 and 2 years 8,470 7,941
2E3F Between 2 and 3 years 834 6,083

21,564 26,189

tE9h > REEEAEMEA > BFR2023F 520224F
RAHETETMARBGBZHEE - HZSEHE
MAESZ (F 2 FHE (I AR EE & 51 4310,259,000 8 7T
(20224 : 16,596,000587T) °

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number of leases
as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 that have not yet commenced. The
aggregate lease payments payable under these leases amount to

HK$10,259,000 (2022: HK$16,596,000).



38. g4

38. SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022
A2 fgA & g
Number Share Number Share
LB BB TR TERE : Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: of shares capital of shares capital
1818 &12831H At 1 January and 31 December 1,405,752,132 6,894,438  1405,752,132 6,894,438

BIRANTF2014F58 27 H R BT B IR 5 2
(TEz=BRefEst8)) - BB 8IBITLR
2017 (20224 @ 2017) SRR HE LAER B8 1,500,000 f%
(20224F : 1,500,0000%) &R AFIKD - BERFTAE
ENBHEERSRITHEAL - BZTEIRRE
Z2023F12H31H1E > 515 (20224 : 5(53) sBARHE
LLEREE300,0008% (2022 : 300,000/%) ZA 5 & 1D
B EIRA o

FERNBEFRSRITRASRBEDRET BT
BZRRERRRBROBBEENT

Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme adopted on 27 May
2014 (the “Scheme”), 20 (2022: 20) options to subscribe for 1,500,000
shares (2022: 1,500,000 shares) of the Company had been granted to
certain directors and senior executives of the Group since the inception
of the Scheme. Up to 31 December 2023 and since the inception of
the Scheme, 5 (2022: 5) options to subscribe for 300,000 shares (2022:
300,000 shares) of the Company have lapsed or expired.

Movements in the number of the Company’s shares in the share options
under the Scheme held by directors and senior executives during the
year are as follows:

SREG R EE
Number of shares
in the options

LOBBET o5 HK$°000 2023 2022
1H1H At 1 January 1,200,000 1,200,000
RERNET Granted during the year - -

RERTTEE » BUHTR

12H31H

R12A31BRE TR ZBREFIINT

BT ERITEE

Exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year - -

At 31 December 1,200,000 1,200,000

Particulars of the outstanding options under the Scheme as at 31
December are as follows:

SIERRHNEE
Number of shares

SREHE

Number of options in the options

Date of grant and exercise price 2023 2022 2023 2022

2018F4H26H » #ITHE
5182438 7T

26 April 2018, at an exercise price of
HKS$18.24 per share

15 15 1,200,000 1,200,000
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39. f#fE

WEEFTAIT HKS 000
20231818 At1January 2023
LATEBEERHHA Net change i fair value of debt instruments at

39. RESERVES

AHAENGRERTAZ fair value through other comprehensive income
ATEERTE
PEERBR S ARENBEAT  Share of other comprehensive income of an associate
AR ENE accounted for using the equity method
LATESEEEEHHA Net change infair value of equity instruments at air
EMREMEMEEETEZ  valuethrough other comprehensive income
ATEEETE
RESMERESHELIE  Deferred income tax on movements in investment
(HE35) revaluation reserve (Note 35)
NATEREEEETHA Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
AtAERGRERTAZ of debtinstruments at fair value through other
e comprehensive income
BMERH TR ZRERE Distribution payment of additional equity instruments
REEMEERRRD Exchange differences arising on translation of the
ERER financial statements of foreign entities
LRSI/ FAERERS  Provision for equity-settled share-based
REREMEE compensation
EEH Profitfor the year
WRERERS 2022 inal dividend
WBERERE 2023 interim dividend
ABENAIA At31 December 2023
HE128310LLFE
Year ended 31 December
LOBISF A3 HKS’000 2022
BERRBENRZ Proposed final dividend/final dividend
BURREAR B BIRCREER S paid included in retained earnings
(MyzE16) (Note 16) 407,668

KERTEEBRAE) 2023F £,




39. f#fE (&)

5t

RATRIT R B AEMIRT ANG ERETIVERFRER
MBRELERIFTBLIN RIBRERR - ERZEER
1 (BT RoRPIRE EIRIT R AHIRTT (FED h AR EE
BIRTEFOIRUBREESENZAMEERE - &
EERBRRAIRE TRR FHSHR  SEREZE
BREFBTERETHSN  WEIRN DR -

11202312831 H » KHIRTTEI§E 616,530,000 7T
(20224F : 438,466,000/87T) 2 & RE1EA B B HH IR
Hiza MRS > FBEBNELGSREEBANPIETE -

39. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Note:

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is required to maintain
minimum impairment provisions in excess of those required under HKFRS
in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve, which also covers
BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision
purposes. The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can
be distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made
directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2023, DSB has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$616,530,000 (2022: HK$438,466,000) first against its consolidated general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against its
consolidated retained earnings.
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39. f#f&E (&) 39. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

DRhA#R REEH

TEEMREE  REERRE Hi b (&)
| Premises  Investment EQiE —fE#%E  Share-based Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation Exchange General ~ Compensation Earnings At

LB HKS000 Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
WNEIRLH At1 January 2022 (220,986) 210,120 467,046 225,364 700,254 4,690 21,511,990 23018478
WATEIEEESHHA Net change n fair value of debt instruments at fair value

AtAERGRERTAZ through other comprehensive income

LATEETER - - (834317) - - - - (834,317)
TESIRIER R RRENEE/AT  Share of other comprehensive income of an associate

ZEMmA AN accounted for using the equity method - - (226,037) - - - - (226,037)
WATESEEESHHA Net change in fair value of equity instruments at fair

EMEEMENEEETEZ  valuethrough other comprehensive income

ATEZEEE - - 586,378 - - - - 586,378
REERREEHZELNE  Deferred income tax on movements in investment

(Kf335) revaluation reserve (Note 35) - - 97430 - - - - 97430
WATEBEESHHA Net change in allowance for expected credit losses

B ENENERTIAZ of debt instruments at fair value through other

BHCEFREETIE comprehensive income - - 7109 - - - - 7109
BMERETRZRERB Distribution payment of additional equity instruments - - - - - - (41,652) (41,652)
EEMNIRIR RN Exchange differences arising on translation of the

ERER financial statements of foreign entities - - - (T19,179) - - - (T19,179)
LIRS LR EAZRERS  Provision for equity-settled share-based compensation

ZBEREMEE and other adjustment - - - - - 29 - 29
FERF Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,608,800 1,608,800
WNERERE 2021 final dividend - - - - - - (337,380) (337,380)
NEPHRE 2022 interim dividend - - - - - - (140573) (140,575)
NE1F3IA At31December 2022 (220,986) 210,120 97,609 (493,815) 700,254 4929 22,661,183 23,019,294

292 KHRTTEEARAT 20235FF5R



40. FEIMEmMTR
LCBIET T3

40. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

HKS’000 2023 2022

150,000,0003= oAV EESME R 1 T &

R2022F12H8H » AMIRTTETHEEERH
TE % FE A £7%150,000,0005% 70 2 SEHARIE RS
BERS I —RELRES (MBI —RELE
1) o ZEEI—RERFBS DR BERAT A
£ /81110,000,0003 7T 52 40,000,000 3 T 2= #4530
BE o

HWEEBZERBNANIERT  RESETLER
FAERMZ B HBER - UM —RER
BEBUE » BRIKMIRITREZEFE > BIEES
—MREREFZ AR ERMEEEBEZERFR
ISR EEE o

HRETAEEER2027F 1288 2 EEHEER
b REBRFBERL1LS% > FHEFEIZN—RK o
Hig - (MRS REAFHARER > JREBX
RUESFE —R > WERSFHIEEBEES
BERNNT88EEF ~ IRIFEAIN—REBE X ZH ZIFN
RARMFFRIIE Z RTE » RHIRTTARBUNIKE
i REBCHZIRES RN ERET o

BERSEBTERTAAAME » MIRITHIERE
MR AR ® 2k HUEEBEELF
A CGFED) BSN— MR E A ©

US$150,000,000 AT1 Capital Securities 311,416 311,416

On 8 December 2022, DSB issued Basel Ill-compliant undated non-
cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities (the “AT1
Capital Securities”) with a total notional principal of USD 150,000,000.
The AT1 Capital Securities were subscribed in full by the Company and
DSFH to the extent of US$110,000,000 and US$40,000,000 respectively.

The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up to the
amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies DSB that in the
opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body that a write-off is
necessary, without which DSB would become non-viable.

Distribution at 11.5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date
to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December 2027. Thereafter,
if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed, the distribution rate
will be reset every 5 years and it will bear distribution at the then
prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 788 basis points. DSB has the
right to cancel distribution payment, subject to the requirement as set
out in the terms and conditions of the AT1 Capital Securities, and the
distribution cancelled shall not be cumulative.

DSB may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem

the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or any distribution payment date thereafter.
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41. RERERELERMEE

() HMRETREREEEEZ W KRR
Al 2 S BT RSN (FRA) A
REFREHRR

LB T ud)m

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net
cash (used in)/from operating activities

HKS’000 2023 2022

?Uﬁ%a?&ﬁ&.mﬁﬁz”& i R SR A
/ /ﬁnﬂ

BB

ISt E

EERERE

e

Bl R 2 BRI R

DUBRTESZ (S LABRID (E A EEBEERAN  Biths

BHFIR
EAFE

EEEEKARETH 2 EEnT

—RERERITIER R RER
3B Z A R A HAERR

—RIEARBE3 @A 2 EIRITTHER

—HFR 7 BEpES
—fTEEmMIA
— MR THESTEEREH T ABTMEREE

—B5EE

—BREMRRBR

—HAEIERE

—UAHETEEREEH AR MR
W EmEE

— DUSERR AT BRI SR E A&

—IRITIERR

— R ZRENEE

—ERENR

—ETEE

—HMEIARE K TEiE

BRI

BREEES) (FTR),RANIRS

SNBETHEREZNE

EEHEBIIER
2RIt SORPIRR

RgER (PTA) / MARE P

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and

fixed assets 2,015,876 3,007,160
Net interest income (4,815,435)  (4,383,060)
Dividend income (32,746) (4,126)
Credit impairment losses 731,311 803,100
Depreciation 349,014 380,169
Advances written off net of recoveries (1,284,633) (511,989)
Provision for equity-settled share-based

compensation 55 239
Interest received 11,162,675 6,347,531
Interest paid (5,411,362) (1,595,335)
Dividend received 32,746 4,126

Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,747,501 4,047,815

Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
- cash and balances with banks and
money at call and short notice
with an original maturity beyond
three months 757,616 331,234
- placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three

months 3,597,492 (3,241,056)
- trading securities 458,177 1,648,281
- derivative financial instruments 616,869 (3,707,908)
- financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 1,087 4,816
- trade bills 1,606,671 586,862
- loans and advances to customers (6,519,241) 7,783,104
- other accounts receivable (692,289) 1,726,493
- financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 68,922 1,026,319
- financial assets at amortised cost (6,351,827)  (8,522,259)
- deposits from banks (1,627,449) 2,409,296
- trading liabilities (630,638) (781,436)
- deposits from customers 7,441,497 3,657,636
- certificates of deposit issued (1,796,485) (2,336,292)
- other accounts payable and accruals (374,428) 396,655
Exchange adjustments (43,440) 263,046

Cash (absorbed by)/generated from
operating activities (739,965) 5,292,606

Interest paid on certificates of deposit

issued (176,733) (65,885)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (215,925) (252,611)
Mainland China and Macau tax paid (12,314) (13,424)

Net cash (used in)/from operating
activities (1,144,937) 4,960,686




41. FERERELHFRME(E)

(2) EREMEGEERA > RERFEARE
HESEEBEERSEIEAZHUATE
HAZ FIGGER - REBEZ(CEERR
GERBERESHEREREHEZE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date
of acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible

E to known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

LOBMSTF (15T HKS$’000 2023 2022
RS RIERITIVAERR Cash and balances with banks 2,675,034 2,894,529
[REIEREE3ME A U T 2 BRI S A HRTF R Money at call and short notice with an

original maturity within three months =~ 12,679,755 13,108,548
[REVERETE3ME A ST Z R RITRITFAR Placements with banks with an original

maturity within three months 394,929 2,270,451
BRENRFHERZZ ARNEF N BEERE Treasury bills included in trading

securities 1,725,135 89,278
BRERUATEFEEEEEHA Treasury bills included in financial

Hith2EW S ERE EN 2 BlEERE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,489,951 897,617
18,964,804 19,260,423

ZEE ERF N A RIBTTRVAEER397,080,00078 7T
(20224 : 378,787,000 7t) EHX N IRE R ERIR
FIEEIRETIREE ST RS RTIRITHNG
ERJBRIET ©

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$397,080,000 (2022:
HK$378,787,000) were balances with central banks for prudential

purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
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41. FERERELHFRME(E)
() FEMEESZEEZHIRR

TRALAERREMBEESH 2 BREEE > B
RERIFREZEH - REMETBZER 15
HFESRADHARBE AR EELAER GRS
MEBEERNDEARMETHRERZEE

41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

REREEE
ZafEeE
Total
liabilities
HEaE BEGES FERIFIS from
Lease Subordinated Interest financing
LUCBBT L08R HKS’000 liabilities notes payable activities
#20226£1818 At 1 January 2022 614,940 4,128,446 51,945 4,795,331
MEREREE . Changes from financing cash flows:
TNBETRERGS Interest paid on subordinated notes and
FE#ESH 2B debt securities issued - - (164,342) (164,342)
BRHEESR Repayment of lease liabilities (157,077) - - (157,077)
MERE M SEiaE Total changes from financing cash flows (157,077) - (164,342) (321,419)
Hitnss) Other changes:
BETRERBRERE Interest accrued on subordinated notes
ZIEEFIE and debt securities issued - - 164,346 164,346
MEHESR Additions to lease liabilities 73,626 - - 73,626
ERER Exchange difference (5,312) 315 - (4,997)
HESBZHNESZH Interest expense on lease liabilities 8,201 - - 8,201
NTEHFREE Fair value hedge adjustment - (327,266) - (327,266)
RAtEehazs Total other changes 76,515 (326,951) 164,346 (86,090)
1220224128311 At 31 December 2022 534,378 3,801,495 51,949 4,387,822
ERER Exchange difference (844) - - (844)
7202351818 At 1 January 2023 533,534 3,801,495 51,949 4,386,978
MEREREE) . Changes from financing cash flows:
TRB#ETRERGS Interest paid on subordinated notes and
KfEHEFZFE debt securities issued - - (309,761) (309,761)
FTRERS Issue of subordinated notes - 1,939,796 - 1,939,796
BRHEESR Repayment of lease liabilities (156,226) - - (156,226)
MERE R SEhiasE Total changes from financing cash flows (156,226) 1,939,796 (309,761) 1,473,809
Hitnss) Other changes:
BETRERBRESES Interest accrued on subordinated notes
ZIERHE and debt securities issued - - 328,257 328,257
MEHESR Additions to lease liabilities 97,015 - - 97,015
ERER Exchange difference (167) 7,376 = 7,209
HESBZHESZH Interest expense on lease liabilities 7,673 - - 7,673
NHEH R Fair value hedge adjustment - 167,978 - 167,978
HithEghiaza Total other changes 104,521 175,354 328,257 608,132
2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023 481,829 5,916,645 70,445 6,468,919

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R




42, ERFEE

REEBATEG (£6226%) 1T (HEESE
FMEER) > BEERTEEHE2023F 52022
F12A3AIEEEZFERE T2 -

LCBBET 7T 5T

42. LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2023 and 2022 are shown as below.

HKS’000 2023 2022

R12A318 2 AR 5 REEMREE

FRNERARZ ZRSBER

—ERE

$20234F 20226 L3t A R 5 e — R
BARET - WmAAATE] -

43. AREALZRS

EREALAZFALAENEENEEENS
—7 0 WH S A EFHMBREERRSETT
FEARES - WEEMTRALZEIHRFER
FHRAEAFER > KEALTRRREFEA
+ o

FR2023F 52022 F > AEFESBREATEIE
REBEZERRAT - BRNBRE ~ ERATZ
KENEEERIE RS REEEAFE N
REVETZIERBERERS o XRARBIIIERNIT
EETRRTNEBRCREMBRRE > BH%SE
MTHE () S BRFERREZ X R ET
B ZEEERBEEGHMREREEEZH
B RAZFEEREIXZHIREAER
ERER - BRtE - —RMEEGRRRIEG 5
NEEESERFERACIRREREN HET o

Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding at
31 December
- Loans and advances 108 132

Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions during the year
- Loans and advances 185 135

The above relevant transactions in 2023 and 2022 were all transacted
by a subsidiary and nil by the Company.

43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties, which have the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

During 2023 and 2022, the Group entered into various continuing
connected transactions with related parties including the holding
company, fellow subsidiaries of the Group, companies directly or
indirectly controlled or significantly influenced by the shareholders or
directors of the holding company. These, as described in Note (a) below
and being continuing connected transactions, had been reviewed by the
Company’s independent non-executive directors in their review of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. Based on their review
and enquiry with management, the Company’s independent non-
executive directors were satisfied that all of the continuing connected
transactions were conducted in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance
with relevant agreements on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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43. BRIEALZRS (R)
REMEALZEARSNT

() BERARKERMBATRNRKS

KRB RAEBZENE QBN ENEIZER AT
LERWBABSE] ZFEMEBER S (EERE
BRGNS EmRA] (T EmFRA] 55 14A.31E%)
WEIREETNZWARSZE - ZEX52HBE
RBE AT S RE LT RAIZE 14A.53E8 K2 14A.54
B BENAEEZFEELR - XATBEETL
HIRBE AT AINEIRTE o

RES B AT REAMIRIT « RPIEEIRT
hE—EERBARRS ZWARZHETIT :

43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries within the Group
received and incurred the following income and expense from the
continuing connected transactions (within the definition of Rule 14A.31
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing
Rules”)) entered into with the holding company and fellow subsidiaries
during the year. The aggregate values of these transactions are within
or consistent with the respective annual caps applicable to the Group
pursuant to Rules 14A.53 and 14A.54 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Income or expense arising from transactions involving subsidiaries,
namely DSB, BCM and another subsidiary of the Group are as follows:

B/

Bt EHRR

F14AE

Bt Em Excluded/
HRAIF14AE exempted

Subject to from
Chapter 14A  Chapter 14A
2023%F 2023 of the of the
LGB Flidn HKS’000 ListingRules  Listing Rules
BAFE (i) Interest paid (Note (i) TIEH N/A (21,391)
EUERTTF &S (i) Bank charges received (Note (i)) AR N/A 1,705
Bl EMMERAEEEERHAS Rentals and related building management fee
(&(ii) and charges received (Note (i) FERN/A 2,484
B REAAEERE RS Rentals and related building management fee
(3£ (iif)) and charges paid (Note (iii)) TERAN/A (3,264)
BUEIEE (F(iv) Management fees received (Note (iv)) B N/A 12,131
BURBESRENE (GE(v) Insurance commission and referral fees
received (Note (v)) 29,012 FERN/A
AR RE (GE(vi) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi)) (25,681) AR NJA
B/ %%
Bt ERA
H14AE
Bt EH Excluded/
HRAIE14AE exempted
Subject to from
Chapter 14A Chapter 14A
20224 2022 of the of the
LOBHFlidm HKS$’000 Listing Rules  Listing Rules
EIFE (i) Interest paid (Note (i)) R N/A (5,140)
EWIRTTFES (5 (i) Bank charges received (Note (i)) R N/A 1,318
BlHE REAAEERE RS Rentals and related building management fee
(ZE (i) and charges received (Note (i) R N/A 3,060
BAEERIERAEEEE RS Rentals and related building management fee
(& (i) and charges paid (Note (iii)) TR N/A (3,463)
EWEERE Management fees received 13,228 R N/A
BlRRAERENE (V) Insurance commission and referral fees received
(Note (v)) 24,587 TR N/A
BAREBRE (G (vi) Insurance premiums paid (Note (vi)) (9,162) B N/A

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R




43. ARREALZRZ (&)
() BERARRRARMBARNNKS ()

FEER/MERERE NAERH RITEH

RATRIT R A EBEMAL B AR MIER AR KIE
FEEWBRABRZBERMBEAR (HHEIAHMETE
£E) REELRTRE > QEREE - 85
HER - XERIRITERERS ~ EAFEARE
HMEERRRRERS °

ERMZREE - B8R XERERIRFZR
1TRRTS > THRIRIREER P R ALt R AR LR T
EEREMERZERSNRETFAMERER -
ERTERREAMECEH LN REESS
MM BZHHRERM - ERFEAREZ
REDHEO WL EEEFH » HRITAIUSEE
MFLUELE - FEBRAXTEHER ZKMEER
ReE REMEMER > JHERN—HSHTT
DRC6(E S EEEN T UKL PR ZFIRITIRE
MEME-RASTREBEEFHREME - Bt > &
EREXHTEMERBZRITRE > THEIFERE
FHIRM

AR ZRITNBARBATERERE A
ARMZIRTTIRE - AErEEmEMEREH
—RRIBTIRB k2 BRBEEEBEERE
17 - AEERAHEREBRHEZFRITRE
SAEE D BIEZFRITRBEE KA -
ZARBIA o

FEEZRTWBARNR —RMEZEREBRETD
MEZFREHEEERTRBERER - ZFRB
KEMBERMNFR (BETERERRENF
) e MAEBZRITMNBARNERERZER
BEATERERRS AR » S LHRATME -
KT ERERMREARFRFREM RS
L4ASBFRRE 2 F 8RR S -

43,
(a)

Note:

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group

DSB and other members of the Group provide standard banking services
to members of the holding company and fellow subsidiaries not being
subsidiaries of the Group (collectively the “DSFH Group”) including
cheque clearing, autopay, cheque and deposit bank accounts, credit card
merchant facilities, co-branded credit cards and investment dealing.

The banking services in respect of cheque clearing, autopay, cheque and
deposit accounts are provided to the DSFH Group in the same way as they
are provided to other customers of the Group under standard account
opening and other forms. The credit card merchant facilities and co-brand
credit card arrangements are provided under normal commercial
contracts and are at market standard. The standard market practice for
credit card merchant facilities is not to provide for a fixed term, but allow
for termination at the option of the bank by giving written notice. The
co-brand credit card arrangements between the Group and the DSFH
Group can be terminated after the first two years by either party giving
not less than six months’ notice in writing. All such banking services, by
their nature, are not normally provided for a fixed term. Accordingly, the
banking arrangement between the Group and the DSFH Group are not for
a fixed term.

The banking services provided by the Company’s banking subsidiaries
to the companies within the DSFH Group are banking services and
arrangements normally provided by the Group to its other customers
and are conducted on normal commercial terms. The provision of such
banking services by the Group to the DSFH Group enables the Group
to earn reasonable income consistent with the nature and types of the
banking services.

The banking subsidiaries of the Group provide commercial banking
services and products to their customers in the ordinary and usual course
of their businesses. Such services and products include the taking of
deposits (including fixed and floating term deposits and deposits at call).
Customers who place deposits with the banking subsidiaries of the Group
include members of the DSFH Group. For purposes of the Listing Rules, the
placing of deposits provided by members of the DSFH Group constitute
continuing connected transactions within the meaning of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Banking arrangements provided by the Group for companies within the
DSFH Group (Continued)

The Directors confirm that the deposits placed by members of the DSFH
Group at the banking subsidiaries of the Group are at market rates and
on normal commercial terms that are comparable or no more favourable
than those offered to independent third parties and that no security over
the assets of the Group is granted in respect of such financial assistance.
On that basis, such continuing connected transactions are exempted from
complying with the reporting, disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. Other
banking services are fall to be de minimis transaction under Rule 14A.76
and is exempted from the reporting and announcement requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Lease of properties between DSl and MIC and DSB and BCM

DSB and BCM have leased certain of their owned properties to members of
the DSFH Group, namely Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited (“DSI”) and
Macau Insurance Company Limited (“MIC”) as their office premises. DSB
and BCM received from DSI and MIC the lease rentals, and air-conditioning
charges, building management charges and other utilities charges based
on the actual amount of costs incurred. The lease is fall to be de minimis
transaction under Rule 14A.76 and is exempted from the reporting and
announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Lease of property by DSB from HS

A lease back agreement has been entered into by DSB with High Standard
Investment Limited (“HS”). Pursuant to which, DSB paid to HS the lease
rentals, and air-conditioning charges, building management charges and
other utilities charges based on the actual amount of costs incurred.

With the implementation of HKFRS 16, when the Group enter into a lease
transaction as a lessee with its fellow subsidiaries and recognise the right-
of-use asset, the lease transaction is regarded as an one-off connected
transaction (i.e. an acquisition of capital assets) under the definition of
transaction set out in Rule 14.04(1)(a). The lease is fall to be de minimis
transaction under Rule 14A.76 and is exempted from the reporting and
announcement requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)
(iv)  Computer and Administrative Services Agreement with DSFH Group

A computer and administrative services agreement has been entered
into by DSB with DSFH. Pursuant to which, DSB has agreed to provide
members of the DSFH Group with certain computer and administrative
services. These services principally consist of the following (collectively,
the “Services”):

. computer services including data processing, printing and
enveloping, system development, technical support, disaster
recovery and contract management;

. administrative, company secretarial, internal audit, compliance,
operational, risk management, investment custodian and treasury
operations; and

. secondment of, and provision of services by, staff to the DSFH
Group.

With the stronger pool of resources and functional expertise of DSB which
historically has been operating to provide administrative and computer
services to other companies within the DSFH Group on a cost-recovery
basis, the provision of the Services to the DSFH Group at a fee enables the
Group to continue to expand its scale and operational capabilities while
costs incurred by the Group in providing the Services are recovered from
the DSFH Group. On that basis, such continuing connected transactions
are exempted from complying with the reporting, disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.98 of the Listing Rules. Computer and administrative services are
exempted from the reporting and announcement requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow

subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

v)

Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services

(a)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSI, DSIA and MIC

On 31 December 2019,

(i) DSl entered into the distribution agreement and underlying
agency agreement with DSB for the marketing and
distribution of general insurance products through the
branch network of DSB for a fixed term of three years with
effect from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022;

(ii) Dah Sing Insurance Agency Limited (“DSIA”) entered into the
distribution agreement and underlying agency agreements
with DSB for the marketing and distribution of general
insurance products through the branch network of DSB for a
fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and

ending on 31 December 2022; and

(iii)  MIC entered into the distribution agreement and underlying
agency agreement with BCM for the marketing and
distribution of general insurance products through BCM’s
branch network for a fixed term of three years with effect

from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022.

To continue the distribution and agency arrangement between
members of the Group with members of DSFH Group, on 30

December 2022,

(i) DSI entered into the new distribution agreement and
underlying agency agreement with DSB for the marketing
and distribution of general insurance products through the
branch network of DSB for a fixed term of three years with
effect from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025;

(i) DSIA entered into the new distribution agreement and
underlying agency agreement with DSB for the marketing
and distribution of general insurance products through the
branch network of DSB for a fixed term of three years with
effect from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025;

and

(iii) ~ MIC entered into the new distribution agreement and
underlying agency agreement with BCM for the marketing
and distribution of general insurance products through
branch network of BCM for a fixed term of three years with
effect from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v)  Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(@)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSI, DSIA and MIC
(Continued)

Pursuant to the new distribution agreement entered into by DSI
with DSB (the “New DSI Distribution Agreement”), DSB will market
and distribute such general insurance products as agreed between
the parties from time to time for the DSFH Group through its branch
and other distribution networks.

Pursuant to the New DSI Distribution Agreement, DSB entered into a
new agency agreement with DSI (the “New DSI Agency Agreement”)
in respect of the sale of certain general insurance products in return
for commission payments, as agreed between the parties from time
to time. Under the terms of the New DSI Agency Agreement, the
commission payable by DSI to DSB shall, initially, be between 20%
and 55% (depending on the product type) of each year’s premium
received in respect of a new or renewal policy, but which may vary
between the parties from time to time.

Pursuant to the new distribution agreement entered into by DSIA
with DSB (the “New DSIA Distribution Agreement”), DSB markets
and distributes such general insurance products as agreed
between the parties from time to time through its branch and other
distribution networks.

Pursuant to the New DSIA Distribution Agreements, DSB entered
into a new agency agreement with DSIA (the “New DSIA Agency
Agreements”) in respect of the sale of certain general insurance
products in return for commission payments, as agreed between
the parties from time to time. Under the terms of the New DSIA
Agency Agreement, the commission payable by DSIA to DSB shall
be 50% of the commission earned by DSIA or at such rate as agreed
by both parties from time to time.

Pursuant to the new distribution agreement entered into by MIC
with BCM (the “New MIC Distribution Agreement”), BCM markets
and distributes such general insurance products of MIC as agreed
between the parties from time to time through its branch and other
distribution networks.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v)  Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(@)

Distribution and Agency Agreements with DSI, DSIA and MIC
(Continued)

Pursuant to the new MIC Distribution Agreement, BCM entered
into a new agency agreement with MIC (the “New MIC Agency
Agreement”) in respect of the sale of certain general insurance
products in return for commission payments, as agreed between
the parties from time to time. Under the terms of the New MIC
Agency Agreement, the commission payable by MIC to BCM in
respect of general insurance products shall, initially, be between
10% and 50% (depending on the product type) of each year’s
premium received in respect of new or renewal policies, but which
may vary between the parties from time to time.

In respect of each of the New DSI, DSIA and MIC Distribution
Agreements (collectively the “New Distribution Agreements”), DSI
and DSIA shall each reimburse or pay on behalf of DSB, and MIC
shall reimburse or pay on behalf of BCM, agreed expenses including
the registration fees for licences for the bank staff to sell insurance,
sales incentives, marketing expenses and other costs and expenses
related to the performance of the New Distribution Agreements.

Each of the New Distribution Agreements is on a mutually non-
exclusive basis and will be for a three-year fixed term with effect
from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025. Each of the
new DSI, DSIA and MIC Agency Agreements (collectively the “New
Agency Agreements”) is on a mutually non-exclusive basis for a
three-year fixed term with effect from 1 January 2023 and ending
on 31 December 2025, save that the provisions relating to the
payment of outstanding renewal premiums shall remain in force
until payment is received in full.

The New Distribution Agreements and the New Agency Agreements
described above, including the commission rates set out in the
various sets of such Agreements, are consistent with normal
arrangements between banks or other insurance agents and
insurance companies in the Hong Kong and Macau markets, and
will provide the Group with insurance products and services to be
offered to the customers of the banking subsidiaries of the Group.
The distribution of different types of insurance products through
the respective bank branches and other distribution networks of
DSB and BCM in return for a commission income to be paid by the
DSFH Group will also produce fee income which will be of benefit to
the Group.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v)  Distribution and Agency Agreements and other business referral services
(Continued)

(b)

Business referral services

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement with DSFH. The cooperation agreement will be on a
mutually non-exclusive basis and for a fixed term of three-year
with effect from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December
2022. On 30 December 2022, the Company entered into a new
cooperation agreement with DSFH (the “New Business Referral
Services Agreement”), for a fixed term of three years with effect
from 1 January 2023 and ending on 31 December 2025. Pursuant to
the New Business Referral Services Agreement, the Company shall
provide and shall procure members of the Group to, either directly
or via their sole agents (if any), provide members of the DSFH
Group with business referral and insurance brokerage services in
relation to obtaining applications for general insurance policies
to be underwritten by members of the DSFH Group. There is no
commitment on any member of the Group to refer to member(s)
of DSFH Group such transactions of any minimum or maximum
number and/or amount. Where concluded between the relevant
parties, the terms and conditions for the provision of such business
referral services shall be, if required, reduced into individual written
agreement(s). Payment under the New Business Referral Services
Agreement or the individual written agreements made thereunder
shall be made by cheque(s) or other payment means in arrears.

Pursuant to the cooperation agreement, the fee income actually
received shall either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to relevant
member(s) of the Group than terms available from independent
third parties. The fee income is payable by cheque(s) monthly in
arrears.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Transactions with the holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(vi)

Insurance services provided by DSl and MIC

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with DSFH for a fixed term of
three years with effect from 1 January 2020 and ended on 31 December
2022 (both days inclusive). On 30 December 2022, the Company and
DSFH entered into a new cooperation agreement (the “New Cooperation
Agreement”) for a fixed term of three years with effect from 1 January 2023
and ended on 31 December 2025 (both days inclusive).

The general insurance policies underwritten by DSI and MIC are in the
name, and for the benefit, of members of the Group and their respective
customers.

DSl underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for the
benefit, of members of the Group and their respective customers including
policies covering vehicle, property all risks, public liability, money,
electronic equipment, medical, employees’ compensation and group/

personal accident. Certain policies are subject to renewal annually.

MIC underwrites general insurance policies in the name, and for the
benefit, of BCM and its customers including policies covering medical,
personal accident, employees’ compensation, vehicle, properties, civil

liability and money. Certain policies are subject to renewal annually.

The premiums payable under such insurance policies are payable in
arrears on a monthly, yearly or other basis, depending on the type of
insurance policy.

The insurance policies are procured by the Group to enable certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries, namely DSB and BCM, to comply with relevant
regulatory requirements in reducing risks to the Group’s assets, businesses
and operations and/or to provide additional services to the Group’s
customers. In addition, the Directors consider that the insurance services
provided by DSI and MIC are effective and the fees proposed by DSI and
MIC respectively are comparable to those offered by other insurance
companies in the market.

Under the New Cooperation Agreement, either party to the agreement
may terminate the agreement by giving one month notice in advance to
the other party without having to incur a penalty.
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43. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors
and key management personnel

The Group provides credit facilities to, and takes deposits from
the Group’s key management personnel, their close family

members and entities controlled by them. For the year ended 31

AEERANH December, the following balances were outstanding:

LOBIEF L5 HKS$’000 2023 2022
BAREBR Loans and advances 645 530
EE Deposits 3,274 421,138
KEVRHZ EFEKEAE Undrawn commitments 3,919 2,889
R Guarantee - -
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(i) Remuneration of key management personnel

Key management personnel of the Company are directors and
their remunerations are included under Note 12.

(c) Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entities

During the year, the Group received from BOCQ, an associate, dividend
income of HK$198,237,000 (2022: HK$209,484,000). As at 31 December
2023, there is no outstanding balance of trade bills issued by BOCQ
accepted by the Group (2022: no outstanding balance). During the
year, the Group took deposits from jointly controlled entities and
the balance of deposit as at 31 December 2023 was HK$113,786,000
(2022: HK$226,552,000). During the year, the Group received from
a jointly controlled entity dividend income of HK$20,140,000 (2022:
HK$21,180,000). The transactions and balances were provided in the
ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms and
conditions and at market rates.
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AEBIRHEURES 2 RMUIBSS A2 MRS The Group operates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
RETRIRMNETE - BRAES 2 LR 22 E TR REN compensation plans. Details of the share-based compensation paid to
ZHREN 2 5IEEL2 © directors under these plans are disclosed in Note 12.
(FF) ARRRES (9 AR (D AE R EREN 121 (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
() LUIBRIESZ (T80 1E12) (a) Equity-settled share option scheme
REBFEBARNT 2 SBIRMETE (TAHIRTT Pursuant to the Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “DSBG
EEHE)) REERAB AN EHERSIR Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of its holding company,
NEZ IR (T AHEREtR ) 1BH L Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “DSFH Scheme”), equity-
e RN A ERNERN T EESE RS settled share-based compensation is available to directors and
HBITHAG © senior executives of the Group.

44. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

(i) KHEERITEEEE

A/A B 2014455 27 A HEE IR
PETRR IS o

ZERRE TR AR TE R B A
ZIER AR T - SHRREZ
TEEDHRARFNEEERKRE
NEEEGUNEBERNEBR S
EHRAIEIT.030)FERET » #B#F
BRUT2EFREEFETE ()
RABRNERTFEREERZME
BZIWHE ; K(i)AQBERMDERE
BETHAESEAREBERZME
B2 FWHE o

BAMIBRTERFIERMHERE
202312831 H » BT LUGRKREW

(i) DSBG Scheme

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption
of a share option scheme on 27 May 2014.

The share options were granted in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the DSBG Scheme. The exercise
price per option share was concluded by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) on behalf of the
Board of DSBG on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s
shares traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the
average closing price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

Share options granted under the DSBG Scheme since the
date of its adoption to 31 December 2023 are as follows:

T

SRITEE (BT

#FH 1851 EHAE 1TEHR Exercise price

Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HKS$)
20184F4826H DR s A 2018F4H26HE 2019F4H26HE
2023F4826H 2024F4826H

26 April 2018 Equity-settled 26 April 2018 - 26 April 2019 - 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R



44. VR AERRIRE S (B) 44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

(FF) LARGRESZ (G LARRID A ERERENETEI (48) (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)
() LUIBRIESS (T2 1E 12 (4B) (a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

(i) K¥rEFRIEE (ii) DSFH Scheme
2015 5H27H » K#TERRER On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of DSFH approved the
HEER NSRS Rt 8 (TR &R st adoption of a share option scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”).
Bl o
RHEREETEIEER B EE2023412 No share options had been granted under the DSFH Scheme
A31H 1k » WEAAIRRRERIE A since the date of its adoption to 31 December 2023.

ERISTEIRY o

REREWERR AR 2 UIRESZ (SRR 15 2 Equity-settled share-based compensation charged to
BEReRi - sz - consolidated income statement is as follows:

LGB T Tid)n HKS$’000 2023 2022
DB HRESE (1 2 s8R HE Equity-settled options 55 239
DARGHESZ vt 2 SRR Equity-settled options

M AFERITEE S BIFTR T 2 MRS With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the
TRVERRGHE » HINEFHZAFETUA=IE DSBG Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by
AR EERREE - using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the

options are granted.

7220234 » I EAE AT IARGHE ST {5 2 SRR 1 No equity-settled options were granted under the DSBG Scheme
R AR TEE T B R A SR EE T2 and DSFH Scheme in the year of 2023.
B e
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44. AR ZSERERENSTE (48)
(FR) LARRHESZ (AR (R A EERIRAN 518 (48)

() LURIES (1588218512 (48)
AR ES: 1 2 SEARHE (48)
By 2R EHE AT T HE S

44,

(A)

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
Equity-settled options (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options granted and their

E LIl related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
ASRTEEHE A¥rERiEl
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
2023 2022 2023 2022
BTrHE BYOHE

ARSRAT RART BYERE BTORE

£H =L AR AR
SigER  METY Skt NETY  DRER  mETS RER mETS
RiH#E it RH%UE e RA¥E -G e
Number of (A7) Number of (B7t)  Numberof (B7T)  Number of (&)
DSBG  Weighted DSBG  Weighted DSFH  Weighted DSFH  Weighted
shares  average shares  average shares  average shares  average
inshare  exercise inshare  exercise ~ inshare  exercise inshare  exercise
options price options price = options price options price
granted (HKS)  granted (HKS) ~ granted (HKS)  granted (HKS)
1R1H At 1 January 1,200,000 18.24 1,200,000 18.24 - - - -
o Granted - - - - - - - -
[l Expired - - - - - - - -
Bi7fE Exercised - = - - - - - i}
BEGE /R Cancelled/forfeited = = - - - - - i
12A31H At 31 December 1,200,000 18.24 1,200,000 18.24 - - - -
DA3LRITE Exercisable at 31 December 1,200,000 18.24 960,000 18.24 = = - -

ABFR2023FE 12831 ARITEZ BIGHE
BB B R EITHEERET18.2478 7T (2022
F 1 18.2477T) » KEI2022F 7 TS
FIAH B A0.32F c ARAEEESR
BARITEABRER 2 KM EreR R > 1
2023F 12831 HR B RITHEZ KITEREE
IEHE (20224 © BBEITEZ D) ©

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

The Company’s share options outstanding as of 31 December
2023 are all vested and have an exercise price of HK$18.24 (2022:
HK$18.24). The remaining weighted average vesting period in
2022 was 0.32 years. In respect of directors and senior executives
of the Group, there is no DSFH’s share option outstanding as of 31
December 2023 (2022: Nil).



44. DR ERERENSTE (48)
(FR) LARRHESZ (AR (R B ERERAN 518 (48)

(Z) kRl ZZ@=t2)

RABRRHERE B RMR G ZRE T3
(DRI AR TR IR 58 KR TR
MERRMEREE)) » URBETEER
EEEREEE @ WHBIRERRSRE
FEERAEFER - ARIEFENT ¢

() BRI 2021F9898 4% > 87
[EA104F o

(i) FADRNAERZEREENES
(BERTES > FRTEFRIEIL
FRITER) DEERSAILEE -

(i) EFRVERBREARATREH
12~ REB IR RAZREE 15 BEB E A
ZER o

(iv) BHROEBBRETSEA &8/
FIRBIITIER -

(1) KErERARDIZENSE

HEIERII 20219890 I 722022
F3830HE:] - B BIEE2023
F12A31H1E » BFHRMGHWT -

44,

(A)

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) Share award scheme

The Company and DSFH have each established a share award
scheme (hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG Share Award
Scheme” and the “DSFH Share Award Scheme” respectively) as
another long-term incentive plan to recognise the contribution
or value of certain employees or directors and to motive and
incentivise them in furtherance of the long-term business
objectives of the Group. Details of the schemes are as follows:

(i)  Both schemes were adopted on 9 September 2021 for a
term of 10 years.

(i)  Any employee or director (including executive director,
non-executive director and independent non-executive
director) of the Company or any other member of the Group
is eligible to participate in the Scheme.

(iii) The Board or its Delegate shall determine the vesting
schedule, vesting criteria and other conditions in the Award
Letter.

(iv) The Award Shares should be acquired via on-market
purchase and/or issue of new shares.

(1) DSFH Share Award Scheme

The scheme was adopted on 9 September 2021 and further
amended on 30 March 2022. Award shares granted under
the scheme since the date of its adoption till 31 December
2023 are as follows:

BRATE

BFRERHEE (#7T)

#FH Number of FR AR Fair value per share

Date of grant award shares granted Vesting period (HKS)
2022F12H6H 2022F1286BE
20274 12H6H

6 December 2022 358,100 6 December 2022 - 18.34
6 December 2027
2023%F483H 2023F483HE
202654534

3 April 2023 848,782 3 April 2023 - 20.15
3 April 2026

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023



44. VR AERRIRE S (B) 44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

(FF) LARGRESZ (G LARRID A ERERENETEI (48) (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)
(Z) BR172ZE)a12) (48) (b) Share award scheme (Continued)
(1) KRR IEENETE (8) (1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)
PR E RS R ATERE 2 I D 8BNS Share award expense charged to consolidated income
wr statement is as follows:
LB T 008 HKS’000 2023 2022
AeAD %NSz tH Share award expense 14,054 209
BFRHIZEIEE 2 EBNT - Movements in the number of award shares granted as
follows:
RETERB D12 EN R RintRITEERR 1R 2
DSFH Share Award Scheme DSBG Share Award Scheme
2023 2022 2023 2022
AErEm Kirest  AHSRITEE  AHERITEE
LS EE] REE Rir#E Pr !
Number of Number of Number of Number of

DSFH shares DSFH shares DSBG shares DSBG shares

1R1H At 1 January 358,100 - - -
B’y Granted 848,782 358,100 - -
FE Vested (70,940) - = -
el Forfeited (2,920) - o -
12A31H At 31 December 1,133,022 358,100 - -
SRZATE Fair value per share HK$19.70 HK$18.34 - -

312 KEMRITEEABRAE 2023F 58K



44. DR ERERENSTE (48) 44,
(FR) LARRHESZ (AR (R B ERERAN 518 (48) (A)

(Z) R17%ZRE12)(48)
(1) KEERIRDIZENEE (8)
FARMERSEIRTROFE

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) Share award scheme (Continued)

(1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Details of award shares granted during the year:

BRZATE SR B HAR
(#&7T) Vesting period
BTN IEEE Fair value
=¥ H Number of award per share =2 £
Date of grant shares granted (HKS) From To
2023%F483H 2023%F483H 20265%F483H
3 April 2023 848,782 20.15 3 April 2023 3 April 2026

BRI ELRD ST BRI BRER R AR -

Remaining vesting periods of award shares outstanding:

2023%12H31H 20225128310
At 31 December 2023 At 31 December 2022
FlerEmm R RIY#E  FESRRERE BInEE
Remaining Number of Remaining Number of
RIHEFH Shares granted in vesting period shares  vesting period shares
3.93F 4.93F
202251286H 6 December 2022 3.93 years 284,240 4.93 years 358,100
2,265
202354834 3 April 2023 2.26 years 848,782 - -

BB TETEEREILERTHER
HZE2023FE 12831 H EEEEEMNE
BA © 2023 F ERRIFTEAIE 1220244
3P 28HEMTFEEEENEEKE
ToAEENETFETIRES (B4
THAB)) R2023FRRIVICAL L
RIS FELURES: AT 11
2022 MERZEERE 0 SRITEA
B BIERD FE (TR IE AN i A B (7 52 B
SHEIE HURIERN £ o 2 192023F KRR
TEAFEHRITHRAENZH » 81FEN
IRIEEE A NEWALD > BF202445
3E2THRAMIBITEST G AT
MNWEEZEBR - BHFSRITEAE
EA2023F RIFTEALRIERIE & 1T
ZERTIRLERD » BETERT =R
BIRENR D 2 ENSTEIE % BERY
7 B R 1 B EL ko 0 iR = SRR
WD =EHLREFE o

As a reward to eligible employees to recognise their
contribution for the year ended 31 December 2023, 2023
performance bonus was advised to or paid to eligible
employees including directors of the Group as of 28
March 2024. For certain employees and directors (“Senior
Management”) of the Group, their 2023 performance bonus
was granted in the form of deferred remuneration similar
to prior years, and starting from 2022 performance year, a
portion of the deferred remuneration payable to the Senior
Management is in the form of deferred shares granted
under the DSFH’s Share Award Scheme. The arrangement
of the payment of 2023 performance bonus to Senior
Management, including granting to them deferred shares,
was approved by the Board of DSB and the Board of DSFH
on 27 March 2024. The deferred shares granted as a portion
of the deferred remuneration to the Senior Management as
their 2023 performance bonus will be vested in three equal
tranches over a three-year period, subject to vesting and
satisfying other conditions per the bonus and share award
letter given to the Senior Management.
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44, LURnZAERRRIMETE (&)
(FR) LABRHESZ {1 LARR (R A ELRRERAN 518 ()

(Z) RI7ZZRE18)(48)
(2) AHRITEEIRD LRSI

#HE2023F 12331 H K%2022F128
31H » BERKIIRITEBE RN IZED
TR IRHARD ©

(Z2) UIREZMHUARMIERER RS

RATEAFEMERUL BRI UG
HER BN SR (DR RT KRR TEEEE
BORER) 58 ) K KRR SE B RERST B )) - 1B %
HEMEERIRAEZEEE -

() ARTIRTTEEBILZR1EF 512

ZEt BRI 201853208 » EIRABE
Z2023F12831H1E » BFZHEFWTF ©

44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) Share award scheme (Continued)
(2) DSBG Share Award Scheme

By the end of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022,
no award share was granted under DSBG Share Award
Scheme.

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

The Company and DSFH have each adopted a cash-settled share-based
incentive option scheme (hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme” and the “DSFH Incentive Option Scheme” respectively)
as a long-term incentive plan to incentivise employees.

(a) DSBG Incentive Option Scheme

The scheme was adopted on 20 March 2018. Incentive options
granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption to 31

December 2023 are as follows:

BITHEE

(#7T)

Exercise price

#¥H R 5 HAR 1T1EHR per share

Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period (HKS)
201844526 H PRe s 2018%4H26H% 20195F47326HE
20234%4526H 20245%4526H

26 April 2018 Cash-settled 26 April 2018 - 26 April 2019 - 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
20194 6H5H LURE AT 20196 85HE 20205 6B5HE
20244 6H5H 2025%6H5H

5June 2019 Cash-settled 5June 2019 - 5 June 2020 - 13.66
5June 2024 5June 2025
20205F7H22H LURE XA 20205F7H22BE 2021F7H22HE
2025%7822H 2026FE7H22H

22 July 2020 Cash-settled 22 July 2020 - 22 July 2021 - 7.33
22 July 2025 22 July 2026
2020485 28H LRSS A 20204F8H28HE 20214F8H28HE
2025%8528H 2026F8H28H

28 August 2020 Cash-settled 28 August 2020 - 28 August 2021 - 7.44
28 August 2025 28 August 2026
20214F10329H DRSS AT 20214F10829HE 20225F10829HE
20265F10829H 2027510829H

29 October 2021 Cash-settled 29 October 2021 - 29 October 2022 - 7.46
29 October 2026 29 October 2027

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R



44. DR ERERENSTE (48)

(Z2) UREZ UG E2ERERM 5 &
(&)

(Z) AR mEREIEF=E)

ZEt BRI 2018453208 © EIMANBIE
F2023F 1283101 BFEBREE

44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Scheme

The scheme was established on 20 March 2018. Incentive options
granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption to 31

FUOF - December 2023 which are related to employees of the Group are
as follows:
BRITEE
(A7)
Exercise price
#¥FH =)l ]| 1T1EHR per share
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period (HKS)
202049428H MIREZ A 20209F9H28H % 20214F9H28HE
2025%F9H28H 20265F9H528H
28 September 2020 Cash-settled 28 September 2020- 28 September 2021~ 19.89
28 September 2025 28 September 2026

ZEEN D RAIRTERRAM SR EANZ
R AREFIR T - SHOERNZITEEHHRES
K& S g R AMIRTTER R AN ERMES
UM RRBRNE B ZFT LA RA%17.03(9) 1%
RET » BMERUT2ETZRSEFETE : (i)
RIRITEE KN ERRHAERTFEREER
BIREBEZWHE ; K(i)AHMIBTER, KHE
RRNDERERTHASEZEEANEBRZME
B PHWHE -

ZEEETHER > RERTFAESF1EBEES
53t A T LUTEE » MR RIRTERE
BRI T » AR ARTTEERBOER o Z51E
B—ERARANKFRERQATHA N ERRE
HERIREIRE RS E 0 WA S EARAETT
ERARBRAFERRND

PR E W IR RS Z IR I R &6
BNz S2 I

LCBBET 7T i3

The incentive options were granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the respective DSBG and DSFH schemes. The exercise
prices per incentive option were concluded by the NRC on behalf of
the respective Boards of DSBG and DSFH on the basis no less exacting
than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and were determined as no less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s/DSFH’s shares traded
on the SEHK on the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of
DSBG’s/DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

The rights granted under the respective schemes shall be exercisable
upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing from the first anniversary
of the date of grant. Subject to the fulfilment of the vesting conditions
set out in the option award letter, the grantees may exercise their
vested options. No shares of the Company or DSFH will be issued to
the grantees of the options under the schemes which are essentially
deferred cash incentive schemes linked to the performance of the
grantees and the share price of the Company and DSFH.

Cash-settled share-based compensation charged to consolidated
income statement is as follows:

HKS’000 2023 2022

DR N Z R

Cash-settled options = -
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44,

Mg fn B a5t & (48)

(Z2) UREZ UG E2ERERM 5 &

(&)

LB EZ (T ZHEF

FL_ IR AR $R1T 8 B R AR < BRAR B RE R 518U Y
RYEEESZ LEREER » HR2®RA
ZATEDUZENAREBZEESE 512023
FW IR T LIRE S BIHER  122021F B FE
BARTZATEZAARRENT :

44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

Cash-settled options

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the DSBG and
DSFH Incentive Option Schemes which are related to employees of
the Group described above, the fair value is determined by using the
Trinomial Option Pricing Model at reporting date. There were no cash-
settled options granted in 2023. The assumptions used to estimate the
fair value of the options granted during 2021 are as follows:

KEIRITEE
TEhEF ST
DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme

BHHE

Grant date

RigH B AR TERNRE (BT)
Share price of DSBG as at grant date (HKS)
1718 (o)

Exercise price (HKS)

TERRR R (5X(i)

Expected volatility (Note (i))

HARES e ()

Option life (years)

fm EBRA=R (5 (i)

Risk free rate (Note (ii))

FEHARR B = (5E(iii))

Expected dividend rate (Note (iii))
HARERNRRER 2 A FE (BT)

Fair value of a share in the option (HKS)

5t

(i

RER AT R ER AR AU TR AR B R B AR SR 1T 5
Eai A ERIRENEERBXR ZBIRAEKR
ER > RHIRSXEEBFEARITERNE
BHZA—FRRENELREEMEE > Wi
EXFRFIR

ERRAZXSEBINERSZEINEH B RER
FIEFAARBIU X -

TR EXERUERY HNEEREEE

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

2021410829H
29 October 2021

7.46

7.46

37.22%

1.20%

3.94%

2.01

Note:

(i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
of the share price of DSBG or DSFH, as appropriate, during the one
year period immediately preceding the grant date and is based on the
assumption that there is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical
volatility of the share price of DSBG, as appropriate, as set out above.

(i) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant time
to maturity at grant date.

(iii)  Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends at grant date.
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(Z2) UREZ UG ER B IRM 5 &
(&)

LB ZHEF (4B)

18T £ ERE 2 HFIME R AR TR
SEUIT :

44, SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (CONTINUED)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

Cash-settled options (Continued)

Movements in the number of options granted to employees of the

Group and their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

AHRTERRERER R
DSBG Incentive Option Scheme

PN iR ]
DSFH Incentive Option Scheme

2023 2022 2023 2022

BT aRE BTOEE il 1) BYEE
AT MBS AWEBT METS O ANMER  METS heR RS
EEIRE  OfE £ERRE 0 GeE 0 DRE  GEE  IRE  ORE
HiRIAEE (B7) FRHEE () #HikA%E (B7) FRHEE (&)
Number Weighted ~ Number  Weighted =~ Number Weighted ~ Number  Weighted
of DSBG  average  ofDSBG  average = ofDSFH  average  ofDSFH  average
sharesin  exercise  sharesin  exercise = sharesin  exercise  sharesin  exercise
options price options price ~ options price  options price
LBET LT HK$'000 granted (HKS)  granted (HKS) = granted (HKS)  granted (HKS)
1A1H At1January 14,250,000 12.31 14,750,000 1223 400,000 19.89 400,000 19.89
&y Granted - - - - - - - -
BB Expired - - - - = - - -
Bi7E Exercised = = - - - - - i
BEGE/ Bl Cancelled/forfeited (700,0000  10.62  (500,000) 993 - - - -
12A318 At 31 December 13,550,000 12.39 14,250,000 1231 400,000 19.89 400,000 19.89
12B3187{7# Exercisable at 31 December 10,440,000 13.48 8,070,000 13.80 240,000 19.89 160,000 19.89

FERFZURESI (28R » ZERNE2HKE
2EHENTFENE AKRE®E%12,000,00078 7T
(20224 : 12,000,000 7T) °

AR AEEESRERITHRABIERZ KR
ITEBERAMERERN > 122023F12H31BKT
B2 UIREZ A 2 RFNITEED AN F71.33
HBITE18.24787T (20224F © 7.33787TE18.2487T)
F219.897 75 (20224F @ 19.89787T) » K ENEF
BT R B IO P 2A0.834F (20224 | 1.625F) &
1.444E (20224F : 2.334F) o

In relation to the cash-settled options granted, the Group has recorded
liabilities of HK$12,000,000 (2022: HK$12,000,000) with reference to the
fair value of the options at the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding cash-settled options under
the DSBG and the DSFH Incentive Option Schemes related to directors
and senior executives of the Group have exercise price in the range
of HK$7.33 to HK$18.24 (2022: HKS$7.33 to HK$18.24) and at HK$19.89
(2022: HK$19.89) respectively, and a weighted average remaining
vesting period of 0.83 years (2022: 1.62 years) and 1.44 years (2022: 2.33
years) respectively.
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45. EHEERGRNEHE

WERERLRFIENITHEF IR EEREE
REBRZOHEREEE > UWnABUFRERERE
EENEREREERBEER  AIFTRERE
EREEEEHHE o

() KBEREEIHREET EEREMBIR
MERAHEZEHEERER

FERBBEEBTREFEARAT (FBHR
BRI HARZIRARERETRREERS °

REBRR 2V W RERNEBPREE 2 S5
BIEEEE B RAEE 2 EEIB AR AR FE (TR
TE4B%E o 7220235128310 » o PREAERRIE
R a0z MW HRIBRBIER ) RIE
70 RFR2022512831H » &3 BEARNREIER
BN TEMIRE RTERIRIER o IR S8
AR o

LOBBET 5T

45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the consolidated statement of
financial position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts securities

trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has offset
the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the gross amount
of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December 2023, the net
amount was a receivable and was included in “Accounts receivable and
prepayments” in Note 30, and as at 31 December 2022, the net amount
was a payable and was included in “Other accounts and accruals”. The

amounts offset are shown below.

HKS’000 2023 2022

FEWE B RIGEE 2 RIHAEER

BB RIGEE 2 AR

FEUL (Fe(Y) BB REE FER

(2) ZEEEHEEHHERBEGRSHMEINR
RAHPHZEMEERAR

AR PR E

FERGRAIEARZH T BEFEEER
B LURBEE R - FREEHERE » —B
HRENEN > MAEITRRZHFZARATARS
HERIE > MAAABRRBERH SIZFREE
IR EENEMN > FFERBFZR5 G UBEE
BER—RAEEGREVHRARPHHEER
afE-

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Gross amount of accounts receivable

from HKSCC 146,241 9,253
Gross amount of accounts payable to

HKSCC (13) (69,208)
Net amount due from/(to) HKSCC 146,228 (59,955)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.



45. EHEEAGRIHH(E)

(2) BFEEERHERBEGSMBRR
RAHPHZEMBEERARGR)
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45. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

Master netting arrangements (Continued)

The following tables present details of financial instruments subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

agreements.
REREHE TR AR RA
RARA  RERAME HiEZIEmEE

HIEZ B2 HRRA Related amounts not set off
SRBERE Fiiz&E  inthe consolidated statement

Gross BERE of financial position RS RrATkE
amountsof  Netamounts ST
recognised of financial £HMIA A
ERER financial assets  (GIEFRS HEfE
BEMAE liabilities presented AR 285
Gross  setoffinthe inthe Financial Bl Amounts
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated instruments REER not subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash enforceable
2023E12A31H At 31 December 2023 financial  of financial of financial non-cash collateral BB netting A
VBT 5m HKS$'000 assets position position collateral) received Net amount agreements Total
tHEE Financial assets
fiESmIA Derivative financial instruments 3,324,635 - 3,324,635 (797,336) (1,493,009) 1,034,290 241,514 3,566,149
Rk BRAESSHBRRRR
WRRA  REaHE HYZEREE
Higz B PRRKA  Related amounts not set off
SREEME  JImz&R  inthe consolidated statement
Gross BEFE of financial position
amountsof  Netamounts RS Rk
recognised  of financial $MIR T2
B2 financial liabilities  (EfEFRE BEHE
ERARAE assets presented KRR gz e
Gross  setoffinthe inthe Financial EER Amounts
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated instruments R not subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash enforceable
2023%12A31A At 31 December 2023 financial  offinancial  offinancial non-cash collateral R netting B
WEBTF T HKS*000 liabilities position position collateral) placedout ~ Netamount  agreements Total
SRER Financial liabilities
BTN Deposits from banks 1,849,838 - 1,849,838 (1,849,838) - - 635,206 2,485,044
frE4mTa Derivative financial instruments 1,086,501 - 1,086,501 (797,336) (228,572) 60,593 192,918 1,279,419
RERBARNEE  Tradingliabilities 99,853 - 99,853 (99,853) - - - 99,853
HHIRERTBRE Other accounts and accruals 47,317 - 447,377 (447,377) - - 1,513,271 8,020,654
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45, TRIEEHEGENEHEE) 45, OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(2) ZPREHLHHERBEARSUHER (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
RAHHEZz EMEEREE R agreement but not offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)
PR BRRAS Xk () Master netting arrangements (Continued)
REEEHE WRERAHBIRRRA
RRER REEITE HEZ ISR

HIEZERD RN Related amounts not set off
SRBREE FTRz&8  inthe consolidated statement

Gross BESE of financial position RERAMKE
amountsof  Netamounts BEHIT
recognised of financial EHMIA A
BRAeR financial assets  (BHEIFRS SHEfE
BELE liabilities presented HRR) %8
Gross  setoffinthe inthe Financial =4 Amounts
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated  instruments Radm not subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash enforceable
2020F12A318 At 31 December 2022 financial of financial offinancial non-cash collateral #8 netting At
LOBBFTSR  HKS000 assets position position collateral) received Net amount agreements Total
EHBEE Financial assets
fTE4mTEa Derivative financial instruments 3,732,908 - 3,732,908 (730,160) (2,002,713) 1,000,035 168,328 3,901,236
RREHS WREGEHBRRERN
HRERA REE0E HE7EESE
HiH7 BRES HREA Related amounts not set off
SHEELEE 5TZz&8  inthe consolidated statement
Gross BEFE of financial position
amountsof  Netamounts TERAE
recognised  of financial SWMIR BT
BB financial liabilities  (BEIFHEE FHEE
LRERAE assets presented bl i vk
Gross  setoffinthe inthe Financial EE#R Amounts
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated instruments Reds not subject to
recognised statement statement (including Cash enforceable
2020£12A318 At 31 December 2022 financial of financial of finandial non-cash collateral #8 netting Bt
LOBBFTAR  HKS000 liabilities position position collateral) placedout ~ Netamount  agreements Total
*HaR Financial liabilities
BTN Deposits from banks 1,045,724 - 1,045,724 (1,45,724) - - 2,866,769 4,112,493
fiESmIA Derivative financial instruments 873,366 - 873,366 (730,160) (102,009) 41,197 124,271 997,637
FIERZERNERE  Tradingliabilities 730,491 - 730,491 (730,491) - - - 730,491
HftiRERER Other accounts and accruals 700,345 - 700,345 (700,345) - - 7,173,605 7,873,950
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KiSERMITMBTEN

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

THBARMAEES EREARAMBRES B
BHIMER > BUEIAEBHEEMBREZ

,f/'\ o

1. BAXRRELEX

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as
part of the accompanying information to the consolidated financial
statements and does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

20235 20224
12H31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2023 2022

BARTELEE Capital adequacy ratio
— ZERE—R - Common Equity Tier 1 16.2% 15.2%
— —4 - Tier1 16.9% 15.9%
— 52 - Total 21.2% 19.3%

2023128318 K%2022F 12 H31H 2 BEAR T ELE
KL RMIRTTVER SR (BB RPIm EIRI TR K
1T (PR ) IRRGRITH (BA) RANDKE ZER
HENERPIE c ZEARELENFEES
BEITSRERAIRERE

RIEBBIRITERG » AIRTT A B BEMIRT
BEBTEATRIERRMER « BPIFXIRTA
BTAMRPERTEREERNRERAMIERT (F
B ‘RE T AR EIRTREERRTE

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and
DSB China) computed on Basel Ill basis in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into account market
risk and operational risk.

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and
DSB China is subject to the Mainland banking regulations.
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2. IRAFLEER

2. LEVERAGE RATIO

20235 20224

12H31H 12H31H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

BIRLEE Leverage ratio 11.2% 10.6%

LB ARAIRIT 2R ER R Z LR RIRE R T
EEXRZAERRE MRS -

3. RENMEAERLER

The above ratios represent the consolidated position of DSB and are
computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital adequacy
ratio.

3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO

2023 2022

BN MERFEE R

RENEAER LR T RIIRTT (B RPIEERIT R
RITERTT (FE)) R B EESEBRNTIEEGRS
BN MR LER BB T8 o MENMEMERTEER
THIRIBRGRTTZ CREE) FRADEE -

RATRIT R B BEMIRT RREEBIRTEED
BT RHEESER - BFIEFIRTRETERM
RPIRITEE B RRE RAHIRTT (PE) BET
BERTBERITEEEEE

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Liquidity maintenance ratio 64.0% 50.4%

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average consolidated LMR of DSB (covering BCM and DSB China) for the
financial year. The LMR is computed in accordance with the Banking
(Liquidity) Rules.

DSB as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is
subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is subject to the
Mainland banking regulations.



4. SMERSR

T A1E2023F 12831 HZ E=EcMESER S
ZHNEFER (B R 2 SN BB A P /A SINEE SR BB

10%) > e EARMEZ EE#RER o

20235128318 K20224F12831H » AEET
AT LS NS IRIFRE - SR FREIRE
FIBINERRE SN 2 SHENNESE AEMHE -

4. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2023 and the

corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as at
31 December 2023 and 2022. The net position is calculated in the basis

of the delta-weighted position of all foreign currency option contracts.

SMEAE

s Hithgheg Total

2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 ES BT AR Macau Other foreign foreign
HEREEST Equivalent in HKS millions US dollars Euro Renminbi Pataca  currencies  currencies
REBE Spot assets 80,496 1,054 16,286 10,028 10,091 117,955
RE8E Spot liabilities (56,183) (1,580) (15,414) (10,625) (7,521) (91,323)
ZEEA Forward purchases 87,748 2,429 31,383 - 19,741 141,301
EHEL Forward sales (110,039) (1,577) (32,820) = (22,389)  (166,825)
HEsE Net options position (420) (34) 532 - 3 81
&/ D EFE Net long/(short) position 1,602 292 (33) (597) (5) 1,189
SMESE

il HitoMg Total

2022124311 At 31 December 2022 e AR Macau  Other foreign foreign
HHERGEET Equivalent in HKS millions US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
FEEE Spot assets 72,101 16,890 9,502 9,356 107,849
REER Spot liabilities (55,594) (15,503) (10,912) (10,016) (92,025)
ZHEA Forward purchases 41,010 5,859 - 16,671 63,540
BHEH Forward sales (56,946) (6,958) - (16,027) (79,931)
HAE S48 Net options position 33 3 - (17 19
&/ (2 B3E Net long/(short) position 604 291 (1,410) (33) (548)
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5. (EEREREEZEEIMNAR 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND

EXPOSURES

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry
sector classified according to the usage of loans and

() BITEDE 2 TR EMRBREER (KL (a)
ERMARDERUZIETRRENE S

EE 53 4r) analysed by percentage covered by collateral
2023%F12A31H 20224 12A31H
At 31 December 2023 At 31 December 2022
EEE S EEEL
TR RiRRE m‘ﬁﬁunﬁﬁﬂ
ZE7L ZBED
% of gross % of gross
loans and loans and
RIERER advances KEBER advances
Outstanding covered by Outstanding covered by

LOBITF i8R HK$’000 balance collateral balance collateral

AEBERNEN Loans for use in Hong Kong

THEa Industrial, commercial and financial

—MEER - Property development 6,908,262 60.1 5,194,440 63.5
—MELE - Property investment 23,767,506 91.4 21,406,840 88.0
— TRl - Financial concerns 3,607,794 14.0 2,564,573 16.0
—RELL - Stockbrokers 1,240,252 46.9 842,926 56.9
—HBRTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,791,670 88.5 4,825,599 92.7
—BE% - Manufacturing 1,684,066 67.7 1,954,317 445
—EBHKERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,662,549 80.8 2,247,726 78.2
— R E - Recreational activities 62,840 99.1 79,708 99.8
—EHRE - Information technology 29,760 50.8 22,048 59.8
—HA - Others 6,062,815 75.7 6,054,928 80.1
50,817,514 7.1 45,193,105 s
BA Individuals

-BEEERHEE) - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home

TAABEERHE K Ownership Scheme, Private Sector

MMEEEEE 2 Participation Scheme and Tenants
BFET Purchase Scheme 461,752 99.3 484,470 99.7

—BEEMETYEER - Loans for the purchase of other

residential properties 34,954,353 99.9 33,911,826 100.0
—EEFEX - Credit card advances 3,841,087 - 3,674,222 -
—HA - Others 13,530,504 50.4 12,181,304 45.0
52,793,696 79.9 50,251,822 793

AEBERENER Loans for use in Hong Kong 103,611,210 78.5 95,444,927 78.5

BERE (1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,624,799 73.1 5,752,611 725

AEBLUMERNER (F(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note (2)) 33,813,467 56.8 35,332,697 61.4

143,049,476 732 136,530,235 738

E Note:

(1) LA RZzESREA2EEERERBLEZE (1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of imports
BitEsI Mo EREAED - BOMBONRME » to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and merchandising
UkEmERMELEZER trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines issued by the

HKMA.
(2) MEEALUMEBENER BERTEARAER (2)  Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers

BELVUMERZER © located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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5. {REREREEZEEIMNIH (48)

() BITEDEZ2EREMRBMRLEER (U
ERARSARUAZ R RFEENE S

EE#7) (48)

LD EBHE R BRI RABEIL10%3L U
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5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Gross loans and advances to customers by industry
sector classified according to the usage of loans and
analysed by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting
10% or more of the total balance of loans and advances to customers,
the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, Stage 3, and
Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances are as follows:

eV
B
BHARMERE
i@sfEn PEER1R
Gross FEER2
REEHR  loansand MEEL3 {EEEE
(BE&3)  advances H{E%fE Stageland
RIBRLEER Impaired overdue Stage 3 Stage 2
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 Outstanding loans forover impairment impairment
LOBEETF AR HKS’000 balance (Stage3) 3months allowances allowances
TEBERENER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Trsh Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment 23,767,506 470,739 546,729 31,720 64,506
fEA Individuals
—REEHMEENEERN - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 34,954,353 170,938 179,532 31,933 27,440
EEBLUMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 33,813,467 1,269,535 995,898 147,671 149,084
(£
PR
BEAREER
@im3fEa PEELR:
Gross PEER2
BEER loans and PEEL3 REZEE
(F&ER3) advances H{E%EME  Stageland
KERGER Impaired overdue Stage 3 Stage 2
2022128314 At 31 December 2022 Outstanding loans forover  impairment  impairment
LOBIEFolidm HKS’000 balance (Stage 3) 3 months allowances allowances
TEHEERNEN Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEsh Industrial, commercial and financial
—-MERE - Property investment 21,406,840 34,299 92,035 2,095 138,453
EVN Individuals
—BEEMAENEEN - Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 33,911,826 81,842 92,156 11,350 24,518
EEELUMERNER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 35,332,697 1,685,840 1,413,348 618,858 261,878
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5. {REREREEZEEIMNIH (48)

(Z) HPEAMEEFEIREE

REEBZER(RITEGRE) KRR > LUTHF
B REEBEGREZ DD REAZERH T
Bl KRB RRRPAAIZIFRTER SN T4
Bk BEZERRBRERNUDE » Hoh REEAH
RTREAMIRTIEABDE T2 PEREES

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the categories
of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures defined
by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with reference to
the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which includes the Mainland
activities exposures extended by DSB and its Mainland subsidiary bank

HYEREE © only.
BEARRA BEERERI
HIEREE HIEREE
20234 2023 On-balance Off-balance 4EEREE
LUBBETF AP HKS$’000 sheet exposure  sheet exposure Total exposures
1. FPREA RRBFHEE 1. Central government, central
B IS R EL B A B government-owned entities and
5EA8 (& RE)) their subsidiaries and joint ventures
(“JVs”) 5,335,030 - 5,335,030
2. WHBRE > MABFHES 2. Local governments, local government-
A R E B AT owned entities and their subsidiaries
BEAT and JVs 767,841 599,965 1,367,806
3. BAEPEAMZERD 3. PRCnationals residing in Mainland
TR B Pt AR i BV ELA China or other entities incorporated
Y a s NNVl in Mainland China and their
HENE] subsidiaries and JVs 9,281,772 1,578,580 10,860,352
4. REHELME—IASIRZ 4. Otherentities of central government
FR ORI TRV EL i not reported in item 1 above 4,812,981 69,574 4,882,555
5. KRBELMETIBERY 5. Otherentities of local governments not
75 BT E S reported in item 2 above 760,676 135,329 896,005
6. BAEETERMLINZ 6. PRCnationals residing outside
ERSERER N Mainland China or entities
SN RIS » TS incorporated outside Mainland
TSR AR B Pyt China where the credits are granted
e for use in Mainland China 9,777,277 274,183 10,051,460
7. HtXZEF > HEREE 7. Other counterparties where the
WRIEHPEAREIE exposures are considered to be non-
RITHER P AVEREE bank Mainland China exposures 475,299 344 475,643
31,210,876 2,657,975 33,868,851
RIRITRERMERTT Total assets of DSB and its Mainland
iNEYNCIPER]ES subsidiary bank after provision
BEBrEES 242,059,031
BEESBRANGREE On-balance sheet exposures as
HEES BT percentage of total assets 12.89%

5 HEWREAERFENBEREMEERR
(e

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R

Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and
other balances of claims on the customers.



5. {EREREREEZEEIMIIR (B) 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES

(CONTINUED)
(2) HPBEKPEEFSERLE (B) (b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)
BEBBERR BESBXRI
HEREE IBRER
20224 2022 On-balance Off-balance 4BERER
LUBISF oI5 HKS’000 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. hREFT > RREFFEE 1. Central government, central
A R E B AT government-owned entities and
BENE] their subsidiaries and JVs 7,328,050 106,667 7,434,717
2. MIABRT > MABF#HAE 2. Local governments, local government-
AV R LB A BN owned entities and their subsidiaries
HERT and JVs 631,492 592,303 1,223,795
3. BAAEPEANMZEIRS 3. PRCnationals residing in Mainland
AR I R E M China or other entities incorporated
HE R E M B A FIH in Mainland China and their
BENE subsidiaries and JVs 10,500,933 1,932,334 12,433,267
4, KRBELME—IB2IRZ 4. Otherentities of central government
FRORE T R EL i not reported in item 1 above 3,753,802 71,984 3,825,786
5. KREMELMETIBZ2RY 5. Otherentities of local governments not
5 BRI E g reported in item 2 above 943,649 170,022 1,113,671
6. BAETERMLINZ 6. PRCnationals residing outside
BIR SR EIAL Mainland China or entities
SNREILRVIRAE > T incorporated outside Mainland
RV SRR AR E At China where the credits are granted
(EE for use in Mainland China 11,535,421 593,574 12,128,995
7. EHMRZZEF > HEREE 7. Other counterparties where the
WARVES PR ARETE exposures are considered to be non-
1T FRVERER bank Mainland China exposures 440,041 - 440,041
35,133,388 3,466,884 38,600,272
AR TR E AR T Total assets of DSB and its Mainland
EYN=IpR]ES subsidiary bank after provision
BERZEEST 237,109,784
BEEBBRANGE On-balance sheet exposures as
HEESH BT percentage of total assets 14.82%
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5. {REREREEZEEIMNIH (48)

(R) BEEDTZEREMKRBREERE
HAER

ERERKRBRZEHAOHTHIREEE B ERE
B2z XZHFRAEMDE - —KRME > BEW
FUERA EEARZHFAEZ @EE - EERE
W -

TERBEFLERKBRRE  HEZTRERKLR
R (PEER3) ~ BT P BB  FEER3 ~ K&
BRI PER2BEREEIZRIDT ©

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Analysis of gross loans and advances to customers and
overdue loans by geographical area

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the counterparties after taking into account
the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of
the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to customers,
impaired loans and advances to customers (Stage 3), overdue loans and
advances to customers, Stage 3, and Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment
allowances by geographical area.

HEER
HERREM PEER1
ERERR (P5ER3) BHER RPEER2
BB Impaired  ERREH FEER3 m{E%ERE
Gross  loansand Overdue W{E%ER Stageland
loansand advances to loans and Stage 3 Stage 2
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 advancesto  customers advancesto impairment impairment
LOBBEFTI5 T HKS’000 customers (Stage3)  customers allowances allowances
&8 Hong Kong 119,759,434 2,259,148 1,771,878 422,162 552,353
HER Mainland China 7,546,867 334,757 205,675 27,347 46,698
el Macau 14,012,453 185,656 185,656 35,746 19,272
Hith Others 1,730,722 = 4,380 = 9,678
143,049,476 2,779,561 2,167,589 485,255 628,001

BERR
[CEVEE PEERL
BRENK (F5E3) BER RPEER2
PR Impaired  EFREN PEER3 AEZEE
Gross loans and Overdue BEZEE  Stageland
loansand  advancesto loans and Stage3 Stage2
2022F12831H At 31 December 2022 advancesto customers  advancesto  impairment  impairment
LOBEF 5T HK$’000 customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
&8 Hong Kong 115,359,550 1,605,378 1,084,661 538,724 682,729
Bl Mainland China 6,387,927 688,723 525,772 259,363 36,674
B Macau 13,466,251 244,911 244911 88,966 20,320
Hith Others 1,316,507 - - - 9,626
136,530,235 2,539,012 1,855,344 887,053 749,349

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R




5. {REREREEZEEIMNIH (48)

(T) EPR{ERE

BERERENEEEBERNERRE  RIEXS
HIFNFEMMRENIMZZHFREEHR
Bl o —RiME > EXSHFHEERBETR
BRNS—HER > ERTERZE—BRTINE
1T MERBEENTRENER - 4 R
ERH—EREBES—BER o K5 RIEREH
ZREERE  REEMEREREBEE100%5 XY
L@ EHIEE ©

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND EXPOSURES
(CONTINUED)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are

disclosed.
JESRITRA AL RS
Non-bank private sector
&R
JESRAT ThAHRE
RS Non-

EAH1E  Non-bank financial fRiERE
2023128318 At 31 December 2023 1T Official financial private Total
BEHT In millions of HKS Banks sector institutions sector claims
BEERD Offshore centres 5,913 8,819 7,129 158,640 180,501

—Eip B - of which: Hong Kong 5,197 7,109 6,728 142,097 161,131
ZRTTAR Developing Asia and Pacific 25,060 1,271 3,173 16,882 46,386
—Erh . E i - of which: Mainland China 15,920 1,100 3,016 11,550 31,586
JERITRAANE
Non-bank private sector

El=

FERIT YN

R Non-

EAE Non-bank financial EfLaEE
20225F12831H At 31 December 2022 17 Official financial private Total
BEBT In millions of HKS Banks sector institutions sector claims
BRI Offshore centres 6,660 8,643 5,483 152,869 173,655

—EH 5B - of which: Hong Kong 5,822 7,398 5,399 137,402 156,021
FERPDAE Developing Asia and Pacific 27,231 1,094 1,375 17,580 47,280
—Hrh AR - of which: Mainland China 19,734 949 1,106 12,901 34,690
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RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANKING GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are

set out on pages 113 to 320, comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising

material accounting policy information and other explanatory

information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers

. Recoverable amount of the investment in an associate, Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”)

. Information Technology - Implementation of the new core

banking system
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers

Refer to notes 4(a) and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
impairment allowances of HK$1,113,256 thousand in
respect of its advances to customers.

The determination of the impairment allowances
involves complex methodologies and significant
management judgement. During the year, the
uncertainties in economic environments in Hong Kong
and Mainland China, including but not limited to the
dynamic situation in the China real estate sector, have
continued to impact the inherent risk and estimation
uncertainty involved in estimating impairment
allowances.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of the
measurement of ECL include:

+ Segmentation of portfolios based on credit
risk characteristics, selection of appropriate
model methodologies and determination of key
measurement parameters and assumptions

+ Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”), or a
default;

+ Determination of macro-economic forecasts,
and the application of economic scenarios and
weightings; and

+ The estimated future cash flows for loans and

advances to customers in Stage 3.

Impairment allowances on advances to customers is
an audit focus due to the high inherent risk given the
uncertainty of estimates, adoption of complex models,
involvement of significant management judgements
and assumptions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We understood and evaluated management’s internal
controls for the measurement of impairment allowances on

advances to customers.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as the complexity
of estimation models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We have performed the following procedures:

+ We tested controls over selection of ECL model
methodologies and segmentation of portfolios,
determination and approval of key measurement
parameters and assumptions such as staging, macro-
economic forecasts and their related probability
Weightings;

+ Weinvolved our credit risk experts in evaluating the
model methodologies for ECL measurement including
segmentation of portfolios, key measurement
parameters and assumptions

+ We tested controls over timely identification,
assessment and reporting of credit-impaired
advances to customers;

+ Onasampling basis, we assessed the appropriateness
of the internal credit ratings, management’s
judgements used in determining significant increases
in credit risk and identification of credit-impaired
advances to customers based on the borrowers’
financial and non-financial information and other

evidence provided by management;

+ We evaluated management's selection of macro-
economic forecasts, economic scenarios and
weightings assigned. We assessed the reasonableness
of the macro-economic forecasts by comparing them
to available public information, and other current
macro-economic conditions; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers (Continued)

+ Wetested controls over estimated future cash flows
and calculation of present values with respect to
advances to customers in Stage 3. For a sample of
advances to customers in Stage 3, we assessed the
reasonableness of key management judgements
and estimates used in the ECL calculation such as
estimated future cash flow from borrowers, collateral
valuations, range of scenarios and scenarios
weightings.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered that
the models, significant judgements and assumptions, as
well as key parameters used by management in measuring
impairment allowances on advances to customers were
supported by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverable amount of the investment in an associate, Bank of Chongging (“B0CQ”)

Refer to notes 4(d) and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s investment in BOCQ s accounted for as an
associate, using the equity method. The Group recorded
net investment in BOCQ of HKS2,215,131 thousand at
31 December 2023, after making a cumulative provision
for impairment of HK$5,227,000 thousand as at year
end. The provision for impairment charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2023 was HK$552,000 thousand.

The gross carrying amount of the investment (prior
to impairment allowances) was higher than the
market value of BOCQ as at 31 December 2023, This is
considered as an indicator of impairment. Therefore,
management performed an impairment assessment
and concluded that the recoverable amount of the
investment in BOCQ was lower than its gross carrying
amount, leading to an impairment allowance. The
recoverable amount was measured as value-in-use
(“VIU”) estimate calculated by discounted cash flow

model.

The recoverable amount of the investment in BOCQ is an
audit focus as it is subject to a high degree of estimation
uncertainty, particularly in estimating net profit growth
rates, dividend pay-out ratio and the estimated disposal
proceeds of BOCQ and in determining the discount rate.
The inherent risk is considered significant due to the
subjectivity involved in management judgements and
assumptions used in developing the estimate.

We understood and evaluated management’s internal
controls for the measurement of recoverable amount of
the investment in BOCQ.

We assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as the complexity
of estimation models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We have performed the following procedures:

+ We involved internal valuation experts in assessing
the appropriateness of the valuation models used by
the management and the mathematical accuracy of
the calculations;

+ Weevaluated the reasonableness of key assumptions
and inputs including discount rate, net profit growth
rates, dividend pay-out ratio and estimated disposal
proceeds used by the management based on relevant
supporting evidence and our knowledge of the
business and industry;

+ We developed our range of VIU estimates with the
support of internal valuation experts, by using
independent inputs and assumptions, and compared
these with management’s estimates; and

+ We discussed with management, obtained
representations from the management and obtained
evidence to corroborate the key assumptions used
were consistent with information currently available
to the Group.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the assumptions and inputs used in the impairment
assessment of the investment in BOCQ to be reasonable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Information Technology - Implementation of the new core banking system

In April 2023, the Group implemented a new core
banking system (the “new core system”) which replaced
the existing core banking systems. The new core system
supports the Group’s Corporate Banking and Retail
Banking business operations, such as the opening
of customer accounts and the processing of various
customer transactions.

The new core system is used in the calculations of
interest income, interest expense, fee income and fee
expense, and the generation of key system reports
relevant to our audit. The implementation of the new
core system involved interfaces of the new core system
with other systems in scope of our audit, as well as the
migration of financial and non-financial data from the
existing core banking systems to the new core system.
Therefore, the implementation of the new core systemis
an audit focus.

We understood and evaluated management's internal
controls over the implementation of the new core
system.

We have performed the following procedures:

+ We evaluated management’s testing of the new
system functionalities involved in the calculations of
interest income, interest expense, fee income and fee
expense, the generation of key system reports and
the interfaces of the new core system with other in-
scope systems, by reviewing the user acceptance test
results and management approval and sign off;

+ Wetested management's controls over the validation
of the completeness and accuracy of the financial
data migrated from the existing core banking systems
to the new core system;

+ We tested the reconciliation of financial data
between the new core system and the existing core
banking systems as at the implementation date of
the new core system; and

+ We performed testing over the system functionalities

mentioned above.

Based on the procedures performed over the
implementation of the new core system, we did not identify
any matter which may impact our reliance on the new core

system.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Hung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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Dah Sing Bank, Limited

EEEDT

Hong Kong Island Branches
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Aberdeen Shop 1, G/F and Portion of the Basement of Site 3, 2554 5463 2554 0843
Aberdeen Centre

HEBERLST ERIE18FUEE OB 18105785

Admiralty Centre Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 25291338 31102818
No. 18 Harcourt Road
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Causeway Bay G/F and Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre, 28912201 2591 6037
No. 468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
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Central Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 25218134 2526 9427
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Nos. 293-299 King’s Road
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Happy Valley Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street, Happy Valley
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Heng Fa Chuen Shop Units 234-235, 2/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 2558 7485 2889 2520
100 Shing Tai Road, Chai Wan

HEHERT BT 2UE 16458

Johnston Road 164 Johnston Road, Wan Chai 2572 8849 28913743

EAER1T T E27H433-4375R A S

North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road 2561 8241 28114474
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Queen’s Road East Shop No. G7, G7A & G8, Ground Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 23218912 2598 5300
248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai
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Shaukiwan Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904

AEERT B ARIETA443-4535F 3 T 15-169% 4

Shek Tong Tsui Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539
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Sheung Wan G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan 2851 6281 25812216

AEFA1T BERAEIMARES 15T 22 & i 5015758

Taikoo Shing Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing Road & 2884 4802 2884 3151

No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing

RIRITEEBRAT) 2023FF4R



MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES - LISTS OF BRANCHES

4347 Branch

ik Address

EEE Tel

{8H Fax

NEEERSBTT
Kowloon Branches
RVERT
Cheung Sha Wan
BIXHD1T
Chong Yip Street

AT

Hunghom

EHR1T
Jordan
EEHMBAT
Mei Foo Sun
Chuen

AT
Mongkok
FEHDT
Shing Yip Street
EE{EE S 1T
Telford Gardens
KRIVIBBT
Tsimshatsui
BAMRTT
Wong Tai Sin
SHRRt 31T

Yaumatei

RIVEBIE-8ISREERI RO S 15TEE

Shop 1, G/F, CRE Centre, 889 Cheung Sha Wan Road
FRIBRIEE 199 B A B T ASRER

Shop A, G/F., Montery Plaza, 19 Chong Yip Street,

Kwun Tong

ATV RO ET 2857 B PRI T3/ 45k » 1825740 R 218 350 4
Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop No. 3 on 2/F,
Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

PR EE 33555

335 Nathan Road, Jordan

=R A AR S5 78 10AH N26E K Fotr

Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V,
Mei Foo Sun Chuen

BT AR 69T75%
697 Nathan Road, Mongkok

BB ZEA105EH TASS

Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong

MBS ERES— I T1EF5A-F6ASE

Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay

2D IB R EREE66-705REHAE
Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui

wAALFEANF O FEEER N G3CHEEE
Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Temple Mall South, Wong Tai Sin

S 28 56 15
561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei

23610951

23893911

23658110

23850161

2370 2660

2394 4261

21918103

2927 4130

23669121

2326 5165

27821339

2958 0985

2389 8239

2363 5917

27820993

23702006

23919104

21918723

2755 4967

23111491

2350 0894

23859285

MREDTT

New Territories Branches

MEED1T

Fanling

EERT
Kwai Fong
B 21T
LOHAS Park

28 B AN B 88 TEAT B35 FAL11-A1452110-11255% 5

Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza,
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

LTS B R 1 T8RS H T 255

Shop 2, G/F, Edition 178, 178 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung
1S E RS 15 The LOHASEE 4124145555

Shop Unit 414, Level 4, The LOHAS, 1 Lohas Park Road,
Tseung Kwan O

2677 8830

2487 8033

28382023

2669 9950

24891253

27196373
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4317 Branch ik Address E3E Tel fEHE Fax
KHIRITAR AT
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
MRERT
New Territories Branches
ERESA1T B8 117D B 60857 ¥R 1L B 15 = 123355555
Ma On Shan Plaza Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road, 2929 4137 2633 3432
Ma On Shan
BREA1T B S AES 3357 57108 D-ESEEE
Maritime Square Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi 24351368 24351582
BT P22 5 168-23657 /S5 1152 93-955% 46
Ocean Walk Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun 2404 6931 2404 7130
DIHE 1T 2787 )IR7E286-2885F I T
Sha Tsui Road G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan 26151510 26151099
BT VOB IE R0 T 95 AR
Shatin Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin 2606 3533 26012413
Ek731T KT & B8 55-59 58 KRNI I T B &R
Sheung Shui Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui 2671 5030 2672 1533
KIEA1T RIHL Z B8 1SR IR EEI5 3 T 5358 K2 5457 &
Tai Po Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po 2667 2588 2664 3637
KEZT YO AEIIE55-565 BB 14- 1855 £ 18 C B T~ 1K 25558
Tai Wai Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden, 26911272 2606 1531
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
KIKER1T FIKBERIFHISRARRESOR B RII5 112112057 58
Tin Shui Wai Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre, 2448 9008 24489112
Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai
1 ER HE EEEMCP Discovery—1$1275E5#
FEBF AP OAT
Tseung Kwan O Shop 127, Level 1, MCP Discovery, Tseung Kwan O 29272101 2702 2305
Metro City Plaza
2EAT B E4- 1655 B AE
Tsuen Wan Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan 2492 8102 2415 0984
HID1T P E FE52-625R B AFIEH T 458 K555k 4
Tuen Mun Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion, 24416218 24416613
52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
RRAT AU L SRR B SR T 1SR BRI B 3 23575
Tung Chung Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street, 2109 3484 2109 4353
Tung Chung, Lantau Island
TR LIER1T ToRA A LLIABS T RAER 162- 1685 B F1E 0 Coftar
Yuen Long Castle Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road, 2479 4555 2479 4522
Peak Road Yuen Long

RIRITEEBRAT) 2023FF4R



4347 Branch

ik Address

EEE Tel

BPIBT

Macau Branches
R

Main Branch
REST
Almirante Lacerda
HERT

lao Hon

BEST

Kin Wa

BEFRTHT
La Cite
ST
Mercadores
EH1T
Nape

BEMST
Palha
BiMSH2 T
Pedro Coutinho
a7

Toi San

SR EEE5 7258

Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572

TELEHRE K S E843-BSE

Avenida Do Almirante Lacerda, No. 43-B

EEFTIN B — 7455k Rk T3 A/ (55—HA) # FACEE

Rua Um Bairro lao Hon No. 45, Industrial Yau Seng (Fase I) R/C AC
EIVIRISE B K245 IR EEITA S 13 EE M N ARE

Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, No. 24, Edificio Kin Wa,

Bloco 13 R/CA

EIVIRFAAT230-2385R = F A M U ~ VEE

Rua Central da Areia Preta No. 230-238, R/CU e R/CV
A H405EM N ARE

Rua dos Mercadores No. 40 R/CA

RE L EI53635RE S H 0\ T ORE

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao, No. 363,

Edificio Hot Line, R/C O

B B4R AR

Rua da Palha, No. 4, R/CA

Eith S14725- DSt S SR S BREE

Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, R/C B
BBV +— AR T E R 55 18 & N CCRE
Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,

Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C CC

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 2831 6191

(853) 2837 8262

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 2822 8380

(853) 2857 2610

(853) 2872 2515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 2821 6523

(853) 2823 8483

KIFED1T

Taipa Branch

KIFRFIEW DT
Prince Flower City
Taipa

UFIR BRI AT R FE — REFT R T 1R
Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

BIRE DT

Coloane Branch

BRIRDT
Coloane

ERIR BB S5 Al TSE 3 T DA
Largo do Matadouro No. 7, R/C D, Coloane

(853) 2888 2374
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4317 Branch ik Address EE Tel

KHR1T (RE) BIRAR

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

41T R R R ER ER 50165 R A 100 A [EARE L5

Head Office 15/F, Tower A, Kingkey100 Building, 5016 Shennan Road East, (86-755) 2519 9033

AW TT
Shenzhen Nanshan

Sub-Branch
EM31T

Guangzhou

LB
Shanghai

AEST
Nanchang
HINT
Zhenjiang
LT

Foshan Sub-Branch

Shenzhen
FYImE L& e O T 25 s 8250 (J0@) 4-THEIZ 12345

Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North),
Industrial Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen

EREEMNTESEEARILE6045EAMIRITAIELE

1/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604 North Renmin Road,

Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
EEmiIOEEALK5015% E/5H EBES15/806, 0787
Room 06 & 07, 15th Floor, Sinar Mas Plaza,

No. 501 Dong Da Ming Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai

T IPE & S & B L B8 136571-2/E

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi
JTERE TR T i R O & fR RS 595k

59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu

EER AL TR EE IR E e BRI R E A
111155 ~ 120%H

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,

Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng, Nanhai District,
Foshan, Guangdong

(86-755) 2519 9033

(86-20) 8116 0888

(86-21) 5598 7000

(86-791) 8688 7333

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-75T7) 8513 3555

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R



Dah Sing Banking Group Limited X#R1TEBAERLQF
26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
EBEFERKER248 A M TR A 02618

Telephone E:E : (852) 2507 8866 o
Facsimile fEE : (852) 2598 5052 ‘[L}

MIX
Paper | Supporting responsible forestry

FSC IR | X AREMHARE
Website ~ #83t : www.dahsing.com s FSC- 0176382
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